
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

CABINET 
__________________________________ 

 
Wednesday, 7 July 2010 at 5.30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

AGENDA – SECTION ONE 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

Ecology Centre, Grove Road, off Haverfield Road, London E3 5TW 
(Location, directions and transport links detailed on next page) 

 
 

Members: 
 

 
Councillor Helal Abbas (Chair) – (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Vice-
Chair) 

– (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Shahed Ali – (Lead Member, Environment) 
Councillor David Edgar – (Lead Member, Resources) 
Councillor Marc Francis – (Lead Member, Housing, Heritage and Planning) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam – (Lead Member, Regeneration and Employment) 
Councillor Denise Jones – (Lead Member, Culture and Creative Industries) 
Councillor Shiria Khatun – (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Rachael Saunders – (Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah – (Lead Member, Community Safety) 
 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 

 
 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
Angus Taylor, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4333, E-mail: angus.taylor@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 



 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

CABINET  
 

WEDNESDAY, 7 JULY 2010 
 

5.30 p.m. 
 

 Ecology Centre - location map, directions and transport links 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

3 - 4  

 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, 
including those restricting Members from voting on the 
questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief 
Executive. 
 

  

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

5 - 30  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Cabinet 
held on 9th June 2010. 
 

  

4. DEPUTATIONS & PETITIONS  
 

  

 To receive any deputations or petitions. 
 

  

5. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

  

5 .1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to 
Unrestricted Business to be considered   

 
  

 To receive any advice of key issues in relation to the 
unrestricted business of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 6th July 2010. 
 
 

  



 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

5 .2 Any Unrestricted Decisions "Called in" by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee   

 
  

 (Under provisions of Article 6 Para 6.02 V of the 
Constitution). 
 
Nil items. 
 
 

  

 UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

6. A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  
 

  

6 .1 Idea Store Strategy  Action Plan Update - Idea Store 
Metro Watney Market and One Stop Shop (CAB 
010/101)   

 

31 - 58 All Wards; 

6 .2 Council Housing Finance Reform Prospectus - 
Implications for Tower Hamlets and Proposed 
Response (CAB 011/101)   

 

59 - 74 All Wards; 

7. A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY  
 

  

7 .1 Contracts Forward Plan (CAB 012/101)   
 

75 - 86 All Wards; 
7 .2 Children, Schools and Families Capital Programme  

(CAB 013/101)   
 

87 - 104 All Wards; 

8. A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

9. A HEALTHY COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

10. ONE TOWER HAMLETS  
 

  

10 .1 Single Equality Framework 2010/11 (CAB 014/101)   
 

105 - 134 All Wards; 
10 .2 2010/11 In Year Budget Savings (CAB 015/101) -  To 

Follow   
 

 All Wards; 

10 .3 Petitions Scheme (CAB 016/101)   
 

135 - 156 All Wards; 

11. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

 To consider any other unrestricted business that the Chair 
considers to be urgent. 
 

  



 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

12. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR 
INFORMATION  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

  

 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the 
agenda, the Committee is recommended to adopt the 
following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act, 1972 as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act, 1985, the Press 
and Public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
for the consideration of the Section Two business on the 
grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government, Act 
1972”. 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (PINK) 
The Exempt / Confidential (Pink) Committee papers in the Agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally sensitive and should not be 
divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, 
please hand them to the Committee Officer present.  

  

14. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 

157 - 162  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
exempt / confidential minutes of the ordinary meeting of 
the Cabinet held on 9th June 2010. 
 

  

15. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

  

15 .1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to 
Exempt / Confidential Business to be considered.   

 
  

 To receive any advice of key issues in relation to the 
exempt/ confidential business of the meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 6th July 2010. 
 
 

  

15 .2 Any Exempt / Confidential Decisions "Called in" by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee   

 
  

 (Under provisions of Article 6 Para 6.02 V of the 
Constitution). 
 
Nil items. 
 
 

  



 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

 EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

16. A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

17. A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

18. A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

19. A HEALTHY COMMUNITY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

20. ONE TOWER HAMLETS  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

21. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL 
BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

 To consider any other exempt/ confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent. 
 

  

22. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR 
INFORMATION  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  
 SCRUTINY PROCESS 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting on Tuesday 3rd August 2010 may 
scrutinise provisional decisions made in respect of any of the reports attached, if it is 
“called in” by five or more Councillors except where the decision involves a 
recommendation to full Council. 
 
The deadline for “Call-in” is: Friday 16th July 2010  (5.00 p.m.) 
 
The deadline for Deputations is: Wednesday 28th July 2010  (5.00 p.m.) 
 
Councillors wishing to “call-in” a provisional decision, or members of the public wishing to 
submit a deputation request, should contact: John Williams 
 Service Head Democratic Services: 
 020 7364 4205 

 
 

 



 
 
 



 1 

LOCATION 
 
Ecology Centre – Grove Road, off Haverfield Road, London E3 5TW. 
 
Directions from Mile End Tube station (Zone 2, Hammersmith & City, District & 
Central Lines): 
 
Turn left out of the station and cross over Bow Road. Turning right into Grove Road, 
the Ecology Centre is located on the left hand side of Grove Road (heading towards 
Roman Road) and is approximately a 7 minute walk. 
 
Buses – 277 and D6 stop outside the venue. 
 
Car parking is very limited in the area and the local streets operate a resident’s     
parking permit system until 5.30pm (check road signs for full details) and are 
regularly patrolled by traffic wardens. 

 
 

 

Agenda Annex

Page 1



 2 

 

Page 2



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\9\AI00024941\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 3



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\9\AI00024941\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
 

HELD AT 5.35 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 9 JUNE 2010 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Helal Abbas (Chair) (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Shahed Ali (Lead Member, Environment) 
Councillor David Edgar (Lead Member, Resources) 
Councillor Marc Francis (Lead Member, Housing, Heritage and 

Planning) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Lead Member, Regeneration and 

Employment) 
Councillor Denise Jones (Lead Member, Culture and Creative 

Industries) 
Councillor Shiria Khatun (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Vice-Chair) (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Rachael Saunders (Lead Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Community Safety) 
  

 
Other Councillors Present: 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader, Liberal Democrat Group) 
Councillor Judith Gardiner  
Councillor Ann Jackson (Chair, Overview & Scrutiny Committee) 

 
Others Present: 
  

 
Officers Present: 
Mohammed Ahad – (Scrutiny Policy Officer, Scrutiny & Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
Isobel Cattermole – (Acting Corporate Director, Children, Schools & 

Families) 
Kevan Collins – (Chief Executive) 
Colin Cormack – (Service Head Housing Options, Development & 

Renewal) 
Aman Dalvi – (Corporate Director, Development & Renewal) 
Jim Elliott – (Lettings Policy Advisor, Development & 

Renewal) 
Isabella Freeman – (Assistant Chief Executive [Legal Services]) 
Stephen Halsey – (Corporate Director, Communities, Localities & 

Culture) 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Afazul Hoque – (Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny & Equalities, 
Chief Executive's) 

Lorrayne Johnson – (Communications Officer, Corporate 
Communications, Chief Executive's) 

Paul Leeson – (Finance Manager, Development & Renewal) 
Firuz Miah – (Future Jobs Fund Placement, Democratic 

Services, Chief Executive's) 
Chris Naylor – (Corporate Director, Resources) 
Jackie Odunoye – (Service Head Strategy Regeneration and 

Sustainability, Development & Renewal) 
Chris Saunders – (Interim Political Advisor to the Labour Group) 
Takki Sulaiman – (Service Head Communications, Chief 

Executive's) 
Helen Taylor – (Acting Corporate Director Adults Health & 

Wellbeing) 
Paul Thorogood – (Senior Accountant, Development & Renewal) 
Matthew Vaughan – (Political Advisor to the Conservative Group) 
James Walsh – (Housing Regeneration Officer, Development & 

Renewal) 
Chris Worby – (Interim Service Head, Regeneration, 

Development & Renewal) 
Angus Taylor – (ExecutiveTeam Leader, Democratic Services, 

Chief Executive's) 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCILLOR H. ABBAS (CHAIR) IN THE CHAIR 
 
 
The Chair opened the meeting by: 
• Introducing himself, and welcoming all those present to the first 

Cabinet meeting of the new Council Year and also the new Labour 
Administration.  

• Advising that the current Cabinet would be in place until the election of 
an Executive Mayor in October 2010.  

• Commenting that there were difficult times ahead for the Council, as 
the agenda item on the Government announcement of in year 
spending cuts indicated, and it remained to be seen how this would 
impact on the authority. 

• Expressing his aspiration that Cabinet meetings should be as 
accessible and transparent as possible. Accordingly he had asked for 
arrangements to be made for the forthcoming Cabinet meetings prior to 
the Mayoral election to be held in the Community with a view to 
promoting resident attendance and engagement. 

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Page 6



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

The clerk advised that no apologies for absence had been received. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor S. Ali declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 6.1 “Ocean 
New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration was made on the basis that 
the report contained recommendations relating to the regeneration of the 
Ocean Estate and Councillor Ali had been a member of the Authority’s 
Strategic Development Committee when the application for planning consent 
associated with the regeneration proposals for the Ocean Estate had been 
considered. 
 
Councillor D. Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda item 6.1 “Ocean 
New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration of interest was made on the 
basis that the report contained recommendations relating to the Tower 
Hamlets Primary Care Trust and Councillor Jones was a non-executive 
member of the governing body of the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust. 
 
Councillor S. Khatun declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 6.1 
“Ocean New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration was made on the basis that 
the report contained recommendations relating to the regeneration of the 
Ocean Estate and Councillor Khatun had been a member of the Authority’s 
Strategic Development Committee when the application for planning consent 
associated with the regeneration proposals for the Ocean Estate had been 
considered. 
 
Councillor A. Ullah declared a personal interest in Agenda item 6.1 “Ocean 
New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration of interest was made on the 
basis that the report contained recommendations relating to the regeneration 
of the Ocean Estate area including St Dunstan’s and Stepney Green Ward 
and Councillor Ullah was one of the Ward Councillors for St Dunstan’s and 
Stepney Green Ward. 
 
Councillor S. Islam declared a personal interest in Agenda item 6.2 “Lettings 
Policy and Lettings Plan” (CAB 002/101). The declaration of interest was 
made on the basis that the report contained recommendations relating to the 
Authority’s Lettings Policy (which determines nominations from the Common 
Housing Register for properties in the ownership of the Authority (managed by 
Tower Hamlets Homes]) and Councillor Islam was a tenant of Tower Hamlets 
Homes and also on the Common Housing Register (also known as the 
Housing Waiting List). 
 
Councillor D. Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 7.1 
“Children and Young People's Plan Annual Review 2009-10” (CAB 004/101). 
The declaration was made on the basis that the report contained 
recommendations relating to secondary schools in general and Councillor 
Jones was a member of the governing body of Mulberry Secondary School. 

Page 7



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Councillor D. Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 7.2 
“Establishment of a Children and Families Trust Board for Tower Hamlets” 
(CAB 005/101). The declaration was made on the basis that the report 
contained recommendations relating to secondary schools in general and 
Councillor Jones was a member of the governing body of Mulberry Secondary 
School. 
 
Noted.  
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Cabinet held on 
7th April 2010 be approved and signed by the Chair, as a correct record of the 
proceedings. 
 

4. DEPUTATIONS & PETITIONS  
 
The clerk advised that the Assistant Chief Executive had received no requests 
for deputations or petitions in respect of the business contained in the 
agenda. 
 
 

5. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

5.1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to Unrestricted 
Business to be considered  
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that Councillor Jackson, Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, had Tabled a sheet of questions/ 
comments arising from the deliberations of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 8th June 2010, in respect of the unrestricted business 
contained in the agenda for consideration, a copy of which would be 
interleaved with the minutes. 
 
Councillor Jackson, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
addressed members of the Cabinet: 
 
• Reporting the election of Councillor R. Ahmed as Vice- Chair of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal Year 2010/11; and 
the appointment of six Scrutiny Lead Members by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

• Reporting consideration and agreement by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of a scrutiny review on child obesity, including a series of 
positive recommendations which it was hoped the Cabinet would 

Page 8



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

consider and endorse, in due course, and the Authority would 
subsequently implement. 

• Key Issues or Questions (Pre Scrutiny) 
Briefly outlining the questions/ comments raised by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, as set out in the tabled paper regarding: - 
o Item 6.1 “Ocean New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan 

for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate Regeneration” 
o Item 6.2 “Lettings Policy and Lettings Plan” 
o Item 7.1 “Children and Young People's Plan Annual Review 

2009-10” 
• Expressing the aspiration of joint working over the coming year with the 

Cabinet Lead Members in relation to a number of scrutiny reviews 
including that on arrangements for an Executive Mayor.  

 
Councillor Francis, Lead Member Housing, Heritage and Planning, 
commented that pre-scrutiny questions and comments from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee were invariably constructive and often prompted 
consideration of the reports contained in the agenda from a different 
perspective. He therefore considered that it would be helpful for members of 
the Cabinet to receive all the questions and comments, and not only those 
relating to their own Lead Member portfolios, as soon as possible prior to the 
Cabinet meeting. This would allow a greater opportunity to reflect on the 
matters raised and better inform Cabinet consideration of these agenda items. 
Accordingly he proposed, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet: 

“That the questions and comments of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be circulated to all members of Cabinet at the earliest 
opportunity prior to the Cabinet meeting.” 

 
The Chair thanked Councillor Jackson for presenting the contribution of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and welcomed the prospect of partnership 
working in the months ahead. He further emphasised the importance he and 
the new Cabinet placed on the role of Scrutiny in giving detailed consideration 
to areas that the Cabinet had not, and also to holding the Cabinet to account 
for their decisions; and gave an assurance that any concerns or matters 
raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee would be given full 
consideration. The Chair then Moved (taking account of the proposal made 
by Councillor Francis); and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the questions and comments of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee be noted, and that these be given consideration during the 
Cabinet deliberation of the items of business to which the questions/ 
comments related. 

 
2. That the questions and comments of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee be circulated to all members of Cabinet at the earliest 
opportunity prior to the Cabinet meeting. 

 
 

Page 9



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

5.2 Any Unrestricted Decisions "Called in" by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee  
 
The Clerk advised that no provisional decisions taken by the Cabinet, at its 
meeting held on 7th April 2010, had been referred back to Cabinet, by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, for further consideration. 
 
 

6. A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  
 
 

6.1 Ocean New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean 
Estate Regeneration (CAB 001/101)  
 
Councillor S. Ali declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 6.1 “Ocean 
New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration was made on the basis that 
the report contained recommendations relating to the regeneration of the 
Ocean Estate and Councillor Ali had been a member of the Authority’s 
Strategic Development Committee when the application for planning consent 
associated with the regeneration proposals for the Ocean Estate had been 
considered. 
 
Councillor D. Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda item 6.1 “Ocean 
New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration of interest was made on the 
basis that the report contained recommendations relating to the Tower 
Hamlets Primary Care Trust and Councillor Jones was a non-executive 
member of the governing body of the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust. 
 
Councillor S. Khatun declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 6.1 
“Ocean New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration was made on the basis that 
the report contained recommendations relating to the regeneration of the 
Ocean Estate and Councillor Khatun had been a member of the Authority’s 
Strategic Development Committee when the application for planning consent 
associated with the regeneration proposals for the Ocean Estate had been 
considered. 
 
Councillor A. Ullah declared a personal interest in Agenda item 6.1 “Ocean 
New Deal for Communities - Delivery Plan for 2010/11 - Ocean Estate 
Regeneration” (CAB 001/101). The declaration of interest was made on the 
basis that the report contained recommendations relating to the regeneration 
of the Ocean Estate area including St Dunstan’s and Stepney Green Ward 
and Councillor Ullah was one of the Ward Councillors for St Dunstan’s and 
Stepney Green Ward. 
 
 
Ms Odunoye, Service Head Strategy Regeneration and Sustainability, at the 
request of the Chair, in introducing the report: 
• Summarised the key points contained therein, highlighting in particular: 

Page 10



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

o Agreement by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government to extend the New Deal for Communities (NDC) 
Programme for 1 year, and permit the rollover of £5 million of 
NDC resources into 2010/11, to finalise the regeneration of 
housing, environment and community facilities. Also, the 
consequent need for Cabinet approval of revisions to the NDC 
Delivery Plan and succession strategy previously approved by it. 

o The rationale for and need for Cabinet approval of the proposed 
appropriation of specific land and buildings at the Ocean Estate 
for planning purposes and subsequent valuation and accounting 
treatment of these Council freehold interests thereafter. 

• Addressed the matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 8th June 2010, in relation to the report; as set out in 
the tabled sheet of questions and comments presented by the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee earlier in the proceedings: 

 
A discussion followed, during which both progress to date towards the 
delivery of the NDC Programme and the proposals in the report were broadly 
welcomed, and which focused on the following points:- 
• Commented that the revision of the NDC Delivery Plan to reflect its 

extended life had provided an opportunity to examine progress over the 
past 12 months and accelerate some of the desired outcomes.  The 
pilot refurbishment programme had been a success, after initial 
concerns regarding contractor maintenance of the site had been 
addressed. On a recent site visit, by the Leader of the Council and the 
Lead Member, it had been apparent that tenants were happy with their 
newly installed kitchens and bathrooms and this element of the 
regeneration scheme would now be rolled out to a further 30 
households. The Cabinet were keen to carry out the physical 
regeneration of the estate as quickly as possible, and the rollover of £5 
million of resources would be utilised to this end.  

• The Officer team was formally thanked for the timely completion of the 
relevant documentation, for the Ocean Estate regeneration scheme, 
particularly the legal aspects, before the close of the financial year 
2009/10, which had mitigated the risk of losing substantial funding. Ms 
Odunoye, Service Head Strategy Regeneration and Sustainability, was 
thanked for her contribution together with Ms B. Daly, Chair of the 
Ocean TRA. 

• That consideration be given to the continued support, financially or by 
other means, of partner organisations such as the Ocean TRA, which 
were widely acknowledged to undertake good work in the community. 
The Lead Member gave an assurance that the Authority would 
continue to work closely with the Ocean TRA, whose contribution to 
development and progression of the regeneration scheme had proved 
invaluable. 

• With reference to the Retail Strategy, set out within the 2010/11 NDC 
Delivery Plan, attached at Appendix A to the report, clarification/ 
assurance was sought and given that retail traders whose business 
premises were lost as a consequence of demolition under regeneration 
scheme would be treated with sensitivity, every endeavour made by 
the Authority to identify alternative retail space for them and also to 

Page 11



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

protect their interests in the context of the development of a small 
anchor store. 

• With reference to the Succession and Legacy sections of the 2010/11 
NDC Delivery Plan, attached at Appendix A to the report, and concerns 
relayed to Members in this context, clarification/ assurance was sought 
and given regarding the level of scrutiny applied to the Community 
Consortium Against Poverty (CCAP), CCAP performance to date in 
delivering programme outcomes and the Authority’s level of 
involvement scrutiny and monitoring. Councillor Peck, Deputy Leader 
of the Council and Vice-Chair, whilst in part assured by Officer 
assurances, remained concerned and requested that the appropriate 
Chief Officer provide him with further details regarding the performance 
monitoring of targets in this regard. Mr Collins, Chief Executive, 
reported that detailed work was already underway to identify 
quantifiable evidence of performance against targets, and this would be 
reported to members of the Cabinet. Councillor Eaton, speaking with 
the consent of the Cabinet, requested that she also be provided with 
the information. 

• Clarification/assurance also sought and given regarding: 
o Submission of the NDC Delivery Plan in the context of 

discontinuation of Government Office for London. 
o Comments of the Chief Financial Officer (paragraph 11.5) 

relating to certification of the value of appropriated land. 
o Usage of terminology in the Concurrent Report of the Assistant 

Chief Executive (Legal) lacking in definitive clarity (paragraph 
12.2). 

o Whether the new Primary Care Trust surgery at the Harford 
Street Community Facility (Appendix B Succession Strategy 
page 10) was included in the fit out or to be undertaken 
separately. 

 
The Chair Moved the recommendations, as set out in the report, and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the 2010/11 New Deal for Communities Delivery Plan, as set out 

in Appendix A to the report (CAB 001/101), be approved;   
 
2. That the Corporate Director of Development and Renewal, after 

consultation with the Lead Member Regeneration and Employment, be 
authorised to finalise the plan, making any appropriate and necessary 
minor amendments prior to submission to Government Office for 
London (GOL);  

 
3. That the amendments to the previously agreed succession strategy for 

the Ocean NDC, as set out in Appendix B of the report  (CAB 001/101) 
and outlined in paragraph 6.1 of the report, be approved;  

 
4. That the appropriation for planning purposes of land and buildings 

comprising the Council’s freehold interest within site E shown on the 

Page 12



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

Plan attached to the report (CAB 001/101), pursuant to s122 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 be approved; and  

 
5. That the freehold interest of the site E shown on the Plan attached to 

the report (CAB 001/101) be appropriated from the Housing Revenue 
Account to the Council’s General Fund and held there for planning 
purposes.  

 
 

6.2 Lettings Policy and Lettings Plan (CAB 002/101)  
 
Councillor S. Islam declared a personal interest in Agenda item 6.2 “Lettings 
Policy and Lettings Plan” (CAB 002/101). The declaration of interest was 
made on the basis that the report contained recommendations relating to the 
Authority’s Lettings Policy (which determines nominations from the Common 
Housing Register for properties in the ownership of the Authority (managed by 
Tower Hamlets Homes]) and Councillor Islam was a tenant of Tower Hamlets 
Homes and also on the Common Housing Register (also known as the 
Housing Waiting List). 
 
 
Mr Cormack, Service Head Housing Options, at the request of the Chair, in 
introducing the report: 
• Summarised the key points contained therein, highlighting in particular: 

o That this was the first report to Members on likely activities 
under the Authority’s allocations policy, following Cabinet 
agreement of a new Lettings Policy in March 2010. Officers 
considered it important to indicate early on how the policy was 
likely to work, rather than report the outcome of monitoring at 
year end, and risk a pattern of lettings developing which was not 
congruent with the housing strategy and priorities of the 
Authority and its partners. These priorities included a new 
emphasis on reduction of overcrowding without taking away the 
emphasis on homelessness.  

o The proposed Lettings Plan, informed by the assessment of the 
likely lettings activity, set out an overall direction for the 
allocation of the available supply of housing over the coming 
year to meet statutory obligations and the priorities of the 
Council and its partners. 

o The Lettings Policy had been agreed in March, subject to final 
amendments to the quota of lettings to be made available to 
applicants from Band 3, and this quota was now proposed for 
agreement. 

o The opportunity of developing the Lettings Plan had been taken 
to review the Band 1 priority target groups and capture the 
numbers from the early monitoring of allocations work. 

o There had been no intention on the part of the previous 
Administration to cap bidding for housing under the Choice 
Based Lettings system, when the new Lettings Policy had been 
adopted in March 2010, however this position had not been 
captured in the agreed policy. It was now proposed that this 

Page 13



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

10 

omission be mitigated with a small amendment to the current 
Lettings Policy. 

• Addressed the matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 8th June 2010, in relation to the report; as set out in 
the tabled sheet of questions and comments presented by the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee earlier in the proceedings: 

 
A discussion followed, during which the proposals in the report were broadly 
welcomed, and which focused on the following points:- 
• The Officer team was formally thanked for their contribution in bringing 

these proposals forward. 
• It was emphasised that there had been no intention to introduce 

restricted bidding for housing, under Choice Based Lettings, when the 
Lettings Policy had been adopted in March 2010 and the proposal to 
capture that position with a further review to the Lettings Policy was 
welcomed. 

• Consideration that introduction of a fair and transparent Lettings Policy, 
whereby applicants for housing could see why others had been 
prioritised ahead of them, reinforced with effective allocation of social 
housing, would ensure that community cohesion was no longer 
undermined, as had been the case historically. 

• Councillor Francis, Lead Member Housing Heritage and Planning, 
considered it appropriate that the annual quota of lettings to be made 
available under the Lettings Policy for applicants in Band 3 be 
increased to 5% rather than the 3% recommended in the report. 
Accordingly he proposed an amendment to the recommendations set 
out in paragraph 2.2.2 of the report, for the consideration of members 
of the Cabinet. 

• Councillor Peck, Deputy Leader of the Council and Vice-Chair, thanked 
the Lead Member Housing Heritage and Planning, for identifying that a 
quota operated for foster carers in relation to housing lettings. He 
commented that, as a long standing member of the Corporate 
Parenting Steering Group [charged with protecting the interests of 
looked after children in Tower Hamlets], he had long been aware of a 
problem whereby families wishing to provide foster care, but lacking a 
sufficient number of rooms, were not being prioritised for housing in a 
way which was delivering the desired outcome. One consequence was 
that these children were fostered outside the borough and therefore not 
able to benefit from the good schools and other benefits available to 
them in Tower Hamlets. He noted that the figures for this Band 1 
priority target group, set out at appendix 2 to the Lettings Plan 
appended to the report, indicated that no foster carer households had 
received a let in 2009/10, that 8 households needed accommodation 
with the appropriate number of rooms, but no target had been set for 
2010/11. He considered that current arrangements for prioritising 
applications for housing from foster carer households were not 
delivering, and setting a target would drive performance in this area 
with a massive impact for the small number of vulnerable children 
needing foster care. He also considered it imperative that officers from 
the 2 directorates responsible for Children and Housing work closely to 

Page 14



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

11 

ensure that foster carer households understood how they qualified for 
housing priority and how to make an appropriate bid. Officers 
acknowledged the need for joint working and intervention action. 
Accordingly he proposed the following amendment to the 
recommendations set out in the report: 
“That a 2010/2011 target for Band 1 Group B Priority Target Group – 
foster carers, be set at 8 lets.” 
A discussion ensued as to the positives and negatives of setting a 
minimum target for foster carer households during which the Lead 
Member Housing Heritage and Planning concurred that the introduction 
of a target was appropriate as no foster carer households had been 
housed in 2009/10 despite being a priority target group. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given regarding: 
o Whether the Authority was making optimum use of ICT, and 

provision of information on the internet in particular, to facilitate 
informed choices and increased control of outcomes by 
applicants for housing under Choice Based Lettings. 

o Whether the quota for the Band 1 priority target group of care 
workers had been increased and who made the application for 
this the individuals needing care or the key worker. 

 
The Chair Moved the recommendations set out in the report (taking account 
of the amendments proposed by Councillor Francis and Councillor Peck); and 
it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That it be noted that the impact of the New Lettings Policy will be 

monitored for 6 months in order to assess whether broad targets are 
required in 2010/2011;  

 
2. That, subject to resolution 6. below, the Lettings Plan for 2010/2011, as 

set out in paragraphs 6.12 to 6.28, Appendix 2 of the report (CAB 
002/101) and further as part of the Lettings Plan, be agreed;  

 
3. That 5% of annual lettings should be made available to applicants in 

Band 3 of the new Lettings Policy as set out in paragraph 6.23 of the 
report (CAB 002/101);  

 
4. That unlimited bidding in the new Lettings Policy be retained with a 

review in one year’s time;  
 
5. That, subject to resolution 6. below, the amended New Lettings Policy, 

attached to the report (CAB 002/101) as Appendix 1, be agreed; and 
 
6. That a 2010/2011 target for Band 1 Group B Priority Target Group – 

foster carers, be set at 8 lets. 
 
 

6.3 Implications and recommended response to the Government's 
prospectus on Council Housing Finance (To Follow) (CAB 003/101)  

Page 15



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

12 

 
The clerk advised that the report had been withdrawn upon the advice of Mr 
Dalvi, Corporate Director Development and Renewal, as the matter would be 
progressed by Officers under delegated authority. However a subsequent 
report might be submitted for future Cabinet consideration.  
 
 

7. A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY  
 
 

7.1 Children and Young People's Plan Annual Review 2009-10 (CAB 004/101)  
 
Councillor D. Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 7.1 
“Children and Young People's Plan Annual Review 2009-10” (CAB 004/101). 
The declaration was made on the basis that the report contained 
recommendations relating to secondary schools in general and Councillor 
Jones was a member of the governing body of Mulberry Secondary School. 
 
 
Ms Cattermole, Acting Corporate Director Children, Schools and Families, at 
the request of the Chair, in introducing the report: 
• Summarised the key points contained therein: 

o Commenting that the 3 year Children and Young People’s Plan 
(CYPP) approved by Cabinet in March 2009 had been refreshed 
and re-approved by Cabinet in April 2010. The CYPP set out the 
vision of the Tower Hamlets Partnership for children, young 
people and families in the borough and therefore determined the 
programme of activities undertaken by the Council and its 
partners, as well as setting out key performance indicators for 
these activities. The Authority had high aspirations for its 
children and young people and the targets set were 
consequently challenging. 

o Highlighting key performance achievements: 
� 17 indicators, where end of year data was available, 

showed improved performance on 2008/9. 
� Reduction of teenage pregnancy was the best 

performance in London and 3rd best nationally. 
� Implementation of the Integrated Pathways Team secured 

earlier referral to appropriate intervention for children at 
risk. A recent unannounced Ofsted inspection gave 
positive feedback on child protection services. 

� Summer 2009 saw achievement of the best ever GCSE 
results, with improvement at twice the national rate. 

� One of the smallest gaps nationally for academic 
achievement between pupils eligible for school meals and 
their peers had been achieved. 

� Extension of the reach of youth provision across the 
borough with engagement of 50% of young people in 
youth activities. 

Page 16



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

13 

� Increased engagement with sports and outdoor activities 
with 400 teenagers signed up for the Duke of Edinburgh 
award, double the number in 2008/9. 

� Child Poverty levels reduced by 3.4% to 48%, a positive 
direction of travel. 

� Rebuilding and refurbishing schools through a Building 
Schools for the Future (BSF) programme at a pace 
second to none: first completed sixth form college, on site 
in 6 secondary schools with 1st secondary school to open 
at St Paul’s Way in January 2011. 31 primary schools had 
received significant funding to improve. 

• Addressed the matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 8th June 2010, in relation to the report; as set out in 
the tabled sheet of questions and comments presented by the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee earlier in the proceedings: 

 
A discussion followed, during which the proposals in the report were broadly 
welcomed, and which focused on the following points:- 
• Ms Cattermole, Acting Corporate Director Children, Schools and 

Families and her Officer team were formally thanked for their 
contribution to the achievement of improved performance detailed in 
the report. 

• The improvement in volunteering opportunities was particularly 
welcomed by the new Lead Member Children’s Services. 

• Concern was expressed that survey results of young people which 
indicated that 82% felt safe in their local area was not a reflection of the 
reality on the ground, as anecdotal evidence received, and experience 
of lower level violence and intimidation on the door step election 
campaign belied this. Consideration also that the programme of 
activities for the Every Child Matters (ECM) theme “Stay Safe” – 
Priority 1 “Protect children and young people from harm and support 
them to feel safe and confident in their area and beyond” was 
inadequate and behind the curve, with the associated targets requiring 
clarity. Clarification/ assurance was given in relation to the source of 
the data, the initiatives being undertaken in schools around youth 
violence and young people’s perception of a safe environment, also the 
targeting of hot spots of youth violence by the joint tasking group 
(police and safer neighbourhood teams). The Acting Corporate Director 
undertook to report the detail of this work to members of the Cabinet 
but advised that Officers were preparing a report on youth violence in 
the borough for Member consideration in June/ July. 

• Concern was expressed that the activities associated with the theme 
“Local Priorities” – LAPs 5 & 6 – “Establishing additional youth services 
in the west of LAP 5 continued not to address the needs of the west of 
the borough”, which had suffered historically from lower levels of youth 
provision, and additional resources were required. Also the joint 
sessions at Caxton Hall had not been undertaken due to staff absence 
or leave. Clarification was given as to the rationale for resource 
allocation in this area, and the Acting Corporate Director undertook to 
provide members of the Cabinet with an analysis of related spend and 
activity provision by LAP. 

Page 17



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

14 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given, with reference to 
extension of youth provision across the borough with engagement 
reaching 50% of teenagers, as to how this compared with other similar 
boroughs and what aspirations there were to improve it further. Also as 
to what measures were being take to engage young women with youth 
service provision, given they had been less engaged than young men 
historically. Another Cabinet member commented that the offer to 
youth in the borough was now fantastic, having greatly improved over 
recent years and made particularly attractive with the extended hours 
provision. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given as to specific initiatives 
undertaken which had led to the reduction in child poverty indicated in 
the report. The Acting Corporate Director undertook to provide 
members of the Cabinet with information on the initiatives being 
undertaken with the Child Poverty Strategy. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given, with reference to ECM 
theme “Make a Positive Contribution” - Priority 2 “Increase community 
cohesion among our children, young people and their families” as to 
initiatives to build community cohesion in primary schools with a 
predominantly Bangladeshi and other BME cohort. The Acting 
Corporate Director undertook to provide Councillor Islam, Lead 
Member Regeneration and Employment, with information on the 
initiatives being undertaken. 

• Concern was expressed regarding the adequacy of youth service 
provision in the Bethnal Green area which appeared not to have seen 
the uplift of other LAPs. Current provision was limited to the Wessex 
Centre but there were issues with space and cost that remained 
unresolved. Clarification/ assurance was given by the Acting Corporate 
Director. 

• Clarification was sought and given, with reference to the priority of 
reducing child obesity, as to whether the opportunity to engage with 
parents of reception year children, and disseminate appropriate 
information to them, was being optimised. The chair requested that 
Councillor Ali be provided with a copy of the recent scrutiny review 
report on child obesity. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given, with reference to theme 
“Local Priorities” – LAPs 3&4 – “Increase the variety of and quality of 
activities at youth clubs making sure that diverse groups of young 
people are engaged”, as to: 
o The current position with the refurbishment and development of 

plans for the Haileybury Youth Club. 
o The medium and long term future of the Redcoats Youth Club, 

and in particular if this temporary arrangement proved to be 
successful it could be retained. The Acting Corporate Director 
undertook to provide Councillor Ullah, Lead Member Community 
Safety with a written response. 

• Commented that a large number of young people were attending 
university but were not being signposted to opportunities to improve 
employment related skills linked to local and regional labour market 
opportunities such as the Olympics and Crossrail. Clarification sought 

Page 18



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

15 

and given in relation to duty of schools to provide this signposting and 
associated initiatives. The Acting Corporate Director undertook to 
provide Councillor Saunders, Lead Member Health and Wellbeing with 
the booklet of information provided to parents. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given, regarding plans to meet 
the future need for improved service provision resulting from a 
demographic bulge in Mile End East. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought, with reference to theme “Local 
Priorities” – LAPs 5 & 6 – “Establishing additional youth services in the 
west of LAP 5 “ as to initiatives to improve youth service provision at 
the Eleanor Street Travellers’ Site. The Acting Corporate Director 
undertook to provide Councillor Saunders, Lead Member Health and 
Wellbeing with a written response/ information. 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given as to the per capita 
spend on youth service provision and comparatives with other London 
boroughs, and nationally. The Acting Corporate Director undertook to 
provide members of the Cabinet with the detail in writing.  

 
Mr Collins, Chief Executive, informed members of the Cabinet that, following a 
recent Government announcement which could impact on the future 
relationship between schools and local authorities, he had met with all head 
teachers that day. He was pleased to report that they wished to remain in the 
Tower Hamlets community of schools, and that the matter would now be 
discussed with school governing bodies, with a view to ensuring that the best 
facilities possible were provided to young people in Tower Hamlets. 
 
The Chair commented that: 
• The amount of work already done to improve provision of services for 

young people in Tower Hamlets must not be underestimated, and he 
endorsed the formal thanks of the Lead Member to Ms Cattermole, 
Acting Corporate Director Children, Schools and Families and her 
Officer team for their contribution to the achievement of improved 
performance as detailed in the report. 

• The Authority and the Administration could take pride in its Youth 
Service. However it was acknowledged that there was a perception in 
the Community that little or not enough was being provided by the 
Council in terms of youth services and this needed to be taken 
seriously and addressed.  

• A strategic rather than parochial approach was essential when 
examining youth service provision, as there was One Tower Hamlets. 
Some areas had more youth facilities than others, but the key issue 
was how to ensure that residents had the opportunity to access service 
provision, and young people were encouraged to travel to where 
provision was available. 

 
The Chair then requested that Officers take account of the comments/ 
suggestions made by members of the Cabinet, and in particular those to 
improve progress in relation to CYPP activities and targets in the year ahead; 
and subsequently Moved that: 
 

Page 19



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

16 

“The assessment of the first year’s progress against the current three year 
CYPP 2009-2012, recommended for Cabinet consideration in the 
recommendation contained in paragraph 2.1 of the report, be noted.”  
Together with the following additional recommendation for the consideration 
of members of the Cabinet: 
 
“That a further report on progress against targets within the CYPP 2009-2012, 
be brought forward for Cabinet consideration.” 
and it was: - 
 
 
Resolved:  
 
1. That the assessment of the first year year’s progress against the 

current three-year CYPP 2009-2012 be noted; and 
 
2. That a further report on progress against targets within the CYPP 

2009-2012, be brought forward for Cabinet consideration. 
 
 

7.2 Establishment of a Children and Families Trust Board for Tower Hamlets 
(CAB 005/101)  
 
Councillor D. Jones declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 7.2 
“Establishment of a Children and Families Trust Board for Tower Hamlets” 
(CAB 005/101). The declaration was made on the basis that the report 
contained recommendations relating to secondary schools in general and 
Councillor Jones was a member of the governing body of Mulberry Secondary 
School. 
 
 
Ms Cattermole, Acting Corporate Director Children, Schools and Families, at 
the request of the Chair, in introducing the report summarised the key points 
contained therein, highlighting in particular: 
• The proposed changes to Children’s Trust arrangements in Tower 

Hamlets were required to meet new statutory requirements. 
• The review of arrangements included a very wide ranging consultation 

including Trust partners, third sector service providers and young 
people. 

• The proposed governance structure aimed to build on the strengths of 
existing arrangements, address concerns highlighted in the review, and 
ensure that services for children were commissioned and developed 
effectively to make optimum use of resources and achieve better 
outcomes. 

 
A discussion followed which focused on the points set out below:- 
• The focus on setting shared priorities for children and young people, 

joined up working and joint commissioning was welcomed. 
• Concern was expressed that the proposed organisational structure of 

the Children and Families Trust Board (CFTB) was overly bureaucratic 
and layered, with 12 separate commissioning groups and specialist 

Page 20



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

17 

commissioning groups in addition, and not congruent with the current 
environment of fiscal constraint. Concern also that the terms of 
reference of the different groups would result in the operational support 
and costs falling on the Authority when the costs should be at least 
shared by the statutory partners of the Board. Consideration therefore 
that the proposals should be remitted for 1 month to allow for review 
with a focus on more streamlined and efficient arrangements. 

• Concern was also expressed regarding the membership of the CFTB 
and that this be the subject of review and reported back to Cabinet. 

• Officers responded that there was no option for non-introduction of new 
arrangements as these were a Government requirement, and the 
proposals also responded to detailed statutory guidance as to 
implementation. However it was known that the new Secretary of State 
intended to review such trusts nationally. There was also a need to 
ensure that services were commissioned and developed to produce 
optimum outcomes for children and young people, and this could only 
be achieved through detailed discussion with partners drilling down to 
services delivered and outcomes expected. Where this had not 
happened the arrangements had gone awry. The Authority received a 
small amount of funding to operate the CFTB. 

• Acknowledging the pressing need to set up the CFTB and taking 
account of the advice of the Acting Corporate Director Councillor Peck, 
Deputy Leader of the Council and Vice-Chair, commented that if 
remitting the report for 1 month for review was unviable, then the 
expertise of the Authority’s Transformation Board should be applied to 
examining the organizational structure. Accordingly he proposed an 
additional recommendation, to that set out in the report, for the 
consideration of members of the Cabinet as follows: 
“That an expeditious review of the membership and organisational 
structure of the Children and Families Trust Board be undertaken, by 
the Authority’s Transformation Board, to assess the potential for more 
streamlined arrangements and the outcomes be reported back to 
Cabinet.” 

 
The Chair in Moving the recommendations set out in the report (taking 
account of the amendment proposed by Councillor Peck); and it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That, subject to resolution 4 below, the establishment of a Children and 

Families Trust Board for Tower Hamlets with initial membership, as set 
out in Appendix 2 of the report (CAB 005/101), be agreed;  

 
2. That, subject to resolution 4 below, it be agreed that the Children and 

Families Trust Board will operate in accordance with the organisational 
chart set out in Appendix 1 of the report (CAB 005/101) and the terms 
of reference in Appendix 2; 

 
3. That it be agreed that the Chair of the Children and Families Trust 

Board will be the Lead Member for Children’s Services; and 
 

Page 21



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

18 

4. That an expeditious review of the membership and organisational 
structure of the Children and Families Trust Board be undertaken, by 
the Authority’s Transformation Board, to assess the potential for more 
streamlined arrangements and the outcomes be reported back to 
Cabinet. 

 
8. A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY  

 
The Clerk advised that there were no business to be considered under this 
section of the agenda. 
 

9. A HEALTHY COMMUNITY  
 
The Clerk advised that there were no business to be considered under this 
section of the agenda. 
 

10. ONE TOWER HAMLETS  
 
Variation of Order of Business 
Following consideration of Agenda item 7.2 “Establishment of a Children and 
Families Trust Board for Tower Hamlets” and advisement by the clerk that 
there was no business to be considered under Sections 8 and 9 of the agenda 
the Chair Informed members of the Cabinet that: 
• The clerk had advised that Agenda item 12.2 “Cabinet Sub-Bodies 

Terms of Reference and Membership” contained recommendations for 
consideration, but had been circulated, in error, within the section of 
the agenda comprising reports for information. 

• The clerk had advised that Agenda item 11.1 “Government 
announcement of 6.2 billion in year spending cuts” published on 
Monday 7th June 2010, contained noting recommendations, but had 
been circulated, in error, within the section of the agenda comprising 
any other unrestricted business considered to be urgent (and therefore 
requiring consideration). 

 
The Chair Moved (taking account of the advice of the clerk), and it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Order of Business be varied so that: 
• Agenda item 12.2 “Cabinet Sub-Bodies Terms of Reference and 

Membership” be considered as the next item of business. However the 
remaining reports for information (agenda items 12.1 “Cabinet Terms of 
Reference and Membership” and 12.3 “Exercise of Corporate Director 
Discretions”) be taken in the sequence detailed in the order of 
business. 

• Agenda item 11.1 “Government announcement of 6.2 billion in year 
spending cuts” be taken at the end of the section of the agenda 
comprising reports for information. 

However for ease of reference the deliberations of the Cabinet, and 
subsequent decisions taken, are set out below in the order detailed in the 
agenda. 

Page 22



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

19 

 
11. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 
Nil Items.  
 
 

11.1 Government announcement of 6.2 billion in year spending cuts (CAB 
009/101)  
 
Please note that the order of business was varied by resolution of the Cabinet 
earlier in the proceedings in order to allow this item of business to be taken 
within the section of the agenda for unrestricted reports for information 
following agenda item 12.3, however for ease of reference the deliberations of 
the Cabinet, and subsequent decisions taken, are set out below in the order 
detailed in the agenda. 
 
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that Councillor Edgar, Lead 
Member: Resources, had Tabled a Motion in relation to the 
recommendations set out in the report, a copy of which would be interleaved 
with the minutes. 
 
Mr Naylor, Corporate Director Resources, at the request of the Chair, in 
introducing the report summarised the key points contained therein, 
highlighting in particular: 
• The Authority had set a balanced budget for 2010/11 in line with the 

third year of its 3 year budget strategy. 
• Government had recently announced £6.2 billion of in year spending 

cuts, of which the share for Local Government was approximately £1.2 
billion. Detail was still lacking but a “rule of thumb” was that the London 
Borough of Tower Hamlets represented approximately 1% of local 
government expenditure in England and Wales and therefore its share 
of these spending cuts was likely to be of that order. London Councils 
had undertaken a more sophisticated analysis which projected the 
LBTH share of the cuts to be £8.5 to £10 million. 

• Action was required immediately to close the savings gap and mitigate 
the risk of the Authority overspending in 2010/11. Officers had already 
actioned a temporary moratorium on new spend in the areas funded by 
grants likely to be the focus of the Government cuts.  

• Government has also announced that ring-fenced grants to Local 
Government of a similar amount would have the ring-fence removed, 
which would allow for a more creative approach to meeting the savings 
gap across both the pool of grants and other Council budgets. 

• It was intended that proposals of the scale required to meet the savings 
gap were submitted to the July Cabinet for consideration. 

 
Councillor Edgar, Lead Member Resources, in proposing the tabled motion: - 
Commented: 
• That the announcement of £6.2 billion of in year spending cuts was a 

major decision and a substantial figure which gave rise to concerns of 

Page 23



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

20 

damaging the economic recovery if not a “double dip” recession. 
Concerns which had been shared by the Liberal Democrat “shadow 
chancellor”, Mr Vince Cable, before the General Election and Coalition 
Government. 

• Tower Hamlets like other areas of high deprivation was dependent on 
the Government funding to carry out its activities and many areas were 
touched by this development, such as services for young people, 
activities to address anti-social behaviour and work with housing 
associations to provide housing and address overcrowding. 

• It was essential that the process of identifying the savings needed was 
focused on the protection of front line services and the protection of the 
Community in the interest of all its residents. This was even more 
important when some of these residents would rely on Council services 
as a consequence of the impact of public sector cuts. 

• He was confident that despite the scale of the savings, given the past 
record of the Authority in achieving efficiency savings, the organisation 
would identify ways to make the required savings. He considered that 
as part of this process Officers should be asked to: 
o Examine whether efficiency savings in the pipeline for 2010/11 

could be brought forward. 
o Undertake detailed work to ensure the Authority optimised its 

use of space and in particular with a view to vacating Anchorage 
House [Clove Crescent, London E14]. 

o Review workforce productivity arrangements particularly with 
reference to agency and temporary staff. 

o Examine the Members Allowances Scheme with a view to 
making savings. 

o Scrutinise grants effected by Government cuts to identify 
opportunities for efficiency savings in the back office rather than 
front line and opportunities as a result of de ring-fencing. 

 
A discussion followed, during which the proposals in the report were 
endorsed, and which focused on the following points:- 
• Councillor Edgar, Lead Member Resources thanked for bringing the 

proposals in the tabled motion forward to Cabinet. 
• Noted that London Councils had analysed the cuts announced and 

produced a list of Councils that would lose out. Tower Hamlets was at 
the top with most to lose, alongside Newham and Hackney, whilst 
Kensington and Chelsea were at the bottom, with least to lose.  

• The Coalition Government was considered to be lying shamefully about 
its approach to savings in public sector spending, as the swingeing 
cuts fell on the most deprived and needy. The Government approach 
was also considered to be shameful in a strategic sense: with 
mainstream grant, that all local authorities received, not targeted for 
cuts; but specialist grants directed at supporting the most vulnerable 
and deprived, such as those in poverty or with disabilities, targeted for 
cuts. This impacted on Tower Hamlets disproportionately, as it was 
acknowledged to be one of the most deprived in the country. 

• The Authority had a track record of efficient service delivery, having 
achieved £5 million in efficiency savings over the last 5 years. This had 

Page 24



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

21 

been difficult to achieve, so the prospect of identifying savings in the 
order of £10 million in year was daunting.  

• The proposed approach of protecting frontline services and focusing 
savings on the back office was endorsed. It was considered sensible to 
endeavour to take some of the savings now that had been planned for 
future years. It was acknowledged that the Council would also need to 
reduce the footprint of its activities and squeeze all grants so every 
penny available was channelled to frontline services. This was the start 
of a very painful process for local residents and would change the way 
they lived much more than it would people of backgrounds such as the 
Prime Minister. 

• Anger and frustration was expressed at the delay in Government 
communicating the detail of the spending cuts, which exacerbated the 
situation and the process of meeting the savings gap. 

• A Liberal Democrat Member, speaking with the consent of the Cabinet: 
• Commented that prior to the Election the former Leader of the 

Council had publicly acknowledged that fiscal tightening would 
occur whatever the political composition of the next Government. 

• Commented that the Authority had in recent years adopted a 
prudent approach to its finances, which the Liberal Democrat 
Group had supported. Considered in that context, and given the 
severity of the fiscal situation, a cross party process of 
identifying savings, that did not impact on front line services, 
would be constructive. 

• Expressed dismay that the proposed cuts would impact 
disproportionately on Tower Hamlets and the most needy in the 
Community, and offered support in the lobbying of the Coalition 
Government in this regard. 

• Whilst cross party support in lobbying Government in respect of the 
spending cuts for local government and Tower Hamlets in particular 
was welcome, these were in part due to the Liberal Democrat 
participation in the Coalition Government and support for the 
Conservative cuts agenda, a policy it had not espoused during the 
General Election campaign. 

 
The Chair considered that it was essential to be proactive and work together 
to identify a way to meet the savings gap, and accordingly formally Seconded 
the motion as tabled; and it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the priority in responding to public sector spending cuts made by 

the Government should be to focus on protecting the delivery of 
frontline services, in particular, our priority of a achieving a safe and 
secure community for all our residents; 

 
2. That the record of the Council in achieving significant efficiency savings 

in previous years, be noted; 
 

Page 25



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

22 

3. That the contents of the report (CAB 009/101) be noted, and Officers 
be commissioned to undertake the following activity: 

 
a) Consider whether efficiency proposals in the pipeline for the 

financial year 2011/12 can be brought forward into this financial 
year. 

 
b) Carry out detailed work on vacating Anchorage House to allow a 

decision to be made in the summer, review workforce 
productivity arrangements with specific reference to the 
deployment of agency and temporary workers, and the 
Members’ Scheme. 

 
c) Scrutinise the allocation of grants in–scope for Government 

reduction and identify opportunities for efficiency savings, in 
particular those that might arise in the back office and those that 
may become available as a result of un-ring fencing. 

 
 

12. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR INFORMATION  
 
 

12.1 Cabinet Terms of Reference and Membership (CAB 006/101)  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the contents of the report (CAB 006/101) be noted.  
 
 

12.2 Cabinet Sub-Bodies Terms of Reference and Membership (CAB 007/101)  
 
Please note that the order of business was varied by resolution of the Cabinet 
earlier in the proceedings in order to allow this item to be considered within 
the section of the agenda for unrestricted reports for consideration at agenda 
item 10 “One Tower Hamlets”, however for ease of reference the deliberations 
of the Cabinet, and subsequent decisions taken, are set out below in the order 
detailed in the agenda. 
 
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that he had Tabled a Motion for 
the consideration of members of the Cabinet, a copy of which would be 
interleaved with the minutes.   
 
The short discussion that followed focused on the points set out below:- 
• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given regarding the 

establishment and membership of the King George’s Fields Charity 
Board. 

Page 26



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

23 

• Clarification/ assurance was sought and given as to whether the Grants 
Appeals Panel had met in the previous Municipal Year and whether it 
was still required. 

 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that he understood that the 
Authority’s constitution currently required an appeals mechanism to be in 
place for grant applicants wishing to appeals decisions made by the Grants 
Panel; however it would be appropriate for the Constitutional Working Party to 
examine whether the future establishment of a Grants Appeals Panel 
remained appropriate. Accordingly the Chair formally Moved the motion as 
tabled, together with the following additional proposal for the consideration of 
members of the Cabinet:- 
“That the Constitutional Working Party examine whether the future 
establishment of a Grants Appeals Panel remains appropriate.” 
 
and it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the establishment of the Sub-Bodies listed at (a) and (b) below, to 

discharge functions on behalf of the Cabinet, with Terms of Reference, 
Membership and Quorum as set out in paragraphs 6.1 and 6.2 of the 
report (CAB 007/101), be agreed: 

 
(a) Grants Panel 
(b) Grants Appeals Panel 

 
2) That the appointments to the Grants Panel and Grants Appeals Panel 

until 21 October 2010 in the Municipal Year 2010/2011, as set out 
below, be agreed: - 

 
Grants Panel 
 
Members 
 

Substitutes 
Councillor Helal Abbas 
 

Councillor Marc Francis 
 

Councillor David Edgar 
 

Councillor Abdal Ullah 
 

Councillor Denise Jones 
 

 
Councillor  Joshua Peck 
 

 
Councillor Shiria Khatun 
 

 
 

Grants Appeals Panel 
 
Members 
 

Substitutes 

Page 27



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

24 

Councillor Rachael Saunders 
 

Councillor Shahed Ali 
 

Councillor Sirajul Islam 
 

 
 
3) That the Constitutional Working Party examine whether the future 

establishment of a Grants Appeals Panel remains appropriate. 
 
 

12.3 Exercise of Corporate Director Discretions (CAB 008/101)  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That the exercise of Corporate Directors’ discretions as set out in Appendix 1 
of the report (CAB 008/101) be noted. 
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved:  
 
That pursuant to regulation 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2000, the press 
and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting: 
 
(a) As it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted in 

Section Two of the agenda, that if members of the public were present 
during consideration of this business there would be disclosure of 
exempt information. 

 
• Exempt information is defined in section 100I and, by reference, 

Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the 1972 Act”).  
To be exempt, information must fall within one of the categories 
listed in paragraphs 1 to 7 of Schedule 12A, must not fall within 
one of the excluded categories in paragraphs 8 and 9 and the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption must outweigh the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
o Agenda item 14. “Exempt/ Confidential Minutes” (of the 

meeting of the Cabinet held on 7th April 2010) contained 
information  
� Relating to any individual. 
� The financial or business affairs of any particular 

person (including the authority holding that 
information). 

� Any action taken or to be taken in connection with 
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

 

Page 28



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

25 

(b) As although there is a public interest favouring public access to local 
authority meetings, in this case the Cabinet concluded that given the 
information contained in: 

 
• Agenda Item 14. “Exempt/ Confidential Minutes” (of the meeting 

of the Cabinet held on 7th April 2010) relating to  
o any individual. 
o The financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information). 
o Any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 

prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 
that the public interest in maintaining the exemption on the 
information outweighed the public interest in disclosing it.  

 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF EXEMPT PROCEEDINGS 
 
 
 

14. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 
Minutes of Cabinet meeting held on 7th April 2010 amended. 
 
Motion from the Chair agreed. 
 
 

15. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

15.1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to Exempt / 
Confidential Business to be considered.  
 
Nil Items.  
 
 

15.2 Any Exempt / Confidential Decisions "Called in" by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee  
 
Nil Items.  
 

16. A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE  
 
Nil Items. 
 

17. A PROSPEROUS COMMUNITY  
 
Nil Items. 
 

18. A SAFE AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITY  

Page 29



CABINET, 09/06/2010 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

26 

 
Nil Items. 
 

19. A HEALTHY COMMUNITY  
 
Nil Items. 
 

20. ONE TOWER HAMLETS  
 
Nil Items. 
 

21. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE 
URGENT  
 
Nil Items. 
 

22. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR INFORMATION  
 
Nil Items. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 7.50 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Helal Abbas 
Cabinet 

 

Page 30



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
07 July 2010 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director  
Communities, Localities and Culture 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Heather Bonfield – Service Head Culture 
Judith St. John, Head of Idea Store 
 

Title:  
Idea Store Strategy Action Plan Update -
Idea Store Watney Market and One Stop 
Shop 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 Cllr Denise Jones, Lead Member for Culture and 

Creative Industries 
Community Plan Theme 
  A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
Strategic Priority 
 Strengthen and connect communities 

Work efficiently and effectively as One Council  
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Idea Store Strategy, which was renewed last year, demonstrated the 

continuing need for a network of seven Idea Stores within the Borough as 
set out in the original strategy. It introduced a new, innovative, smaller Idea 
Store model that would facilitate the completion of this network within a 
much tougher financial climate whilst still delivering many of the benefits of 
the larger Idea Stores. One aim of the Strategy was to explore and pursue 
the potential for creating an Idea Store in the Watney Market area as the 
existing library was inadequate to meet local needs. This work has 
progressed substantially.  

 
1.2 This report provides an overall update on the Strategy Action Plan and 

presents detailed proposals for the creation of an Idea Store at Watney 
Market. It requests a number of urgent related decisions necessary to secure 
£2m of time limited Big Lottery funding including the appropriation of the site 
for planning purposes and progress the project to implementation.  

 
1.3 Following endorsement of the scheme by the Asset Management and 

Capital Strategy Board on 24 May 2010 the report seeks approval for the 
adoption of a Capital Estimate required to deliver the new Idea Store and a 
new One Stop Shop in Watney Market as part of a joint capital project 
between Communities Localities and Culture and the Resources 
Directorates. The Project will then proceed subject to planning approval, 
compliance with corporate procurement protocols and further community 
engagement specific to the development of detailed design.  

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 31



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
 
 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 receive the update on progress on the Idea Store Strategy Action Plan and 

comment accordingly. 
2.2 authorise the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture to 

enter into a grant funding agreement with the BLF to secure the £2m of 
funding provisionally allocated to the project. 

2.3 approve the inclusion of the scheme within the capital programme and adopt 
a Capital Estimate for the sum of £4,101,000 for the delivery of the Idea 
Store Metro and One Stop Shop at Watney Market. 

2.4 authorise the Corporate Director Development and Renewal to facilitate the 
allocation of S106 commuted sums as part-finance for the scheme as set out 
in the capital profile attached to this report as a matter of priority.  

2.5 authorise the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture to 
proceed with building procurement in accordance with Council’s financial 
and procurement protocols subject to planning permission and 2.8 below. 

2.6 approve the use of the council owned plot of land listed in Appendix 1 for 
development of the new Idea Store Metro and One Stop Shop. 

2.7  Approve the appropriation with immediate effect of the site for planning 
purposes pursuant to Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The need for an Idea Store at Watney Market has been identified by the Idea 

Store Strategy and would replace a sub standard library housed in a small 
shop unit.  

3.2 The BLF award is time-limited and the project needs to be agreed by 
Members and put before the Planning Committee in order to meet the 
requirements of this award. 

3.3 The co-location of the Idea Store and One Stop Shop will enable the Council 
to deliver more efficient and localised services in keeping with both the 
Community Plan and the Strategic Plan Priorities. 

3.4 The emerging Town Centre Implementation Programme identifies Watney 
Market as one of three priority town centres for improvement, expansion and 
development.  Community facilities form a key element of town centres and 
an Idea Store and One Stop Shop in this location would enhance the offer to 
local residents and businesses.   

3.5 The site is vested with the HRA and needs to be transferred to the general 
account by way of appropriation, appropriation from the HRA for planning 
purposes will also override any encumbrances on the site that may hinder 
the proposed development of the Idea Store on the site..    

 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The ‘do nothing’ option is not considered viable due to the inadequate nature 

of existing library facilities in the Watney Market area and the urgent need to 
find alternative and improved accommodation for the local one stop shop to 
improve one stop shop customer experience and free up Cheviot House as a 
capital asset which is currently a significant revenue liability.  

 
4.2 The award of £2,000,000 funding from BLF is time limited and dependent on 

the Council’s timely commitment to the development.  The funded facility 
must be open as a condition of the funding by April 2012. A swift decision to 
move forward with the scheme is required by the Council in order to 
safeguard the £2m BLF funding and ensure related conditions are met. If the 
BLF is not secured now any new proposals to relocate Watney Market 
Library and the One Stop Shop in the future would require alternative 
sources of funding to be identified as this funding stream will not be available 
in the future.  

 
4.3  There are no opportunities to expand the existing library by increasing its 

presence in the Watney Market shopping parade by taking up more shop 
units. Even if this were possible this would deprive the shopping centre of 
commercial space and make it harder to achieve a critical mass of traders to 
sustain the centre in the future. The proposed option retains the benefit of 
the Idea Store acting as an effective anchor store for the Watney Market 
traders by drawing repeat visits to the retail area whilst maximizing the ability 
of that retail area to develop.  

 
4.4 By linking the Idea Store project and the One Stop Shop Project capital and 

revenue efficiencies are gained that allow for an improved offer to be 
delivered for both services in the locality. The new One Stop Shop would 
cost less to run and the revenue can be transferred to provide the additional 
budget necessary to deliver extended services in the new Idea Store. It 
would not be financially viable to construct an idea Store without this project 
link as a capital short fall of £800,000 would result and the revenue available 
to operate the new Idea Store facility would be insufficient to enhance the 
service to meet local need. Additional funding would need to be found.     

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The revised Idea Store Strategy, approved in July 2009 included a Years 1- 

2 Action Plan.  The Strategy revisited the needs analysis that underpinned 
the successful introduction of the Idea Store Concept eight years earlier and 
established that the areas of need and opportunity remained the same. The 
original premise that a network of seven Idea Stores in specific locations 
close to shopping centres would be the most effective spatial distribution to 
meet local needs was reaffirmed. At the same time it introduced the concept 
of a smaller generation of Idea Stores (An outline of the new smaller Idea 

Page 33



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Store concept is provided in Appendix 3) and the potential across the 
network to deliver a wider service offer by developing more effective links 
with relevant service providers. The action plan set out key initiatives in order 
to :- 
• Improve the quality and scope of core library and information services 

provided by Idea Stores and Libraries 
• Improve the quality and scope of core adult learning services 
• Expand the provision of high quality health information, advice and 

support in Idea Stores and Libraries 
 
5.2 It continued to identify both the need and potential for one of the new 

generation of Idea Stores in Watney Market 
 
6. UPDATE ON THE IDEA STORE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN  
 
6.1 Action Plan 
 An updated copy of the Idea Store Strategy Year 1-2 Action Plan is attached 

at Appendix 2. Of the 54 activities included in the action plan 31 have been 
completed and 12 are ongoing and of a medium-term nature and the 
remaining 11 are currently underway. Particular successes include: 

 
• The renewed focus on core reading services to improve the reader offer 

has been highly successful, resulting in a significant increase in lending. 
Issues rose by 10% between 08/09 and 09/10 and have now topped 1m. 

• Individual visits to Idea Stores and Libraries continue to rise and in 
2009/10 rose to 2,071,933 (or 9,396.52 visits per 1,000 residents). 

• The integration of future Idea Store infrastructure demands into the Local 
Development Core Strategy, which has identified areas of search for 
various types of social infrastructure. 

• Work to secure possible future infrastructure through the planning 
contributions process on key development sites is starting to establish 
clear and potentially viable options to inform future decision making.  

• The process of integrating lifelong learning, library and information 
services under a unified management structure within the Communities, 
Localities & Culture Directorate has started and will enable a more 
integrated and seamless customer offer in line with the Idea Store Sub 
Brand. 

 
7. IDEA STORE METRO WATNEY MARKET AND ONE STOP SHOP: WORK 

TO DATE AND KEY CONTEXT 
 
7.1 The Idea Store Strategy has identified the ongoing need for facilities in the 

Watney Market area. This was on the grounds that the current library facility 
in the market area is inadequate to meet local needs and could not be 
converted to meet the operational or presentational requirements of an Idea 
Store.   

 
7.2 To this end the opportunity site identified by this report (Appendix 1) was 

researched and an outline proposal submitted to the Big Lottery Fund.  A 

Page 34



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

BLF grant of £2m has been agreed in principle and awaits Council 
endorsement of the scheme in order to secure it.   

 
7.3 The BLF Community Library Funding Programme ends in March 2013.  

Conditions of the funding require the funded project to have been operational 
for one year before the programme ends. This requires the proposed 
building to be open by March/April 2012. Whilst this sounds like a long time it 
is tight for a capital project of this complexity to be delivered. It is essential 
that a decision to progress is made as quickly as possible to ensure that the 
build programme can be delivered within this tight time frame.  

 
7.4 The opportunity site is immediately adjacent to the northern access to the 

Market with a strong frontage to Commercial Road. From a location 
perspective it is considered compatible with the Idea Store Strategy analysis. 
It is also compatible with the objectives of the LDF to focus community 
facilities within town or district centres. The site is vested with the HRA and 
will need to be transferred out of HRA control before the scheme can 
progress. This is dealt with in section 8.6 below. 

 
7.5 As part of a move to multi-agency One Stop Shops, the replacement of the 

current Cheviot One Stop Shop (close to the opportunity site on the other 
side of Commercial Road) and potential co-location with the Idea Store 
Metro would enable economies of scale in procurement and construction. In 
addition the relocation of the One Stop Shop facility would enable the 
release of Cheviot House for alternative use and free up two shop units in 
Watney Market potentially extending the retail offer.   

 
7.6 In light of the above, the Asset Management and Capital Strategy Board at 

its meeting on 24 September 2009, approved the commissioning of a 
feasibility study to look at the proposed co-location of the Idea Store and 
One Stop Shop within Watney Town Centre (Idea Store Metro Watney 
Market feasibility study, attached at Appendix 3).  The project was 
considered and approved by the Asset Management and Capital Strategy 
Board on 24 May 2010. 

 
7.7 The work to date has established that there is: 

• A suitable and available development site already in Council ownership 
and attracting, therefore, no purchase cost.  

• A preferred procurement model using Design and Build  
• A design that fulfils LBTH requirements for an Idea Store and a new 

one stop shop and that is acceptable in principle to the Planning Dept. 
• A viable funding plan including £2m of Big Lottery Funding. 

 
 
8. THE SCHEME 
 
8.1 The scheme proposes that the Idea Store Metro will be located on 

Commercial Road, directly in front of the Western block of the Watney Market 
development (the site plan is attached at Appendix 1).  The proposal is for a 

Page 35



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

striking, highly visible three-storey building presenting its main façade to 
Commercial Road thus helping to re enforce the entrance to the market and 
shops.   

 
8.2 The planned provision for Idea Store Watney Market is for 1,389 m² to deliver: 

• Adult and children’s library with learning activities for all ages  
• Surfing space providing free public internet access 
• Flexible learning spaces. These will provide both formal and informal 

learning activities 
• Health advice and information services 
• Single Access Point.  This initiative would provide a wide range of 

joined-up services that help to address the multiple barriers to 
employment in order to support people into work 

• Meeting and activity space for community groups 
• Display areas for local artists and exhibitions 
• Storage 
• Public and staff toilets 
• Staff room  
 

8.3 The development of this new Idea Store ‘Metro’ style facility will enable the 
transfer into modern accessible facilities of the existing provision at Watney 
Market Library.  In addition, 122m² of the total space will be provided to 
replace the existing Cheviot One Stop Shop providing a pleasant and 
accessible customer environment that significantly improves upon the 
existing accommodation.  This service will be located on the ground floor 
and share “back room” support space such as staff room, wcs, etc.  It is 
envisaged that both Watney Market Library and Cheviot One Stop Shop will 
remain open throughout the construction period and will close once the new 
building is opened. The improved idea store space will attract higher visitor 
numbers than the existing library to the Watney Market area effectively 
enhancing the ‘anchor store’ effect of the facility for the shopping centre and 
boosting the local economy.    

 
8.4 Capital Costs 
8.4.1 This report recommends that the facility be developed on existing Council 

owned land.  The capital cost of the building construction is estimated at 
£4.101million assuming a Design and Build approach.   

 
8.4.2 In order for the scheme to proceed, the following capital receipts have been 

identified: 
 
Construction of Building:  
Funding Design & Build 
Big Lottery Fund £2,000,000
One Stop Shop contribution £1,000,000
Section106 contribution* £1,101,000
TOTAL    £ 4,101,000

 

Page 36



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

* S106 already triggered. Ref. PA/07/02193. Available to deliver cultural products.  
8.5 Revenue Costs 
8.5.1 The proposed service model of combining the Idea Store and OSS services 

will be further refined but show that the new building can deliver the 
enhanced Idea Store services of 60 operating hours and retain the OSS 
operating hours with no increase in the overall current revenue levels: 
 

 
Watney Market 

Library 
Cheviot One 
Stop Shop Total 

Idea Store 
Metro*/OSS+ 

Total 
Frontline salaries  £339,578   £434,206   £ 773,784  £ 704,000  
Premises and 
running costs  £  44,600   £145,560   £ 190,160  £ 200,000  
Total  £384,178   £579,766   £ 963,944  £ 904,000  
Total weekly 
operating hours  46 hours   44 hours   -   60 hours*  

    
+ OSS operating 
hours unchanged 

 
8.5.2 The model is considered efficient in that it offers increased hours of access 

and a significant increase in the range and quality of services, with increased 
hours of access and delivering a minimum £60k revenue saving.  

 
8.5.3 The business model vests all building management responsibilities with the 

Idea Stores. The premises related costs of operating the improved Idea Store 
facilities for 60 hours a week are £200,000. Current library revenue available 
is £44,600.  The current premises and running costs for the Cheviot One Stop 
Shop is £145,560.  The cessation of the OSS occupancy of Cheviot House 
will result in some immediate savings to the FM budget. Given that the OSS 
would not be picking up premises and running costs in the new building and in 
order to facilitate the improved OSS and Idea Store offer £50k of this budget 
will be vired from the FM budget to the Idea Store Service in the year the 
building becomes operational with the residual £105,400k being addressed 
within the existing CLC budget envelope.  

 
8.5.4 As an additional benefit the scheme frees up two retail units currently 

occupied by the Watney Market Library that can also start to contribute to the 
local economy.   

 
8.6 Implications for the HRA. 
 
8.6.1 The Opportunity Site identified in Appendix 1 has been confirmed as being 

vested with the HRA. The site would therefore need to be transferred to the 
General Fund for the scheme to progress and this report makes that 
recommendation. The site has been independently valued and has a nil value. 
There are no compensation requirements for the HRA as a result. For the 
same reason there are no implications for Housing Subsidy. This has been 
confirmed by Development and Renewal Finance.  

Page 37



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
     

8.7 Community Consultation 
8.7.1 A Community Engagement Plan has been submitted to the BLF.  The ongoing 

success of the Idea Store programme from its inception in Idea Store Bow has 
been a result of engaging with local communities, and ensuring that the Idea 
Stores answer specific local needs and encourage a high degree of public 
‘ownership’. The Idea Stores started with one of the largest ever public 
consultations about public libraries, from which came some of the core 
principles to do with design, location and offer.  Subsequent focus groups 
provided valuable feedback data for the ongoing programme. On going 
consultation will take place via LAPs and the Community Consultation 
Service. 
 

9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
9.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to adopt a Capital Estimate of £4,101,000 

for the Idea Store Metro scheme, to be funded from the Big Lottery fund, the 
One Stop Shop Local Priorities Programme allocation and contributions from 
Section 106, as outlined in paragraph 8.4.2.  

 
9.2 The total revenue budget currently available, for both the Watney Market 

Library and Cheviot One Stop shop is £964k. The report identifies an on-going 
revenue funding gap of approximately £160,000 per annum to pay for the 
facilities management costs of the new building compared with the facilities 
management budget for the Watney Market Library.  To help fill this gap, 
officers recommend that 50k of the Cheviot House premises and running 
costs budget of £145,000 currently held within the facilities management 
Budget of the Resources Directorate be transferred to the Idea Stores Budget 
within CLC in the year that the building becomes operational, as they will be 
responsible for managing the building. The remainder of the budget 
adjustment would be met from within CLC.   

 
9.3 The transfer of freehold interests from the Housing Revenue Account to the 

General Fund could under normal circumstances have significant financial 
implications for the HRA arising from the mechanics of the Housing Subsidy 
system. However, as appropriation takes place at certified market value, 
which in this instance has been independently considered to be nil, the impact 
is neutral.  

 
 
10. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
10.1. This report seeks authority for the appropriation for planning purposes of land 

owned by the Council being the site of the proposed Idea Store at Watney 
Market identified in Appendix 1 under Section 122 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 this will enable the powers in Section 237 of the Town and Country 

Page 38



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Planning Act 1990 to be used to facilitate the comprehensive development of 
the proposed Idea Store as set out in this report. 

 
10.2. The Council holds property for various statutory purposes in order to provide 

its various functions for example housing purposes.  The site identified by this 
report is currently held in the HRA such land is used only for such purposes 
until it is disposed of or “appropriated“ for another purpose. Appropriation is 
the statutory method to change land from being held for one purpose to 
another and the procedure for doing this is laid down in Section 122 of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 
10.3. Land is held by the Council subject to any third party legal rights.  However if 

the land has been formally appropriated for planning purposes then Section 
237 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides a statutory power to 
override easements and other rights following the grant of planning 
permission for the development of land. The rights that are overridden convert 
these rights into compensation which is payable to any person suffering loss.  
It also removes the potential for such owners to frustrate development by way 
of injunction and delay. 

 
 
11. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
11.1 The scheme addresses the Community Plan theme of A Great Place to Live 

and Strategic Plan Priority 2.2: Strengthen and connect communities by 
providing enhanced services that support parenting, child development, after 
school activities, cultural development, self help, information way finding and 
cohesion.  Idea Stores are also working with the Local Strategic Partnership 
to provide more efficient and localised services and in particular better local 
health information.  It delivers One Tower Hamlets Priority 1.2: Work 
efficiently and effectively as One Council in helping to deliver the Local 
Priorities Programme. Idea Stores play a major role in bringing communities 
from different backgrounds together and in promoting community cohesion. 
It also delivers targeted lifelong learning services that help disadvantaged 
communities overcome inequality in the jobs market and poverty.  

 
12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
12.1 Sustainability is integral to the proposed design of the Idea Store Metro.  The 

building has the potential to exceed current targets for energy usage and 
renewable energy provision (as per the Great London Authority 20% carbon 
reduction target). The design will also achieve BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating. 

12.2 Social sustainability 
The Idea Store provides access to information and services that help 
promote lifelong learning and improve health and well being.  Through 
services such as free internet access, lifelong learning, cultural activities and 
local history and events, the Idea Store provides a practical way to support 
community cohesion, one of the key principles of the Borough’s vision. 

12.3 Sustainable technologies 

Page 39



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

The Idea Store will employ good practice in its design to make the best use 
of environmental resources, through management of water and waste 
resources and efficient design to minimise carbon emissions.   

12.4 Economic sustainability 
The Idea Store offers equality of opportunity by providing information and 
services to meet the needs of Tower Hamlets’ diverse population.  
Specifically, lifelong learning can help tackle employment skills and improve 
access to employment opportunities, benefiting both the unemployed and 
the employed. Connecting with young people, such as engaging them to 
develop learning programmes for their peers, is one of the practical ways 
that the Idea Store can complement education. Economic sustainability of 
the Watney Market locality, for existing and future businesses, will be 
improved by the proposed regeneration of the area. 

 
 
13. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1 The project risks relate to the delivery of the Idea Store rather than the 

ongoing operation of the Idea Store. Appropriate contingencies in both the 
Project Cost Plan and Programme have been included to take account of the 
perceived project delivery risks. Risks will be monitored through out the 
project and reported to the Project Board. Updates will be provided to the 
Asset Management and Capital Strategy Board. 

 
14. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 The proposals do not contribute directly to the reduction of crime and 

disorder.  
  
15. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
15.1 The service model brings together two service areas within one building with 

shared back office space. The model offers increased hours of access and a 
significant increase in the range and quality of services, whilst incurring no 
additional revenue costs. 

  
15.2 The new building will be built on redundant land, utilising the latest 

construction techniques and will therefore deliver a more eco friendly building. 
A reduction in carbon emissions compared to the current buildings in use will 
translate into savings on CO2 penalties. 

 
15.3 The current buildings are a significant drain on revenue resources and 

therefore by vacating, a capital asset will become available, as will retail units 
which could produce a revenue stream. 

 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Site Plan 

Page 40



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\4\3\AI00025346\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Appendix 2 – Updated Idea Store Strategy Year 1-2 Action Plan 
Appendix 3 -  Idea Store ‘Metro’ outline of services. 

 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

none N/A 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Underground Railway

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 H

o
u
s
in

g

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 B

u
ild

in
g

 A
re

a
4

6
3

 s
q
m

B
u
s
 S

h
e

lt
e
r

WATNEY MARKET

HAINTON CLOSE

CAVELL ST

V
e

n
t

S
h

a
ft

E
a

s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 U

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

 L
in

e

2
m

 E
a

s
e

m
e

n
t 
T

B
C

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 R

O
A

D

1
0

2
2

 S
t 
J
a

m
e

s
's

 W
a

lk
, 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 E

C
1

R
 0

A
P

T
 +

4
4

[0
]2

0
 7

2
5

0
 0

4
4
0

F
 +

4
4

[0
]2

0
 7

2
5

0
 3

3
8
2

in
fo

@
b

is
s
e

ta
d

a
m

s
.c

o
.u

k
w

w
w

.b
is

s
e

ta
d

a
m

s
.c

o
.u

k

A
R
C
H

IT
E
C
T
U

R
E
 A

N
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

b
is

s
e
t
 a

d
a
m

s

N
o

te
s

R
e

v
is

io
n

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t
D

a
te

N
O

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 S

C
A

L
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
IS

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

. 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 /
 M

A
N

U
F

A
C

T
U

R
E

R
 I

S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 F

O
R

 C
H

E
C

K
IN

G
 A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 Q

U
E

R
Y

IN
G

 A
N

Y
 D

IS
C

R
E

P
A

N
C

IE
S

. 

T
H

IS
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 O

F
 B

IS
S

E
T

 A
D

A
M

S
 L

T
D

. 
C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 I

S
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

M
 A

N
D

 T
H

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 I

S
 I
S

S
U

E
D

 O
N

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 T

H
A

T
 I
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 C

O
P

IE
D

, 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
, 

R
E

T
A

IN
E

D
 O

R
 D

IS
C

L
O

S
E

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y

 U
N

A
U

T
H

O
R

IS
E

D
 P

E
R

S
O

N
, 

E
IT

H
E

R
 W

H
O

L
L
Y

 O
R

 I
N

 P
A

R
T
, 
W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T
. 

-
0

0
.0

0
.0

0
-

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
1

:2
0

0
 @

 A
1

P
R

ID
0

6

2
1

.1
0

.0
9

0
0

.0
0

0
-

L
O

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F
 T

O
W

E
R

 H
A

M
L

E
T

S

ID
E

A
 S

T
O

R
E

 M
E

T
R

O
W

A
T

N
E

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

T 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

C
lie

n
t

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
ra

w
n

 B
y

D
a

te

S
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
º

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

º
R

e
v
is

io
n

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 B

y
L

E
T

S

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 S

it
e
 O

ffi
c
e

1
4
.8

x
4
.2

m
 -

 6
2
 s

q
m

W
e

s
t 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

2
7

1
 s

q
m

E
a
s
t 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a

lm
5

9
5
 s

q
m

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

1 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
1. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
lib

rar
y a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s p
ro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

or
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

1.1
 Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 co

re 
rea

din
g o

ffe
r  

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
an
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e t
o s

tre
ng
the

n 
the

 re
ad
ing

 of
fer

 in
 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 Li
bra

rie
s. 
 

Ke
y i
nit
iat
ive

s i
nc
lud

e: 
• 

Ca
rry

 ou
t m

ark
et 
res

ea
rch

 on
 cu

sto
me

r re
ad
ing

 
an
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ne

ed
s a

nd
 pr

efe
ren

ce
s, 
an
d 

int
rod

uc
e c

on
tin
uo
us
 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
  

• 
Im
pro

ve
 st
oc
k s

ele
cti
on
 an

d p
roc

ure
me

nt 
(br

ea
dth

, d
ep
th 
an
d q

ua
nti
ty 
of 
sto

ck
; s
pa
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt;
 st
oc
k c

irc
ula

tio
n; 
va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne
y; 
sto

ck
 pr

om
oti
on
) 

• 
Im
pro

ve
 st
oc
k m

an
ag
em

en
t (p

roc
ed
ure

s, 
pro

cu
rem

en
t m

eth
od
s, 
sy
ste

ms
, c
on
tro

ls,
 

rep
ort

s, 
rou

tin
es
) 

• 
Im
pro

ve
 th
e v

alu
e f
or 
mo

ne
y o

f b
oo
k s

toc
k 

(su
pp
ly 
ch
ain

, m
ak
ing

 th
e L

on
do
n l
ibr
ary

 
co
ns
ort

ium
 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e, 
im
pro

vin
g c

os
t a
nd
 

sp
ee
d o

f d
eli
ve
ry,
 an

d i
nte

rna
l o
pe
rat

ion
s) 

• 
Im
pro

ve
 fa
cili
tie
s, 
sta

ff c
ap
ab
ility

 an
d s

tor
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
(sp

ac
e a

llo
ca
tio
n, 
flo
or 

an
d 

win
do
w 
dis

pla
ys
, s
ign

ag
e, 
sta

ff m
an
ag
em

en
t, 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
)  

 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Ka
te 

Pit
ma

n 
De

tai
led

 pl
an
nin

g o
f in

itia
tiv
es
 

co
mp

let
ed
 by

 Ju
ly 
20
09
 

Sta
nd
ard

s o
n p

res
en
tat
ion

 of
 

sto
ck
 ad

op
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

La
yo
ut 
of 
ISW

 re
vie

we
d b

y J
uly

 
20
09
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e s

toc
k 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pil
ot 

Re
fre

sh
 of
 st
oc
k a

cro
ss
 th
e 

ne
tw
ork

 un
de
rta
ke
n b

y 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Im
pro

ve
d s

ign
ag
e a

t IS
W
 as

 
pa
rt o

f th
e s

toc
k i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

pil
ot 
by
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 

Page 45



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

2 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
1. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
lib

rar
y a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s p
ro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

or
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

1.2
 Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
inf

or
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
an
d r

efr
es
h t
he
 qu

ali
ty 
of 
inf
orm

ati
on
 se

rvi
ce
s 

pro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 Li
bra

rie
s. 
 

Ke
y d

eli
ve
rab

les
 in
clu

de
: 

• 
Cle

arl
y a

rtic
ula

tin
g t
he
 sc

op
e o

f in
for

ma
tio
n 

an
d e

ve
nts

 of
fer

ed
 at
 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 Li
bra

rie
s 

– p
art

icu
lar
ly 
the

ir r
ole

 in
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 a 
pla

tfo
rm

 
for

 co
mm

un
ity
 in
for

ma
tio
n  

• 
Im
ple

me
nti
ng
 a 
se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
pla

n t
o 

im
pro

ve
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 Lo

ca
l H

ist
ory

 Li
bra

ry 
an
d 

Ar
ch
ive

s s
erv

ice
s 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

De
nis

e B
an

gs
 

Ta
ms

in 
Bo

ok
ey
 

Ag
ree

 sc
op
e f
or 
rev

iew
ing

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d a
dv
ice

 se
rvi
ce
s 

by
 Au

gu
st 
20
09
 

Ini
tia
te 
rev

iew
 pr

oje
ct 
by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09
 

Ne
w 
se
rvi
ce
 m
od
el 
for

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 se

rvi
ce
s i
n I
de
a 

Sto
res

 de
vis

ed
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

He
rita

ge
 M
an
ag
er 

ap
po
int
ed
 by

 
Ma

y 2
00
9 

De
sig

n a
nd
 te
nd
er 

pro
ce
ss
 fo
r 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 Ba

nc
rof
t 

Lib
rar

y c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

W
ork

s a
t B

an
cro

ft L
ibr
ary

 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
9 

He
rita

ge
 St

rat
eg
y f
or 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml
ets

 id
en
tify

ing
 fu
tur
e 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
Ba

nc
rof

t L
oc
al 

His
tor

y L
ibr
ary

 an
d A

rch
ive

s 
ad
op
ted

 by
 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Re
vis

ed
 co

mp
let
ion

 da
te 
for

 
ini
tia
l w

ork
s p

ac
ka
ge
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10
 

Bu
ild
ing

 M
as
ter

 Pl
an
 un

de
r 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

Th
e L

oc
al 
His

tor
y L

ibr
ary

 & 
Ar
ch
ive

 St
rat

eg
y f
oc
us
ing

 on
 

se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
an
d 

op
era

tio
ns
 is
 be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

se
pa
rat

ely
. 

Page 46



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

3 

 Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
1. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
lib

rar
y a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s p
ro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

or
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

1.3
 Im

pr
ov
e k

ey
 bu

sin
es
s m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro
ce
ss
es
 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 C
ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt I

mp
rov

em
en
t T
oo
lkit

 
(C
SIT

) Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n f
or 

Lib
rar

ies
 an

d I
de
a 

Sto
res

.  
Ju

dit
h S

t J
oh

n 
He

ath
er 

Bo
nfi

eld
 

CS
IT 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

nn
ing

 
co
mp

let
ed
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

pro
jec

ts 
ide

nti
fie
d b

y J
un
e 2

00
9 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

jec
ts 
ini
tia
ted

 
by
 Au

gu
st 
20
09
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

jec
ts 
co
mp

let
ed
 

– t
bc
 fo
llo
win

g c
om

ple
tio
n o

f 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

nn
ing

 st
ag
e 

On
go
ing

 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
2. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 
an

d s
co

pe
 of

 co
re 

ad
ult

 le
arn

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

2.1
 Im

pr
ov
e a

nd
 ex

pa
nd

 th
e i
nfo

rm
ati

on
, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

ign
po

sti
ng

 se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t s

up
po

rt 
lea

rn
ers

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
an
d r

efr
es
h i
nfo

rm
ati
on
, a
dv
ice

 an
d 

sig
np
os
tin
g s

erv
ice

s t
ha
t s
up
po
rt l
ea
rne

rs 
in 
Ide

a 
Sto

res
 an

d L
ibr
ari
es
.  

Ke
y d

eli
ve
rab

les
 in
clu

de
: 

• 
Re

vie
win

g e
xis

tin
g s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s  
• 

Ev
alu

ati
ng
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 cu

rre
nt 
se
rvi
ce
s –

 
inc

lud
ing

 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e C

om
mo

n 
Ins

pe
cti
on
 Fr

am
ew

ork
  

• 
Ide

nti
fyi
ng
 an

y g
ap
s i
n p

rov
isio

n 
• 

Ide
nti
fyi
ng
 fu
rth

er 
sta

ff t
rai
nin

g n
ee
ds
 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Re
vie

w 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Tra
ns
fer

 of
 st
aff
 to
 Li
fel
on
g 

Le
arn

ing
 Se

rvi
ce
 an

d n
ew

 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d a
dv
ice

 se
rvi
ce
 

in 
pla

ce
 as

 pa
rt o

f W
ide

r L
ea
rne

r 
Su

pp
ort

 Se
rvi
ce
  b
y D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f  o
the

r re
vie

w 
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s i
nit
iat
ed
 by

 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Re
vis

ed
 co

mp
let
ion

 da
te 
Ju
ly 

20
10
 

   On
go
ing

 
 

Page 47



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

4 

• 
Ma

kin
g r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s o

n i
mp

rov
ing

 
inf
orm

ati
on
, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

ign
po
sti
ng
 se

rvi
ce
s  

 

Pr
og
ram

me
 of
 st
aff
 tra

ini
ng
 fo
r 

fro
nt-

lin
e s

taf
f d
es
ign

ed
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 an

d d
eli
ve
red

 
to 
all
 re

lev
an
t s
taf
f b
y J

un
e 2

01
0  
  On

go
ing

 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
2. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 
an

d s
co

pe
 of

 co
re 

ad
ult

 le
arn

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

2.2
 R
ev
iew

 th
e l
ife

lon
g l

ea
rn
ing

 cu
rri
cu
lum

 an
d d

eli
ve
ry 

str
uc

tur
e t

o f
oc

us
 pr

ov
isi
on

 th
at 

su
pp

or
ts 

 
em

plo
ya
bil

ity
 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s  

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
the

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
an
d d

eli
ve
ry 

str
uc
tur

e t
o f
oc
us
 pr

ov
isio

n t
ha
t s
up
po
rts
  

em
plo

ya
bil
ity
  

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n  

Bu
sin

es
s r
ev
iew

s u
nd
ert

ak
en
 in
 

ea
ch
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
are

a c
om

ple
ted

 
by
 M
ay
 20

09
 

Sk
ills
 fo
r L

ife
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
ex
ten

de
d b

y a
pp
oin

tm
en
t F

TE
  

lite
rac

y a
nd
 nu

me
rac

y t
ea
ch
ing

 
sta

ff b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
9  

Se
rvi
ce
 – 
wid

e c
ros

s –
 

cu
rric

ulu
m 
em

plo
ya
bil
ity
 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 ag

ree
d a

nd
 in
tro
du
ce
d 

int
o t
he
 20

09
/10

 ac
ad
em

ic 
ye
ar 

pro
gra

mm
e  

Em
plo

ya
bil
ity
 co

re-
cu
rric

ulu
m 

un
its
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fo
r e

nri
ch
me

nt 
an
d p

rog
res

sio
n b

y M
arc

h 2
01
0  

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

  On
go
ing

 
   On

go
ing

 

Page 48



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

5 

 Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

2.3
 R
ev
iew

 of
 lif

elo
ng

 le
arn

ing
 cu

rri
cu

lum
 fo

r n
on

-ac
cre

dit
ed

 pr
ov
isi
on

 in
clu

din
g p

ers
on

al,
 co

mm
un

ity
 an

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

lea
rn
ing

 so
 th

at 
it b

ett
er 

ref
lec

ts 
co

mm
un

ity
 de

ma
nd

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s  

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
of 
life

lon
g l
ea
rni
ng
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
for

 no
n-

ac
cre

dit
ed
 pr

ov
isio

n i
nc
lud

ing
 pe

rso
na
l, c

om
mu

nit
y 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t le

arn
ing

 so
 th
at 
it b

ett
er 

ref
lec

ts 
co
mm

un
ity
 de

ma
nd
  

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Bu
sin

es
s r
ev
iew

s u
nd
ert

ak
en
 in
 

ea
ch
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
are

a c
om

ple
ted

 
by
 M
ay
 20

09
 

AC
L c

urr
icu

lum
 or

ga
nis

ed
 to
 

giv
e p

rog
res

sio
n o

pp
ort

un
itie

s 
an
d c

ou
rse

 de
sc
rip
tio
ns
 re

-
wr
itte

n a
s n

ee
de
d b

y J
uly

 20
09
 

Sy
ste

m 
for

 ga
the

rin
g I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

on
 le
arn

er 
an
d p

ote
nti
al 
lea

rne
r 

en
qu
irie

s a
re 

rou
tin
ely

 co
lle
cte

d, 
rec

ord
ed
 an

d  
mo

nit
ore

d b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
10
  

 Le
arn

er 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 ev

en
ts 
to 

be
 un

de
rta
ke
n b

y F
eb
rua

ry 
20
10
 

 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

  Un
de
rw
ay
.  R

ec
rui
tm
en
t o
f 

Le
arn

er 
Su

pp
ort

 an
d A

dv
ice

 
ma

na
ge
r to

 be
 co

mp
let
e b

y e
nd
 

of 
Ju
ne
 20

10
. 

 On
go
ing

 

       Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
3. 
Ex

pa
nd

 th
e p

ro
vis

ion
 of

 hi
gh

 qu
ali
ty 
he

alt
h i

nfo
rm

ati
on

, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

up
po

rt 
in 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
  

Page 49



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

6 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

3.1
 Ex

pa
nd

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
NH

S c
ho

ice
s p

ro
gr
am

me
s 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Ex
pa
nd
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
the

 H
ea
lth
 Tr

ain
ers

 pr
og
ram

me
 

in 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 an

d L
ibr
ari
es
.  

Th
e p

rog
ram

me
 w
ill f

oc
us
 on

: 
• 

Pr
ov
idi
ng
 in
for

ma
tio
n a

nd
 aw

are
ne
ss
 on

 
nu
trit
ion

, p
hy
sic

al 
ac
tiv
ity
 an

d s
mo

kin
g 

ce
ss
ati
on
  

• 
Sig

np
os
tin
g p

eo
ple

 in
to 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
rvi
ce
s, 

ac
tiv
itie

s, 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s r
ele

va
nt 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
eir
 he

alt
h n

ee
ds
 

• 
De

live
rin
g h

ea
lth
y l
ife
sty

le 
ac
tiv
itie

s  
• 

Pr
ov
idi
ng
 1-

to-
1 m

oti
va
tio
na
l s
up
po
rt 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Ch
ris

 Lo
vit
t 

Ide
nti
fy 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 bu

ild
 on

 
the

 su
cc
es
sfu

l h
ea
lth
 tra

ine
r 

pro
gra

mm
e i
n I
de
a S

tor
es
 by

 
Ju
ne
 20

09
 

Im
ple

me
nt 
he
alt
h t
rai
ne
r 

se
rvi
ce
s o

ne
 da

y a
 w
ee
k i
n a

ll 
fou

r Id
ea
 St

ore
s b

y S
ep
tem

be
r 

20
09
 

En
ga
ge
 N
HS

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i
n 

dis
cu
ss
ion

 ab
ou
t fu

tur
e r
e-

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of
 H
ea
lth
 

Tra
ine

rs 
an
d p

rov
isio

n f
rom

 Id
ea
 

Sto
res

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Co
mp

let
e 

  He
alt
h t
rai
ne
rs 
pro

vid
ing

 
se
rvi
ce
s a

t W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l, C

hri
sp
 

Str
ee
t a
nd
 Bo

w 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 

 On
go
ing

. N
HS

TH
 te
nd
eri
ng
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 no
t y
et 
av
ail
ab
le.
 

Ex
plo

re 
the

 op
po
rtu

nit
y t
o d

eli
ve
r fu

rth
er 

he
alt
h a

dv
ice

 
an
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 se

rvi
ce
s f
rom

 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 bu

ild
 on

 
the

 Id
ea
 St

ore
s t
o s

up
po
rt h

ea
lth
y l
ivin

g a
nd
 pu

bli
c 

he
alt
h c

am
pa
ign

s. 
Ke

y d
eli
ve
rab

les
 (s
ub
jec

t to
 fu
rth

er 
de
tai
led

 w
ork

) 
inc

lud
e: 

Tim
e f
or 

He
alt
h, 
He

alt
h L

ite
rac

y, 
He

alt
h T

rai
ne
rs,
 Li
fe 

Ch
ec
k, 
Dig

ita
l M

en
tor

s, 
NH

S C
ho
ice

s 
 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Ch
ris

 Lo
vit
t 

Ide
nti
fy 
pro

jec
ts 
for

 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n b

y O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
s i
n 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 On
go
ing

 

   

Page 50



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

7 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 (c

on
td)

 
3.2

 In
tro

du
ce
 ne

w 
he

alt
h a

nd
 em

plo
ym

en
t in

itia
tiv

es
 (c

on
td)

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
he
alt
h a

nd
 em

plo
ym

en
t in

itia
tiv
es
 in
 Id
ea
 

Sto
res

 
Ju

dit
h S

t J
oh

n 
Ch

ris
 Lo

vit
t 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Sc
op
e t
he
 pr

oje
ct 
to 
de
live

r th
e 

Sk
ille

d f
or 

He
alt
h p

rog
ram

me
s 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
. 

Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
s i
n 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
.  

 Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 in
vit
ed
 to
 

ten
de
r fo

r d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
he
alt
h 

pro
gra

mm
es
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

Co
mp

let
e 

  On
go
ing

 
 NH

ST
H 
ten

de
rin
g o

pp
ort
un
itie

s 
no
t y
et 
av
ail
ab
le 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
4. 
Ex

pa
nd

 th
e p

ro
vis

ion
 of

 hi
gh

 qu
ali
ty 
em

plo
ym

en
t in

for
ma

tio
n, 

ad
vic

e a
nd

 su
pp

or
t 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

4.1
 Ex

pa
nd

 th
e S

ing
le 
Po

int
 of

 A
cc
es
s s

erv
ice

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Ex
plo

re 
the

 in
teg

rat
ion

 of
 Id
ea
 St

ore
s i
nto

 st
rat

eg
ic 

em
plo

ym
en
t in

itia
tiv
es
, in

clu
din

g t
he
 Si

ng
le 
Po

int
 of
 

Ac
ce
ss
  

Th
is 
ini
tia
tiv
e w

ou
ld 
pro

vid
e a

 w
ide

 ra
ng
e o

f jo
ine

d-u
p 

se
rvi
ce
s t
ha
t h
elp

 to
 ad

dre
ss
 th
e m

ult
ipl
e b

arr
ier
s t
o 

em
plo

ym
en
t in

 or
de
r to

 su
pp
ort

 pe
op
le 
int
o w

ork
.  

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Ide
a S

tor
es
/Li
fel
on
g 

Le
arn

ing
 ar

e 
rep

res
en
ted

 on
 an

d 
ac
tiv
ely

 co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 

Em
plo

ym
en
t S

tra
teg

y 
Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n G

rou
p 

by
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

  

Co
mp

let
e. 
 Th

e E
SIG

 ha
s b

ee
n 

su
pe
rse

de
d b

y t
he
 Lo

ca
l 

Ec
on
om

ic 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
an
d 

Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 is
 en

ga
ge
d i
n 

thi
s. 

 
 

Page 51



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

8 

  Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
5. 
Ex

pa
nd

 an
d i

mp
ro
ve
 th

e p
ro
vis

ion
 of

 hi
gh

 qu
ali
ty,
 ac

ce
ss
ibl

e I
CT

 an
d I

LT
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e, 
se
rvi

ce
s, 

tra
ini

ng
 an

d s
up

po
rt 
in 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

5.1
 Im

ple
me

nt 
an
 IC

T a
nd

 In
for

ma
tio

n L
ea
rn
ing

 Te
ch

no
log

y (
ILT

) S
tra

teg
y f
or
 Id

ea
 St

or
es
 an

d t
he
 Li

fel
on

g 
Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi

ce
. 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s s

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 IC
T S

tra
teg

y f
or 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 an

d 
up
da
te 
the

 In
for

ma
tio
n L

ea
rni
ng
 Te

ch
no
log

y (
ILT

) fo
r 

the
 Li
fel
on
g L

ea
rni
ng
 Se

rvi
ce
. 

Ke
y a

rea
s o

f fo
cu
s s

ho
uld

 in
clu

de
: 

• 
sc
op
e o

f th
e o

n-l
ine

 se
rvi
ce
 of
fer

  
• 

sc
op
e o

f th
e i
n-s

tor
e I
CT

 an
d I
LT

 se
rvi
ce
 of
fer

 
(eg

 le
arn

ing
, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

up
po
rt) 

• 
IC
T a

nd
 IL
T i
nv
es
tm
en
t s
tra

teg
ies

 (e
g 

eq
uip

me
nt,
 ph

ys
ica

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t)  

 
• 

wo
rki
ng
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 w
ith
 C
orp

ora
te 
IT 

(eg
 

sc
op
e o

f s
erv

ice
s p

rov
ide

d, 
se
rvi
ce
 st
an
da
rds

) 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Ro
ll o

ut 
of 
RF

ID
 an

d s
elf
 

se
rvi
ce
 to
 al
l s
ite
s b

y 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

Im
ple

me
nt 
Ele

ctr
on
ic 

Do
cu
me

nt 
Int
erf

ac
e 

(E
DI
) m

od
ule

 of
 

Op
en
Ga

lax
y b

y M
arc

h 
20
10
 

Ag
ree

 up
gra

de
 pl
an
 an

d 
im
ple

me
nt 
ch
an
ge
-ov

er 
of 
all
 IS

 PC
s t
o L

BT
H 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
T s

tan
da
rd 

by
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
09
 

Up
da
ted

 IL
T s

tra
teg

y 
rev

iew
ed
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
  

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f R
FID

 
sc
he
du
led

 fo
r S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 

 Su
pe
rse

de
d b

y i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 
of 
R2

P p
roc

ure
me

nt 
sy
ste

m 
ac
ros

s L
BT

H 
  Co

mp
let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

   

Page 52



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

9 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
6. 
St
ren

gth
en
 in

clu
sio

n a
nd

 ac
ce
ss
ibi

lity
  

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

6.1
 Id

en
tify

 op
po

rtu
nit

y s
ite

s t
o i

mp
lem

en
t th

e I
de

a S
tor

e /
 Li

br
ary

 ne
tw
or
k r

ec
on

fig
ur
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
W
ork

 w
ith
 th
e P

lan
nin

g a
nd
 Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho
ols

 fo
r th

e 
Fu

tur
es
 Te

am
s t
o i
de
nti
fy 
op
po
rtu

nit
y s

ite
s t
o i
mp

lem
en
t 

the
 Id
ea
 St

ore
 / L

ibr
ary

 ne
tw
ork

 re
co
nfi
gu
rat

ion
 st
rat

eg
y 

– w
he
re 

thi
s c

an
 be

 ju
sti
fie
d o

n c
os
t, p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d 
eff
icie

nc
y g

rou
nd
s. 
  

      

Ro
bin

 B
ea
ttie

 
Th

or
ste

n D
rey

er 
Ju

dit
h S

t J
oh

n 

Es
tab

lish
 BS

F/I
de
a 

Sto
re 

Se
rvi
ce
 

en
ga
ge
me

nt 
me

ch
an
ism

 
by
 Ju

ne
 20

09
 

En
ga
ge
 w
ith
 D
&R

 on
 th
e 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 LD
F 

su
ite
 of
 do

cu
me

nts
 to
 

en
su
re 

ali
gn
me

nt 
by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09
 

En
ga
ge
 w
ith
 th
e T

ow
n 

Ce
ntr

e I
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 
Pr
og
ram

me
 to
 de

ve
lop

 
str
ate

gic
 lin

ks
 in
to 

ec
on
om

ic 
reg

en
era

tio
n 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 by

 Au
gu
st 

20
09
 

Ca
rry

 ou
t d
eta

ile
d 

fea
sib

ility
 an

d b
us
ine

ss
 

pla
nn
ing

 w
ork

 in
 re

lat
ion

 
to 
po
ten

tia
l s
ite
s b

y 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
09
  

 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

   Co
mp

let
e 

    Co
mp

let
e 

 

   

Page 53



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

10
 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
6. 
St
ren

gth
en
 in

clu
sio

n a
nd

 ac
ce
ss
ibi

lity
  

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

6.2
 In

cre
as
e e

ng
ag

em
en
t b

y u
nd

er 
16
s a

nd
 th

eir
 fa

mi
lie
s  

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
De

sig
n a

nd
 im

ple
me

nt 
a r
an
ge
 of
 ne

w 
fam

ily 
rea

din
g 

an
d l
ea
rni
ng
 ac

tiv
itie

s  
Ka

ren
 R
ob

ins
on

 
Ka

te 
Pit

ma
n 

Se
rg
io 

Do
gli

an
i 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Re
-fit
 of
 IS

W
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
lib
rar

y b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 Su

mm
er 

Re
ad
ing

 C
ha
lle
ng
e b

y 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Ro
ll–
ou
t o
f “E

ng
ag
ing

 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

” P
roj
ec
t 

by
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
10
 

De
live

ry 
of 
a p

rog
ram

me
 

of 
cu
ltu
ral
 ac

tiv
itie

s f
or 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 th
rou

gh
 

Fin
d Y

ou
r T

ale
nt 
by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09
 

Re
vie

w 
Bo

ok
Sta

rt 
de
live

ry 
me

ch
an
ism

, 
en
ga
ge
 w
ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 

inc
rea

se
 aw

are
ne
ss
 of
 

IS 
se
rvi
ce
s f
or 

0-3
 ye

ar 
old

s b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 

En
su
re 

pa
ren

ts 
an
d 

ch
ild
ren

 on
 fa
mi
ly 

lea
rni
ng
 pr

og
ram

me
s 

are
 ro

uti
ne
ly 
sig

np
os
ted

 
to 
the

ir n
ea
res

t Id
ea
 

Sto
re/

Lib
rar

y a
nd
 

On
go
ing

 
 Co

mp
let
e 

 Pr
oje

ct 
cu
rre

ntl
y u

nd
er 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
at 
Ide

a S
tor

e 
Bo

w 
 Co

mp
let
e 

   Co
mp

let
e 

   Co
mp

let
e 

Page 54



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

11
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 pr

om
ote

 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 ar

e c
rea

ted
 

fro
m 
Ju
ne
 20

09
  

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

6.3
 Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Eq
ua
liti

es
 Im

pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 ac

ro
ss
 th

e s
erv

ice
 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 Eq
ua
litie

s I
mp

ac
t A

ss
es
sm

en
t A

cti
on
 

Pla
n a

cro
ss
 al
l L
ibr
ari
es
 an

d I
de
a S

tor
es
  

Gr
ah

am
 Po

lla
rd
 

Re
vie

w 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n 
to 
ce
ntr

es
 fo
r e

lde
rly
 & 

dis
ab
led

 pe
op
le 
by
 M
ar 

20
10
 

Im
pro

ve
 se

rvi
ce
s t
o 

pe
op
le 
wit

h m
en
tal
 

he
alt
h p

rob
lem

s b
y J

uly
 

20
09
 

Im
pro

ve
 se

rvi
ce
s &

 
sto

ck
 fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 

lea
rni
ng
 di
sa
bil
itie

s b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
10
 

On
go
ing

 
   Co

mp
let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

           

Page 55



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

12
 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
7. 
Co

-lo
ca
te 

cu
ltu

ral
, le

isu
re 

an
d o

the
r c

ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s w
he

re 
thi

s w
ill 
inc

rea
se
 ef

fic
ien

cy
, e
ffe

cti
ve
ne

ss
 

an
d v

alu
e f

or
 m

on
ey
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

7.1
 Su

pp
or
t th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e T
ran

sfo
rm

ing
 So

cia
l C

are
 ag

en
da

  
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Su

pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e T

ran
sfo

rm
ing

 So
cia

l 
Ca

re 
ag
en
da
. 

 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Sa
rah

 Fo
rd
 

Sc
op
e  
ou
tlin

e o
f 

un
ive

rsa
l in

for
ma

tio
n o

n 
so
cia

l c
are

 ch
oic

es
 

On
go
ing

 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

7.2
 Su

pp
or
t th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e C
us

tom
er 

Ac
ce
ss
 Se

rvi
ce
  

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Su

pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e C

ha
nn
el 
Ac

ce
ss
 

Str
ate

gy
 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Cl
air

e S
ym

on
ds

 
To

 be
 de

ter
mi
ne
d b

y 
Ch

an
ne
l A

cc
es
s 

Str
ate

gy
 w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p 

On
go
ing

 

  

Page 56



 
Appendix 3  
 
 Idea Store Metro Concept 
  

The Idea Store Strategy 2009 indicates that a smaller and more 
flexible generation of Idea Stores is required if the network is to be 
completed in a way that will allow the service to fully meet the needs 
of the community and remain within projected revenue budgets.  The 
Idea Store Metro concept builds on the convenience store model 
developed by major supermarket chains. An Idea Store Metro 
provision would be smaller in size and would focus on high quality 
core service offer and high quality service presentation. The proposed 
model for the new generation Idea Stores is based around a co-
location of library and information services (from both Council and 
local partners such as the PCT), and the concept of the corner shop 
Idea Store – akin to the ‘Metro’ or ‘Local’ supermarket.  Each Idea 
Store Metro would be tailored to meet the needs of its local area: 
• an innovative centre which engages with and belongs to the 

local  community, and sends out a message of inclusion and 
diversity 

• accessibility, inclusion and a sense of welcome  
• high profile and visibility 
• should contribute to the external public realm as a local     

 community hub 
• offer tangible benefits to the local community in the areas of 

health and employment 
• flexible provision for a range of service providers 
• centre of information services and the local community, a hub 

for local community spaces 
 The Idea Store Metro core offer would include: 

• Adult and children’s library with learning activities for all ages  
• Surfing space providing free public internet access 
• Flexible learning spaces. These will provide both formal and 

informal learning activities 
• Health advice and information services 
• Single Access Point or a similar initiative to provide a wide range 

of joined-up services that help to address the multiple barriers to 
employment in order to support people into work 

• Meeting and activity space for community groups 
• Display areas for local artists and exhibitions 
• Storage 
• Public and staff toilets 
• Staff room  

 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
7th July 2010 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 

 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director Development & 
Renewal/ Corporate Director of 
Resources 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Chris Holme 
 

Title:  
 
Council Housing Finance Reform 
Prospectus – Implications for Tower 
Hamlets and Proposed Response 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
Lead Members 
 Housing, Heritage and Planning; Resources 
Community Plan Theme 
  One Tower Hamlets 
Strategic Priority 
 Ensuring Value for Money Across the Council 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the Government’s prospectus for reforming the Council 

Housing Finance System, its implications for Tower Hamlets, and 
recommends a response to the draft “offer.”  Local Authorities have until the 
6th July to respond to CLG.  It also asks Members to agree a number of 
principles to facilitate medium term sustainability of the Housing Revenue 
Account. 

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Note the long term financial implications for Tower Hamlets of continuing 

with the current housing subsidy system and that of the current HRA self-
financing offer, from the CLG “Prospectus” – Council Housing A Real Future, 
as set out in paragraph 7 of the report. 

 
2.2 Note the response in Appendix 2 submitted to CLG in accordance with the 

deadline of 5 July 2010. 
 
2.3 Authorise the Corporate Director Development and Renewal, after 

consultation with the Director of Resources and Lead Members Housing, 
Heritage and Planning, and Resources to provide any further responses to 
CLG that may be required in relation to the Prospectus. 

 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 59



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

2.4 Agree the financial principles set out in paragraph 9.2 to support delivery of a 
sustainable Housing Revenue Account. 

 
2.5 Agree that all Right-to –Buy receipts are earmarked to support social 

housing and housing regeneration capital programmes (paragraph 7.10).  
 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The Council must decide whether or not it is in favour of self-financing for its 

Housing Revenue Account or that it supports retention of the current system 
of housing subsidy.  This decision will have significant financial implications 
for the Council. 

 

3.2 Recommendations 2.4 and 2.5 are intended to support the delivery of a 
sustainable Housing Revenue Account in the medium term.  Under either 
finance system, the Council will continue to have a statutory requirement to 
balance income and expenditure within its HRA. 

 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 

4.1 With regard to recommendation 2.2, the Council could have determined not 
to support the principle of self-financing as set out in the CLG Prospectus. If 
sufficient other Council adopt this option then the current system could be 
retained or the Government could impose a new regime through legislation. 
The financial implications for Tower Hamlets of retaining the current system 
of housing finance are set out in paragraph 7.7 of the report.   

 
4.2 Members could reject one or more of the principles set out in paragraph 9.2, 

and summarised as recommendation 2.4, but this would make achievement 
of our HRA Medium Term Financial Strategy more difficult and inhibit longer 
term stability. 

 
4.3 If implemented, the new system of council house financing will facilitate 

retention of right-to buy receipts rather than the current national pooling 
system. At least 75% will be required to be applied for housing purposes, but 
the Council has flexibility with regard to the remaining 25%. To facilitate 
repayment of outstanding debt on dwelling assets no longer owned, and 
maximise housing receipts for capital investment purposes, full earmarking is 
recommended. 

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) relates to the activities of the Council 

as landlord of its dwelling stock.  Income to the HRA is primarily derived from 
tenants’ rents, service charges and government subsidy. Expenditure 
includes repairs and maintenance and the provision of services to manage 
the Council’s housing stock.  Expenditure not met by Housing Revenue 
Account subsidy must mainly be met from Council tenants and leaseholders. 

 

Page 60



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

5.2 Tower Hamlets has traditionally been a major recipient of housing subsidy.  
The system works by pooling the £6billion of council rents collected 
nationally and redistributes them on the basis of assessed need, measured 
through management, maintenance and major repairs allowances, and 
interest on each Council’s assumed level of historic debt.  The net position is 
that over 70% of local authorities pay £700million into the system, and the 
recipients of subsidy (less than 30%) receive £600million. The balance of 
£100m is retained by the Treasury. 

 
5.3 The current HRA finance system has a number of problems: 

• Because there is an annual subsidy determination, medium and longer 
term financial planning is very difficult 

• It is complex, volatile and lacks transparency 
• 75% of receipts from sale of right-to-buy properties are retained by central 
government 

  
5.4 In recent years the Council’s entitlement to housing subsidy has reduced 

significantly, both in total terms and per dwelling.  In 2004 the Council 
received some £60million.  This year the likely amount of subsidy received 
will be approximately £13million.  Even allowing for changes associated with 
stock numbers this means a greater proportion of costs must be recovered 
from tenants and leaseholders.  Furthermore the Council’s consolidated rate 
of interest (i.e. the average rate of interest for all our actual HRA and 
General Fund historic debt) has reduced significantly over the last 2 years, in 
line with in prevailing economic conditions, and this has also had significant 
adverse subsidy implications for Tower Hamlets. This is because the subsidy 
entitlement calculation deems our notional debt to be higher than our actual 
level of debt, and therefore loss of subsidy is only partially offset by reduced 
interest charges. 

 
5.5 Officers assessment is that Council annual subsidy entitlement, under the 

current system, will continue to fall year on year by between £1.3million and 
£2million to 2016 and some £500k per annum beyond.  This means that by 
the mid 2020s the Council would become a net contributor rather than a 
recipient of housing subsidy.  The existing council housing finance system 
therefore is not sustainable for Tower Hamlets. 

 
5.6 At the end of March 2010, the previous Government set out a consultation 

document to dismantle the HRA subsidy system and replace it with new self-
financing system, whereby all Councils would retain their rents and receipts 
from the sale of housing.  In return, there would be a national redistribution 
of debt, and all future capital expenditure would have to be managed from 
within the ring-fenced HRA.  The Coalition Government is pledged to reform 
the HRA and has not withdrawn the proposal. 

 
5.7 The “prospectus” includes provision for strengthening the HRA ring-fence 

guidance (primarily through increased transparency) and there would also be 
a requirement to develop a 30 year business plan for management of council 

Page 61



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

housing stock.  Overall the prospectus offers the most radical change to 
council housing finance since the introduction of right-to-buy. 

 
5.8 The deadline for local authorities to respond to the questions posed in the 

prospectus is the 6th July.  If sufficient local authorities are supportive then 
provision exists within the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 for the 
Government to make the changes without the need for further legislation. 

 
 
6. OUTLINE OF THE HRA REFORM PROSPECTUS 
 
6.1 The key elements of the offer, as it currently stands are as follows;   

• The dismantling of the HRA subsidy system 
• National council housing debt of £26billion is redistributed amongst the 

177 local housing authorities, supplemented by increased allowances 
for management, maintenance and major repairs rolled into the debt 
adjustment over 30 years 

• Additional interest rate “headroom” of ½% in the debt adjustment 
calculation which is intended solely for new supply housing, if local 
authorities confirm they are able to use it for that purpose 

• Rents to be retained locally 
• 100% of RTB receipts retained locally so long as the 75% which is 

pooled under the current system is utilised for social housing and 
regeneration 

• Some £3billion of capital grants for completion of the decent homes 
programme (subject to future spending reviews) 

• A strengthening of the HRA statutory ring-fence, and greater 
transparency for tenants and leaseholders 

• The requirement for a separate housing balance sheet and a 30 year 
HRA business plan  

• All future capital expenditure (with the exception of round 3 decent 
homes) to be financed locally through the HRA business plan and 
capital receipts 

• The possibility of de-pooling HRA and General Fund debt 
 
6.2 In addition to the level and uncertainty around the availability of future capital 

grants, as outlined above, the prospectus sets a cap on the total amount of 
future borrowing for each local authority. 

 
7. IMPLICATIONS OF THE PROSPECTUS FOR TOWER HAMLETS 
 
7.1 The debt redemption offer for Tower Hamlets is £277million based on the 

7% discount factor, and caps future debt at £134million. This is based on 
uplifted management and maintenance allowances of 12.5% and major 
repairs allowance (MRA) of 7.8% - resulting in a consolidate uplift of 11.3%.  
The Council benefits from the management and maintenance uplift because 
of its high percentage of high-rise properties, but the MRA settlement is 

Page 62



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

lower than the national average because capital expenditure per dwelling is 
deemed lower for blocks than houses. 

 
7.2 The Council’s notional debt for subsidy purposes in £410.5million, whereas 

actual debt for 2010/11 is £292.5million.  This means £118m is retained as 
borrowing potential under the self-financing system.  Officers’ assessment is 
that this reduction of debt would facilitate, with prudent management of the 
HRA, the generation of sufficient revenue surpluses to finance the additional 
interest charges from new unsupported borrowing. 

 
7.3 Repayment of debt at 7%, as set out in the offer would deliver some £6.6m 

“headroom” for provision of new housing, and officers initial assessment is 
that this could facilitate up to 60 new dwellings (based on average size and 
build cost) over the first 5 years of the HRA business plan, assuming 
combined with 30% social housing grant.   

 
7.4 The introduction of self-financing and the 30 year HRA business plan puts a 

new emphasis on the management of assets and the relationship between 
capital investment and revenue maintenance of the stock. A critical 
assumption relates to the stock investment and capital expenditure needs 
over the longer term.   

 
7.5 Based on a recent sample stock condition survey of 1500 properties by 

Savills in November 2009, the 30 year capital expenditure profile is some 
£56.3k per property (i.e. £650m for 11,500 properties). This excludes the 
Ocean, which is a separate housing regeneration scheme. However longer 
term capital investment assumptions for the Ocean Estate, over the 30 years 
of the plan have been factored back in, along with an allowance for disabled 
adaptations. The assumed average capital cost per dwelling is £54.9k per 
unit (based on some 12,500 dwellings) over 30 years with 9% added on to 
cover procurement needs.  A business model based on these assumptions 
provides the basis for initial testing of the viability of self-financing given the 
debt settlement and the potential for £222m of capital grants to fund the 
ALMO decent homes programme. 

 
7.6 The capital investment need, as identified in the Savills report, is significantly 

higher than that assumed in the CLG’s self-financing model (£32.8k per 
dwelling). Despite this the charts set out in Appendix 1 (and summarised 
below), demonstrate that the self-financing offer can work for Tower 
Hamlets, and if the ALMO investment is secured, it could deliver the 
assessed capital investment needs set out in the Savills stock condition 
survey, and begin to repay debt. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 Chart 7.1 -  Impact on HRA of self-financing offer, based on capital 
investment needs and assuming no set aside of debt (£000) 

 

  
 
7.7 This is not the case under the current unreformed subsidy system. Indeed, 

using the same assumptions as those derived for the self-financing model, 
there would be a shortfall over the period of the business plan of some 
£323million, even with the ALMO investment of £222million, and that 
shortfall in capital resources would start occurring from year 5 onwards. HRA 
debt would rise to over £500million and increasingly as subsidy declines the 
Council will struggle to service this debt and maintain a capital programme. 
This is again demonstrated in Appendix 1 and summarised in the chart 
below. 

 
 Chart 7.2 - Impact on HRA of subsidy system based on capital 

investment needs (£000) 
 

  

Page 64



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

7.8 The adverse position under the current subsidy system could be further 
exacerbated if under the autumn spending review allocations of Supported 
Capital Expenditure for local authorities are reduced or withdrawn 
completely. 

 
7.9 In conclusion, self-financing of the HRA, as proposed in the CLG prospectus 

puts Tower Hamlets in a significantly improved financial position than under 
the current subsidy system, and offers the potential for new build. This is 
primarily because; 

• The Council will retain all rents and benefit from the annual increases so 
long as it follows rent convergence guidelines.  Both scenarios outlined 
above assume rent convergence by 2015/16 as set out in the Prospectus 

• The uplifts for management and maintenance, and MRA, are reflected in 
the debt adjustment and so the Council benefits from this immediately 

• The interest charge on debt is lower than that set out in the offer 
 

7.10 The viability of the self-financing offer and potential for new supply would be 
threatened if the Government are minded to amend the offer or withdraw 
decent homes funding.  As a one-off offer it is also sensitive to significant 
inflationary pressures and interest rate changes.  It is therefore important 
that capital receipts from future right-to-buys are retained to reduce debt and 
support the housing capital programme. 

 
 
8. RESPONDING TO THE PROSPECTUS 
 
8.1 The prospectus asks a number of questions, and seeks in principle to 

assess whether the offer is generally acceptable.  Appendix 2 sets out the 
CLG consultation questions along with proposed outline responses.  Cabinet 
is asked to note the submission to CLG.  Cabinet is further asked to delegate 
to the Corporate Director Development and Renewal, after consultation with 
the Director of Resources and Lead Members Housing and Resources 
authority to deal with any further requests from CLG in relation to 
consultation on the Prospectus. 

 
 
9. HRA FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
 
9.1 Cabinet agreed the principles of a medium term financial strategy at its 

meeting of 10th February, which took account of the assumed level of 
subsidy loss during the next 3 years.  The Government assume our current 
costs of management and maintenance, after the uplifts outlined in 
paragraph 7.1 above, to be £41.9million, whereas actual net costs for 
2010/11 are £42.5million (without taking account of any notional uplifts.) 

 
9.2 It is therefore essential that, pending introduction of the new system, we 

continue to deliver the required savings, particularly from management and 
administration.  Furthermore, under self-financing what makes up rents and 
service charges will need to become more transparent, and long-term 

Page 65



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

sustainable HRA business plan will require stable and effective treasury 
management.  Members are therefore asked to agree the following 
principles to facilitate delivery of a long-term sustainable HRA. 
• Income from the management of non-dwelling related HRA activities 

should aim to cover the total cost of providing these services to avoid 
being subsidised from tenants rents; 

• Rents should not subsidise service charges, nor vice versa 
• The Council aims to achieve rent convergence in line with Government 

guidelines (currently 2015/16) 
• High emphasis on debt collection is maintained to minimise provision 

for bad debts 
• Treasury management strategy for the HRA focuses on longer term 

stability at a rate below the CLG discounted net present value of 7%.  
 
10. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1 The report sets out the implications of the proposed system of local 

government housing finance as set out in the CLG prospectus issued at the 
end of March 2010.  The analysis highlights the huge disparity between 
investment needs and likely housing resources that will be available in the 
future under the current subsidy regime.  Initial assessment of the offer for 
Tower Hamlets appears to demonstrate significantly improved viability under 
the self-financing option.  However the model is extremely sensitive to 
assumptions and further review of the business model is required, along with 
assessment of the General Fund implications and risks as outlined in 
paragraphs 14.4, 14.5 and 15.1. 

 

10.2 At this stage, a positive response to the consultation does not commit the 
Council, but notwithstanding the autumn spending review, there is the 
possibility of a speedy introduction of the new financing system.  Again 
further testing of the model and its treasury management implications would 
be required before acceptance.     

 
10.3 Recommendation 2.5 seeks approval to earmark all RTB receipts for 

housing purposes.  Under the proposed self-financing system at least 75% 
(i.e. that element pooled under the current system) must be retained for 
social housing and regeneration purposes.  However earmarking all future 
RTBs will limit the flexibility of the Council to utilise the residual 25% of 
receipts for other strategic (non-housing) priorities.  Currently the number of 
right-to-buys is very low, but this may change as market conditions improve.  

 
10.4 The tighter ring-fence applied to the HRA may mean that some services 

currently lawfully charged to the HRA cannot be charged there in the future.  
The impact of this is still to be assessed but an additional cost to the General 
Fund, or savings to those services affected, is possible.  However the tighter 
ring-fence would also clarify the financial arrangements around the HRA and 
make it easier to make long-term policy decisions about the stock. 

 

Page 66



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

10.5 Whilst the initial analysis indicates that the offer is advantageous compared 
with the existing the subsidy system as it is expected to pan out for the 
authority over the next few years, the long term maintenance and 
improvement of the current housing stock as financed through the reformed 
HRA is subject to assumptions about the funding likely to be available, 
including the allocation of funding from Decent Homes.  The development of 
the 30 year business plan will shed further light on this question. 

 
10.6. In order to take full advantage of the debt redemption offer of £277m, the 

authority will need to change its borrowing plans for 2010/11 to ensure that it 
has sufficient borrowing from the government on its books to gain fully from 
the offer.  This can be accommodated within the Treasury Management 
Strategy agreed by the Council in March, although with less room for 
flexibility, and will increase borrowing costs for a short period, which again 
can be contained within existing budgets.  

 
10.7 If implemented, the self-financing proposals would be likely to apply from 

2011/12 and would need to be taken into account in the forthcoming budget 
process. 

 
11. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
11.1 The report deals with the implications of ending the current housing subsidy 

system. 
 
11.2 The Council is subject to an obligation under Part VI of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 to maintain a housing revenue account. 
The Council is required to prepare proposals in January and February each 
year relating to the income of the authority from rents and other charges, 
expenditure in respect of repair, maintenance, supervision and management 
of HRA property and other prescribed matters. The proposals should be 
based on the best assumptions and estimates available and should be 
designed to secure that the housing revenue account for the coming year 
does not show a debit balance.  The Council must keep those proposals 
under review and revise them if necessary to keep the HRA in positive 
balance.  The consideration of the government proposals and their impact on 
the HRA is consistent with the Council’s obligations. 

 
11.3 The report proposes further that right to buy receipts are earmarked for 

housing and housing regeneration capital programmes.  The Council is 
required to deal with capital receipts in accordance with Part 4 of the Local 
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003.  
Pursuant to regulation 23, the meeting of capital expenditure is one of the 
permissible uses for capital receipts. 

 
12. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Page 67



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

12.1 Under either system the Council is required to maintain a balanced HRA.  
This means the right balance has to be struck between maximising 
resources available to the Council for social housing and avoiding undue 
hardship on vulnerable tenants.  It is considered that the approach proposed 
in the report strikes the right balance. 

 
13. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
13.1 There are no specific SAGE implications of the report.   
 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
14.1 The prospectus has been issued at a time of considerable uncertainty with 

regard to public finances, and there is the potential for the proposals not to 
proceed under the new Government, particularly if a number of local 
authorities say “no” to the proposals.  As outlined in paragraph 5 above, 
continuation of the current subsidy system will continue to have significant 
long term financially adverse implications for Tower Hamlets. 

 
14.2 Moving to self-financing significantly alters the risk profile of the HRA and its 

business plan.  The current system focuses on unpredictability of subsidy 
entitlement and inability to plan ahead.  New risks will focus on Treasury 
Management, interest rate fluctuations and local decision-making around 
best use of borrowing, capital receipts and reserves.  Robust risk 
management will be an essential tenet to support asset management 
decisions within the business plan. 

 
14.3 Self-financing will mean breaking the link between MRA and depreciation, 

and the Council will be required to determine a fair depreciation charge for 
the HRA.  Work is currently being undertaken by CIPFA and the Audit 
Commission to ensure, where possible this is revenue neutral. However 
there is a risk that depreciation could be higher than the uplifted MRA 
allowance allowed for in the debt adjustment. 

 
14.4 The debt adjustment offer refers specifically to the redemption of PWLB 

debt.  However the balance of PWLB debt held by the Council as at 30th 
March 2010 is less than the amount to be redeemed in the prospectus. 
Further clarification is being sought from CLG over how this issue will be 
resolved. 

 
14.5 The reduction in HRA debt will impact on the Capital Financing Requirement 

of the Council (overall outstanding debt.)  As a consequence the 
consolidated rate of interest charged to the General Fund could increase.   

 
14.6 Under either system there is a risk to the Decent Homes funding.  Whilst the 

self-financing model is significantly more resilient than the current subsidy 
system, failure to receive the ALMO decent homes funding of £220m would 
leave a capital shortfall over the 30 years of £330m.  However, under the 
current system that shortfall would be some £600milllion. 

Page 68



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
14.7 Under the current system there is a risk of reduction or withdrawal of 

Supported Capital Expenditure allocations. The Council currently receives 
some £15million of borrowing approval.  This is not a factor under self-
financing as all borrowing is funded from the HRA.  However there is a risk 
that Councils might not benefit from social housing grant for new supply. 
Under these circumstances it would be all the more important for the Council 
to ensure most effective use of right-to-buy receipts. 

 
15. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 Proposals to strengthen the statutory ring-fence of the HRA need further 

clarification, but could restrict the freedom of the Council to charge tenants 
for certain crime and disorder and general nuisance related services, with 
consequential General Fund implications - both financial, and service 
delivery.  

  
16. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

16.1 The report sets out the need to deliver the short-to-medium term efficiency 
savings as outlined in the Council’s agreed HRA financial strategy. 

 
17. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Detailed Assessment of the CLG Council Housing Reform 
prospectus for Tower Hamlets 
Appendix 2 – CLG Council Housing: A Real Future – Prospectus:  
Consultation Questions and Proposed Response. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

Page 69



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

None N/A 
 

Page 70



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

DETAILED ASSESSMENT OF IMPLICATIONS FOR TOWER HAMLETS AND 
COMPARISON OF THE BUSINESS MODELS 

 
Charts 1a, 1b and 1c: Self financing revenue, capital and debt profiles £’000: 
no set aside 

  

 

 

Page 71



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
Charts 2a, 2b and 2c: HRA within Subsidy System revenue, capital and debt 
profiles £’000 

  

  

  

Page 72



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\4\3\AI00025347\CabReportHsingFinanceProspectusJuly
10LegalandFinanceapproved20.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

APPENDIX 2 
 

CLG CONSULTATION QUESTIONS AND PROPOSED OUTLINE RESPONSE 
 

Question Proposed Outline Response 
 
What are you views on the proposed 
methodology for assessing income and 
spending needs under self-financing and 
for valuing each council’s business? 
 

 
The Council generally supports the 
methodology outlined in the prospectus and the 
basis for determination of the debt adjustment.   
However the Council does not agree with the 
assumptions for calculation of the MRA uplift as 
this significantly understates the investment 
costs associated with high rise properties and 
other flats compared to houses. 
 
Viability for Tower Hamlets is dependent on the 
availability of ALMO decent homes funding 
 

 
What are your views on the proposals for 
the financial, regulatory and accounting 
framework for self-financing? 
 

 
Clarification is sought around the debt limit, and 
the potential for future borrowing beyond the 
cap set in future years. 

 
How much new supply could this 
settlement enable you to deliver, if 
combined with social housing grant? 
 

 
An initial assessment suggests that the 
headroom proposal, if combined with social 
housing grant, could facilitate the delivery of up 
to 60 new supply units 
 

 
Do you favour a self-financing system for 
council housing or the continuation of a 
nationally redistributive subsidy system? 
 

 
The Council is in favour of a self-financing 
system for council housing, subject to retention 
of a debt adjustment that is fair and supports 
the delivery of a long term sustainable housing 
revenue account. 
 

 
Would you wish to proceed to early 
voluntary implementation of self-financing 
on the basis of the methodology and 
principles proposed in the Prospectus? 
Would you be ready to implement self-
financing in 2011-12? If not, how much 
time do you think is required to prepare for 
implementation? 
 

 
Yes the Council would wish to proceed based 
on the offer outlined in the Prospectus, and 
would be ready to implement self-financing 
from 2011/12. 

 
If you favour self-financing but do not wish 
to proceed on the basis of the proposals 
in the Prospectus, what are the reasons? 
 

 
N/A 

 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\3\AI00025348\CabinetContractsFwdPlanReport070710v40.doc 

 

-Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
7 July 2010 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 
 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director of Resources 
 
Originating officer(s) Richard Parsons, 
Service Head, Procurement & Corporate 
Programmes 
 

Title:  
 
Contracts Forward Plan 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Resources 
Community Plan Theme 
  

One Tower Hamlets 
Strategic Priority 
 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Council’s Procurement Procedures require a quarterly report to be 

submitted to Cabinet, laying down a forward plan of revenue contracts over 
£250,000 in value, or capital contracts over £5 million. This provides Cabinet 
with the visibility of all high value contracting activity, and the opportunity to 
request further information regarding any of the contracts identified. This 
report provides the information for the period July 2010 to June 2011. 

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Consider the contract summary at Appendix 1, and identify those contracts 

about which specific reports should be brought before Cabinet prior to 
contract award by the appropriate Chief Officer for the service area; 

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 Bringing a consolidated report on contracting activity is considered the most 

efficient way of meeting the requirement in the Constitution, that “any 
contract for goods and services with an estimated value exceeding £250,000 
shall be approved by the Cabinet unless the expenditure is incurred in 
accordance with a revenue or capital estimate which has already been 
adopted by the Cabinet”, whilst providing full visibility of contracting activity.  

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 75



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\3\AI00025348\CabinetContractsFwdPlanReport070710v40.doc 

 

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Bringing a consolidated report on contracting activity is considered the most 

efficient way of meeting the requirement in the Constitution, that “The 
contracting strategy and/or award of any contract for goods or services with 
an estimated value exceeding £250,000, and any contract for capital works 
with an estimated value exceeding £5,000,000, shall be approved by the 
Cabinet in accordance with the Procurement Procedures”, whilst providing 
full visibility of contracting activity.  

 
4.2 The principal alternative to a consolidated report would be for each contract 

to be reported separately, which would be demanding upon Cabinet time, 
with no discernible benefit. 

 
4.3 Appendix 1 details the contracts which are planned during the period July 

2010 to June 2011.. This plan lists all of the contracts which have been 
registered with the Procurement Service, and which are scheduled for action 
during the period in question. Whilst every effort has been made to include 
all contracts which are likely to arise, it is possible that other, urgent 
requirements may emerge. Such cases will need to be reported separately 
to Cabinet as individual contract reports. 

 
4.4 Cabinet will be asked to review the forward plan of contracts, confirm its 

agreement to the proposed programme, and identify any individual contracts 
about which separate reports – relating either to contracting strategy or to 
contract award – will be required before proceeding. 

 
4.5 Equalities and diversity implications – and other One Tower Hamlets issues 

– are addressed through the Council’s internal tollgate process which 
provides an independent assessment of all high value contracts, and 
ensures that contracting proposals adequately and proportionately address 
both financial and social considerations. The work of the Competition Board 
and the Procurement & Corporate Programmes Service ensures a joined-up 
approach to procurement. 

 
4.6 Contracts are required to address sustainability issues in their planning, 

letting and management. Again, this is assured through the tollgate process, 
and supported through the Procurement & Corporate Programmes Service’s 
Corporate Social Responsibility activities.   

 
4.7 Risk management is addressed in each individual contracting project, and 

assessed through the tollgate process.  
  
4.8 There are no specific crime and disorder reduction implications 
 
4.9 Contract owners are required to demonstrate how they will achieve cashable 

savings and other efficiencies through individual contracting proposals. 
These are then monitored throughout implementation. 

 

Page 76



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\3\AI00025348\CabinetContractsFwdPlanReport070710v40.doc 

 

.  
 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 Cabinet agreed a new set of Procurement procedures in November 2009, 

which included a proposal for submission of a quarterly forward plan of 
contracts for Cabinet consideration. This report provides the forward plan for 
the period July 2010 – June 2011, and gives Cabinet members the 
opportunity to select contracts about which they would wish to receive further 
information, through subsequent specific reports. 

6. THE ROLE OF COMPETITION BOARD 
 

6.1 During 2009, a new Competition Board was established, to drive 
procurement improvements and monitor progress against the Corporate 
Procurement Strategy. One of the Board’s roles is to consider contracting 
proposals as assessed through the internal tollgate process. 

 
6.2 The tollgate process is an internal procurement project assurance 

methodology, based upon the principles of gateway reviews, which assesses 
the chances for success of high value contracting proposals (over £250,000 
for revenue contracts, and £5,000,000 for capital contracts), making 
recommendations to support contract owners to achieve improved 
outcomes. All tollgate reviews are reported to Competition Board, and when 
appropriate contract owners are interviewed by the Board; contracts require 
approval of the Board before proceeding. 

 
7. FORWARD PLAN OF CONTRACTS 
 
7.1 Appendix 1 details the contracts which are planned during the period July 

2010 to June 2011.. This plan lists all of the contracts which have been 
registered with the Procurement Service, and which are scheduled for action 
during the period in question. Whilst every effort has been made to include 
all contracts which are likely to arise, it is possible that other, urgent 
requirements may emerge. Such cases will need to be reported separately 
to Cabinet as individual contract reports. 

 
7.2 Cabinet is asked to review the forward plan of contracts, confirm its 

agreement to the proposed programme, and identify any individual contracts 
about which separate reports – relating either to contracting strategy or to 
contract award – will be required before proceeding to the  award of the 
contract by the appropriate Chief Officer for the service area. 

 
8. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
8.1 This report sets out the Council’s planned procurement activity on high value 

contracts for the next period.  Procured services comprise around 40% of the 
Council’s annual expenditure and control of procurement processes is thus 
crucial to delivering value for money for local residents as well as managing 
the risks that may arise if procurement procedures go wrong. Consideration 

Page 77



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\3\AI00025348\CabinetContractsFwdPlanReport070710v40.doc 

 

of the plan by Cabinet operates as an internal control and also provides the 
opportunity for Members to comment on specific procurements at an early 
stage.  

 
8.2 The Procurement Plan includes approximate values for the contracts under 

consideration   
 
9. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
9.1 The Council has adopted financial procedures for the proper administration 

of its financial affairs pursuant to section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972.  These generally require Cabinet approval for expenditure over 
£250,000.  In November 2009, Cabinet approved the procurement 
procedures, which are designed to help the Council discharge its duty as a 
best value authority under the Local Government Act 1999 and comply with 
the requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2006.  The procurement 
procedures contain the arrangements specified in the report under which 
Cabinet is presented with forward plans of proposed contracts that exceed 
the thresholds in paragraph 3.1 of this report.  The arrangements are 
consistent with the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. 

 
10. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
10.1 Equalities and diversity implications – and other One Tower Hamlets issues 

– are addressed through the tollgate process, and all contracting proposals 
are required to demonstrate that both financial and social considerations are 
adequately and proportionately addressed. The work of the Competition 
Board and the Procurement & Corporate Programmes Service ensures a 
joined-up approach to procurement. 

 
11. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
11.1 Contracts are required to address sustainability issues in their planning, 

letting and management. Again, this is assured through the tollgate process, 
and supported through the Procurement & Corporate Programmes Service’s 
Corporate Social Responsibility workstream.   

 
12. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
12.1 Risk management is addressed in each individual contracting project, and 

assessed through the tollgate process.   
 

13. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 

13.1 There are no specific crime and disorder reduction implications.  
  

14. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

Page 78



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\3\AI00025348\CabinetContractsFwdPlanReport070710v40.doc 

 

14.1 Contract owners are required to demonstrate how they will achieve cashable 
savings and other efficiencies through individual contracting proposals. 
These are then monitored throughout implementation. 
 

15. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Contracts Planned, July 2010 – June 2011. 
 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
None 
 

N/A 

Page 79



 AP
PE

ND
IX 

ON
E –

 C
ON

TR
AC

TS
 PL

AN
NE

D 
JU

LY
 20

10
 – 
JU

NE
 20

11
 

   Co
ntr

ac
t 

No
. 

De
sc
rip

tio
n 

Co
ntr

ac
t P

eri
od

 
Pla

nn
ed

 D
ate

 
for

 In
vit

ati
on

 to
 

Te
nd

er 
Es

tim
ate

d V
alu

e  
No

tes
 

AH
W
B3

16
8 

Do
mi
cili

ary
 C
are

 Se
rvi
ce
s 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
 - 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
15
 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

£1
0.8

m 
pe
r 

an
nu
m 

To
 be

 re
po
rte

d 
se
pa
rat

ely
 to
 C
ab
ine

t 

AH
W
B3

20
0 

Su
pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le 
- M

ult
ipl
e 

Co
ntr

ac
ts 

Va
rio
us
 

Ma
rch

 20
10
 fo
r 

fra
me

wo
rk 

ag
ree

me
nt.
 

Ind
ivid

ua
l c
all
-

off
s f
rom

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
10
 

Ap
pro

x £
15
m 
pe
r 

an
nu
m 

 

AH
W
B3

21
2 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Eq

uip
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

TB
A 

TB
A 

£7
50
k p

er 
an
nu
m 

 

DR
32
32
 

Te
mp

ora
ry 
Ac

co
mm

od
ati
on
 

Ap
ril 
20
11
 – 
Ma

rch
 

20
14
 

No
ve
mb

er 
20
10
 

£2
6m

 pe
r a

nn
um

 
Co

ntr
ac
tin
g s

tra
teg

y 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

de
ve
lop

ed
 

CE
31
05
 

Th
e r

em
ov
al 
of 
nu
isa

nc
e 

ve
hic

les
 in
 th
e b

oro
ug
h 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 - M

arc
h 

20
14
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 

£1
.1m

 pe
r 

an
nu
m 

Re
po
rte

d s
ep
ara

tel
y t
o 

Ca
bin

et 
CE

31
61
 

Dis
trib

uti
on
 & 

De
live

ry 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 - M

arc
h 

20
14
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

£3
50
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

 
CL

C3
16
6 

Me
dic

al 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Ma
y 2

01
0 t
o A

pri
l 

20
13
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

£1
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

 
CL

C3
19
7 

Vic
tor

ia 
Pa

rk 
Co

ns
tru

cti
on
 

Ph
as
e 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 to
 

Ma
rch

 20
12
 

Ma
rch

 20
10
 

£9
.1m

 
 

CL
C3

21
1 

Vic
tor

ia 
Pa

rk 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
an
d M

on
ito
rin
g 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 to
 

Au
gu
st 
20
15
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
10
 

£6
00
k 

 
CL

C3
23
1 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d C

om
mu

nit
y 

En
ga
ge
me

nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
 

TB
C 

TB
C 

TB
C 

 
CS

F3
21
3 

By
gro

ve
 Sc

ho
ol 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
 

£7
35
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 

Page 80



 

ref
urb

ish
me

nt 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
  

CS
F3

21
4 

Sm
ith
y S

ch
oo
l 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

£9
00
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

21
5 

Eli
za
be
th 
Se

lby
 Sc

ho
ol 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

£5
00
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

21
6 

Ar
nh
em

 W
ha
rf S

ch
oo
l 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 

£2
.6m

 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d s
ch
oo
l 

ex
pa
ns
ion

 
CS

F3
21
7 

Gl
ob
e S

ch
oo
l 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 

£1
.4m

 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

21
8 

Ste
bo
n S

ch
oo
l 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 

£9
00
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

21
9 

Ca
no
n B

arn
ett
 Sc

ho
ol 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 

£9
00
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

22
0 

Ma
yfl
ow

er 
Sc

ho
ol 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Ju
ne
 20

10
 

£9
00
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

22
1 

All
en
 G
ard

en
s 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 

£4
50
,00

0 
 

CS
F3

22
2 

Ma
tild

a H
ou
se
 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Oc
tob

er 
20
10
 

£4
50
,00

0 
 

CS
F3

22
5 

Ma
lm
es
bu
ry 
Sc

ho
ol 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

£7
50
,00

0 
Ca

pit
al 
wo

rks
 – 
de
live

ry 
of 
Pr
im
ary

 C
ap
ita
l 

Pr
og
ram

me
 

CS
F3

22
7 

Dis
co
ve
ry 
Ho

us
e 

N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 
t 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
 

£2
65
,00

0 
Ov

ern
igh

t s
ho
rt b

rea
ks
 

pro
vis

ion
 

Page 81



 CS
F3

22
8 

Sp
ark

s C
en
tre

 
N/
A -

 bu
ild
ing

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 

£7
90
,00

0 
Pr
op
os
ed
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
ce
ntr

e 
E3

15
7 

Sh
ort

 Br
ea
k P

ers
on
al 
Ca

re 
for

 C
hil
dre

n w
ith
 D
isa

bil
itie

s 
Ma

y 2
01
0 -

 Ap
ril 

20
14
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 

£6
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

Re
po
rte

d s
ep
ara

tel
y t
o 

Ca
bin

et 
E3

16
9 

Su
pp
ly 
of 
Fre

sh
 & 

Fro
ze
n 

Me
at 
for

 Sc
ho
ol 
me

als
 an

d 
me

als
 on

 w
he
els

 se
rvi
ce
. 

Au
gu
st 
20
10
 to
 Ju

ly 
20
13
 

TB
A 

£1
.5m

 
Op

tio
n t
o e

xte
nd
 to
 Ju

ly 
20
11
. 

E3
17
0 

Su
pp
ly 
of 
Fre

sh
 Fr

uit
 an

d 
Ve

ge
tab

les
 fo
r S

ch
oo
l m

ea
ls 

an
d m

ea
ls 
on
 w
he
els

 se
rvi
ce
. 

Au
gu
st 
20
10
 to
 Ju

ly 
20
13
 

TB
A 

£7
50
,00

0 
Op

tio
n t
o e

xte
nd
 to
 Ju

ly 
20
11
. 

E3
19
8 

Re
sid

en
tia
l O

ve
rni
gh
t S

ho
rt 

Br
ea
ks
 fo
r C

hil
dre

n 
Ju
ly 
20
10
 - M

arc
h 

20
11
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

£6
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 
pro

 ra
ta 

To
 be

 re
po
rte

d 
se
pa
rat

ely
 to
 C
ab
ine

t 
DR

 31
84
 

Be
thn

al 
Gr
ee
n R

es
tor

ati
on
 

W
ork

s 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 to
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

12
 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
 

£6
00
,00

0 
 

DR
31
18
 

Hig
h S

tre
et 
20
12
 - C

on
tra

cto
r 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 to
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

12
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 

£4
m 

 
DR

31
58
 

Hig
h S

tre
et 
20
12
/W

hit
ec
ha
pe
l 

- a
rch

ite
ctu

re 
an
d d

es
ign

 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
10
 to
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

12
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 

£5
60
,00

0 
 

DR
31
73
 

Ele
ctr
icit

y S
up
ply

 
Ap

ril 
20
10
 - M

arc
h 

20
11
 

N/
A –

 pr
op
os
e t
o 

us
e B

uy
ing

 
So

lut
ion

s 
fra

me
wo

rk 
£4
m 

Re
fle
cts

 be
st 
ind

us
try
 

pra
cti
ce
, v
ia 
Ca

pit
al 

Am
bit
ion

 Lo
nd
on
 

En
erg

y P
roj
ec
t 

DR
31
88
 

Oc
ea
n E

sta
te 
- U

rba
n B

loc
k E

 
an
d F

 D
em

oli
tio
n 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 to
 

Ma
rch

 20
12
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 

£2
m 

 

DR
31
92
 

Bla
ck
wa

ll R
ea
ch
 Pr

oje
ct 

12
0 m

on
ths

, s
tar

t 
TB

A 
Ma

rch
 20

10
  

£4
50
m 
to 
£5
00
m 

Ca
bin

et 
(10

.3.
10
)ha

s 
as
ke
d f
or 

a s
ep
ara

te 
rep

ort
 on

 th
is 

DR
32
05
 

Ho
us
ing

 In
fill 

Pr
oje

ct 
(bi
d 

rou
nd
s 1

, 2
 an

d 3
) 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 to
 M
arc

h 
20
11
 

Ma
rch

 20
10
 

£3
m 

Bu
ild
ing

 Br
ita
in’
s F

utu
re 

ad
dit
ion

al 
ho
us
ing

 st
oc
k 

pro
jec

t 
DR

32
30
 

Oc
ea
n E

sta
te 
Fro

nta
ge
 

TB
C 

TB
C 

TB
C 

 
H2

98
1 

Oc
ea
n E

sta
te 
De

ve
lop

er 
Pa

rtn
er 

Es
t s
tar

t d
ate

 1 
Ap

ril 
20
10
 

Te
nd
ers

 in
vit
ed
 

an
d r

ec
eiv

ed
 

£2
00
m 
to 
£2
50
m 

Ca
bin

et 
(10

.3.
10
)ha

s 
as
ke
d f
or 

a s
ep
ara

te 

Page 82



 

rep
ort

 on
 th
is 

H3
15
6 

Fir
e R

eta
rda

nt 
an
d A

nti
-

Gr
aff
iti 
Pa

int
 (T

HH
) 

3 Y
ea
rs,
 st
art

 TB
A 

TB
A 

£3
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

 

H3
19
0 

TH
H 
Re

pa
irs
 an

d 
Ma

int
en
an
ce
 

Ap
ril 
20
11
 – 
Ma

rch
 

20
16
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

10
 

£1
5m

 pe
r a

nn
um

 
Ca

bin
et 
(10

.3.
10
)ha

s 
as
ke
d f
or 

a s
ep
ara

te 
rep

ort
 on

 th
is 

R3
11
6 

Re
pro

gra
ph
ics

/Pr
int
 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
 - 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
13
/20

15
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
 

 
Co

ntr
ac
tin
g s

tra
teg

y 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

de
live

red
 

 R3
16
7 

 
Ba

nk
ing

 Se
rvi
ce
s  

Oc
t 2
01
0 –

 Se
pt 

20
15
  

Ma
y 2

01
0 

£1
45
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 
 

 

R3
18
2 

Le
ga
l S

erv
ice

s f
or 

Ins
ura

nc
e 

Cla
im
s 

Ju
ne
 20

10
 – 
Ma

y 
20
13
/14

 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

£2
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

3 y
ea
rs 
wit

h o
pti
on
 of
 1 

ye
ar 

ex
ten

sio
n. 

R3
20
1 

IT 
Pe

rip
he
ral
s F

ram
ew

ork
 

Ma
rch

 20
11
 to
 

Fe
bru

ary
 20

15
 

No
ve
mb

er 
20
10
 

£4
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

Co
ntr

ac
tin
g s

tra
teg

y 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

de
ve
lop

ed
 

R3
20
2 

Ne
tw
ork

 Ba
ck
up
 Su

pp
ort

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
10
 to
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
13
 

Ju
ly 
20
10
 

£4
66
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

Co
ntr

ac
tin
g s

tra
teg

y 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

de
ve
lop

ed
 

R3
20
3 

Mo
bil
e C

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
 to
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
12
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

 20
10
 £

53
0,0

00
 pe

r 
an
nu
m 

 
R3

20
4 

Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
 Se

rvi
ce
s 

Ap
ril 
20
10
 – 
Ma

rch
 

20
14
 

Ma
rch

 20
10
 

£1
60
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

Cr
oy
do
n f
ram

ew
ork

 
ca
ll-o

ff. 

R3
20
6 

Co
ns
tru

cti
on
 Pr

ofe
ss
ion

al 
Se

rvi
ce
s F

ram
ew

ork
 

Ju
ne
 20

10
 to
 M
ay
 

20
14
 

Cu
rre

nt 
pro

po
sa
l 

is 
to 
lin
k i
n t
o a

 
co
ns
ort

ium
 

co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 

Lo
nd
on
 Bo

rou
gh
 

of 
Ba

rki
ng
 & 

Da
ge
nh
am

 

£5
m 
pe
r a

nn
um

 
Ad

dre
ss
es
 cu

rre
nt 

fra
gm

en
ted

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o 

the
 us

e o
f p
rof

es
sio

na
l 

se
rvi
ce
s i
n c

on
str
uc
tio
n 

R3
20
7 

Ma
in 
Co

ns
tru

cti
on
 C
on
tra

cto
r 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

Ju
ne
 20

10
 to
 M
ay
 

20
14
 

Cu
rre

nt 
pro

po
sa
l 

is 
to 
lin
k i
n t
o a

 
£2
1m

 pe
r a

nn
um

 
Ca

bin
et 
(10

.3.
10
)ha

s 
as
ke
d f
or 

a s
ep
ara

te 

Page 83



 

co
ns
ort

ium
 

co
ntr

ac
t w

ith
 C
ity
 

W
es
t, 

Fra
me

wo
rxs

 or
 

LH
C 

rep
ort

 on
 th
is 

R3
20
8 

Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 
Tra

ini
ng
 

Pr
ov
isio

n 
Ju
ly 
20
10
 – 
Ju
ne
 

20
13
 

Ma
y 2

01
0 

£2
00
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m 

No
te:
 th
is 
co
ntr

ac
t w

ill 
be
 le
t o
n b

eh
alf
 of
 al
l 

Lo
nd
on
 Bo

rou
gh
s b

y 
LB

TH
. P

roj
ec
t fu

nd
ed
 

by
 C
ap
ita
l A

mb
itio

n. 
Va

lue
 sh

ow
n i
s f
or 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

by
 al
l 

pa
rtic

ipa
tin
g B

oro
ug
hs
. 

LB
TH

 sp
en
d a

pp
rox

 
£7
,00

0 p
er 

an
nu
m.
 In
 

res
po
ns
e t
o C

ab
ine

t 
Ac

tio
n N

ote
 C
AB

PA
P 

Ac
tio
n N

ote
 23

 6 
10
 – 

LB
 To

we
r H

am
let
s u

se
 

of 
thi
s c

on
tra

ct 
is 

ne
gli
ble

. 
 

R3
20
9 

Mi
no
r W

ork
s a

nd
 R
ep
air
s 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

Ju
ly 
20
10
 to
 Ju

ne
 

20
14
 

Ju
ly 
20
10
 

£2
5m

 pe
r a

nn
um

 
Ca

bin
et 
(10

.3.
10
)ha

s 
as
ke
d f
or 

a s
ep
ara

te 
rep

ort
 on

 th
is 

R3
21
0 

Se
cu
rity

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 
Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
 to
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
15
 

Oc
tob

er 
20
10
 

  
Co

ntr
ac
tin
g s

tra
teg

y 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g 

de
live

red
 

R3
23
3 

Ve
nd
or 

Ne
utr

al 
Ma

na
gin

g 
Ag

en
t fo

r T
em

po
rar

y S
taf
f 

Oc
tob

er 
20
10
 to
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
14
/15

 M
ay
 20

10
 

£4
50
k p

er 
an
nu
m 

Va
lue

 is
 ag

en
t’s
 

es
tim

ate
d 

rem
un
era

tio
n. 
Op

tio
n t
o 

ex
ten

d t
o S

ep
tem

be
r 

20
11
 to
 be

 in
ve
sti
ga
ted

. 
 

Pa
yro

ll &
 In
teg

rat
ed
 H
R 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
10
 to
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
09
 

£2
22
,50

0 i
n 2

01
0 

Ne
go
tia
tio
ns
 ar

e 

Page 84



 R3
19
5 

 
Sy

ste
m 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
12
 

plu
s £

79
,95

0 p
er 

an
nu
m.
  

on
go
ing

 bu
t a
re 

at 
the

 
fin
al 
sta

ge
 an

d 
me

mb
ers

 w
ill b

e 
up
da
ted

 re
ga
rdi
ng
 pr

ice
 

at 
the

 m
ee
tin
g. 

    

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
7 July 2010  

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  
 
Acting Corporate Director, Children, 
Schools & Families 
 
Originating officer(s):  
Pat Watson  

Title:  
 
Children, Schools and Families Capital 
Programme 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 Lead Member for Children, Schools & Families 
Community Plan Theme 
  A Prosperous Community 
Strategic Priority 
 Priority 3.1: Support lifelong learning opportunities 

for all 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report advises Cabinet on the latest position on the Children, Schools 

and Families (CSF) Capital Programme and seeks various approvals as set 
out in the report. 

 
2.0      DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Note the contents of this report and specifically the proposed allocations for 

2010/11 and out-turn in the 2009/10 CSF Programme detailed in Appendix A 
(6.3);  

 
2.2 Approve the adoption of revised capital estimates for 2010/11 modernisation  

programme for relevant schemes as shown in Appendix B and authorise 
expenditure (paragraph 6.7); 

 
2.3 Approve the adoption of the revised capital estimate of £3.4m for the 

remodelling work at the Harry Gosling Primary school (paragraph 6.9); 
 
2.4 Note the progress with the Primary Capital Programme (PCP) schemes as 

shown in Appendix C and approve the revised capital costs and estimates 
within the overall approved programme (paragraph 6.12); 

 
2.5 Approve the adoption of the revised capital estimate of £6.6m for the 

expansion project at the Marner Primary school (paragraph 6.16); 
 
2.6 Approve the adoption of a revised capital estimate of £3.051m for the 

expansion of Wellington Primary School (paragraph 6.17); 

Agenda Item 7.2

Page 87



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

 
2.7 Approve the adoption of a revised capital estimate of £4.65m for the 

expansion of Arnhem Wharf Primary School (paragraph 6.18); 
 
2.8 Approve the adoption of a preliminary capital estimate of £5.5m for the 

proposed expansion of Culloden Primary School (paragraph 6.19); 
 
2.9 Approve the adoption of a capital estimate of a further £250,000 to cover the 

costs of undertaking feasibility studies/surveys for schemes being considered 
for inclusion in the capital programme and authorise expenditure (paragraph 
6.24); 

 
2.10 Approve the adoption of the capital estimate of £598,613 for EYS Capital 

Programme 2010/11, and to delegate approval of the detailed list to the 
Director of CSF (paragraph 6.28);  

 
2.11 Approve the award of a grant of £381,313 to Lincoln Hall Playgroup to 

increase the capacity of the playgroup and additional improvements 
(paragraph 6.29); 

 
2.12 Approve the award of a grant of £590,570 to Mudchute Nursery to carry out a 

comprehensive programme of internal remodelling and expansion of the 
building (paragraph 6.30); 

 
2.13 That, in respect of all proposed tenders referred in this report, in the event of 

the lowest tender for any scheme exceeding the approved budget, the 
Director of CSF is authorised to prepare and carry out a Bill of Reductions 
where relevant to ensure expenditure is contained within the agreed costs. 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The Local Authority (LA) has a responsibility to maintain its properties to 

ensure that they are safe and secure for staff and users. In the case of 
schools, the LA has a statutory responsibility to provide sufficient places for 
children and young people of school age. It also receives grants such as PCP, 
which have specific purpose and spend requirements. Cabinet is asked to 
note the programme and approve the adoption of the capital estimates so that 
the required works can proceed.   

 
4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 When identifying which works to include within the capital programme 

alternative options are always considered. This is to ensure that the projects 
both meet value for money and address the needs identified. Expansion 
projects are recommended following options appraisals and to select the 
options which best meet the location needs of the rising school age 
population. 

 
 
 

Page 88



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

5.0  BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 This report advises Members on the latest position on the CSF Capital 

Programme, the out-turn for 2009/10 (as described in Appendix A) and on the 
allocations confirmed by the Department for Education (DfE – previously the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families), as previously reported in 
November 2008, in respect of 2010/11. The report seeks authority for 
necessary additions/revisions to the programme to enable projects to be 
progressed. 

 
6.0  BODY OF REPORT 
 
6.1 Allocations and Funding 
 
6.2 As part of the their commitment to inform Local Authorities and schools on the 

funding that they would receive over 3 years, the government published 
details in 2007 of the funding for the period 2008 to 2011. The capital funding 
for 2010/11 was reported to Cabinet at its meeting in February 2010. The 
expectation was that the government would, in 2010, issue details on the 
funding for 2011 to 2014. The likely level of future allocations is uncertain.   As 
a basis for planning, we have assumed that there will be some level of capital 
allocation to meet the need for additional primary places as the local need is 
projected to continue to rise beyond existing capacity. In view of the time that 
such projects take to develop, we are continuing to develop options on the 
assumption of further government funding. Announcements of further 
allocations are likely by the end of the calendar year and proposals will have 
to be reviewed when the resource position is confirmed. 

 
6.3 The following table sets out the allocations for 2010/11 to 2012/13, amounting 

to £45.656m (excluding BSF), and how they will be funded. These include the 
funds previously reported to Cabinet in February 2010 amounting to 
£19.960m, associated carry-forwards of £19.978m (as set out in Appendix A), 
and the balance form S106 of £4.781m and other specific grants amounting to 
£0.937m.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

 
Table 1 Summary of CSF Capital Budgets and How they are Funded 2010/11 to 

2012/13 
 
 

CAPITAL BUDGETS (£M)  FUNDING (£m) 
 Programme 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13  G SB S106 SC LPP 
Condition Programme £1.112    £0.702 £0.410    
Primary Capital Programme £12.146 £1.831   £10.395 £1.589  £1.993  
LMU Youth Facility £0.049      £0.049   
Expansion  £9,307 £8.806 £1.030  £1.071 £13.992 £4.080   
Kitchens Improvements £0.150    £0.150     
Osmani Youth £3.000 £1.250     £1.006  £3.244 
Bishop Challenor contribution £0.600        £0.600 
Early Years Programme £1.571    £1.571     
ICT £1.037    £1.037     
Short Break Programme £0.412    £0.412     
Voluntary Aided Programmes £0.991    £0.991     
Previously agreed projects £2.364    £1.850  £0.394  £0.120 
Total Allocations: £32.739 £11.887 £1.030  £18.179 £15.991 £5.529 £1.993 £3.964 
 
Explained by: 

         

Brought Forward     £3.255 £11.683 £1.138 £1.993 £1.909 
Funding 2010/11 onwards     £14,924 £4,308 £4.391 0 £2.055 
                                                               TOTAL            £45.656                                              TOTAL         £45.656 

 
G - Grant   SB - Supported Borrowing    S.106 - Planning Gain SC - School Contributions 
 
LPP – Local Priorities Programme 
 
 
6.4 Other Resources   
 
6.5 In addition to grants and supported borrowing the CSF capital programme is 

supplemented by a number of other resources. Principally this includes s.106 
contributions (planning gain), which is being used to support the pupil places 
expansion programme to meet rising demand, and contributions towards 
projects from schools devolved formula capital. The CSF unapplied rates 
rebates fund is largely being used to supplement the main CSF programme to 
fund priority repairs and improvements for non-school CSF premises, for 
which the Authority receives no formulaic allocations from the DfE. 

 
6.6 Capital Programme 2010/11 
 
6.7 The projects included within the condition programme are listed in Appendix B 

and are part of a rolling programme of works to improve the condition and 
facilities of CSF buildings. Projects are included on the basis that works are 

Page 90



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

necessary to rectify serious building or supply faults to ensure safe operation 
of premises by users and reduce incidence of unplanned closure. This is an 
ongoing five year rolling programme and Cabinet is only asked to approve the 
funding for the projects listed in 2010/11.    

   
6.8 This programme is resourced through a wide variety of funding streams, each 

with their own respective conditions and timeframes.  A number of condition 
related projects included represent part of the PCP investment package and 
have been brought forward in the programme on this basis. These costs are 
included in the PCP project allocations described in the report.  As the 
programme is progressed, it is occasionally necessary to make adjustments to 
the make-up of project allocation profiles to ensure the best use is made of 
available resources.   

 
6.9 A major remodelling project was carried out the Harry Gosling Primary school 

which was completed in 2008. The current allocation for the project (as 
revised) is £2.994m. During the course of the project a number of site and 
building problems became apparent and it was necessary to undertake 
revision of the scheme to ensure that the project could be delivered 
satisfactorily. The most prominent of these related to costs associated with 
statutory services provided by EDF Energy.  In addition, there were significant 
delays in the main contractor completing the project.  

 
6.10 Although some savings had been identified, the final cost could be £3.4m.  

This figure may decrease depending on the outcome of contract negotiations 
with the main contractor, particularly around an on-going dispute relating to a 
substantial extension of time claim regarding the steelwork design. At this 
time, the LA is considering its position with regards to the claim and seeking 
independent legal advice on the matter. It is recommended that the revised 
capital estimate of £3.4m be adopted to meet anticipated commitments. The 
additional anticipated costs can be funded from within the 2010/11 
Modernisation grant. 

 
6.11 Primary Capital Programme (PCP) 
 
6.12 The PCP is now into its second year and an update on the projects included is 

shown in Appendix C. Although mainly funded from the PCP grant, they also 
include a variety of other funding streams.  

 
6.13 When the PCP was announced in 2007, the intention was that funding would 

be available for 14 years to modernise primary schools. The intention is to 
continue to develop the next wave of projects that were prioritised as part of 
the Council’s Primary Strategy for Schools submission to the DfE, but 
implementation will depend on allocations received and so this will be 
reviewed following notification.    It is likely that priority will have to be given to 
funding expansion projects from all resources within the overall programme.  

 
6.14 Primary School Expansion Projects 
 

Page 91



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

6.15 Cabinet previously agreed the expansion of Ben Jonson, Manorfield, Arnhem 
Wharf and Marner and, more recently, Wellington schools. Ben Jonson and 
phase 1 of Arnhem Wharf have been completed, with Manorfield completing 
in July 2010. The project at Wellington is due to start on site later this year, 
subject to approval of the statutory proposals. Cabinet has adopted capital 
estimates for each scheme using DfE capital allocations and developer 
contributions arising from various S106 agreements that have been received.    

 
6.16 Marner Primary School - The project at Marner is being undertaken in 5 

phases to minimise the disruption to the school. The works are now in Phase 
4, with Phase 5 due to start in January 2011. Because of the complex nature 
of the scheme, problems have arisen which cannot be covered by 
contingencies. These include additional works associated with upgrading the 
services and further temporary arrangements to minimise disruption to the 
school. The current adopted capital estimate is £5.8m.    Although the project 
has been reviewed to identify savings, the forecast for the final cost of the 
project is £6.6m.  The option of not proceeding with Phase 5 is not 
appropriate as the way that the overall scheme has been designed would 
mean that the school would not have all the accommodation needed as a 3FE 
(forms of entry) school. Cabinet is recommended to approve the adoption of a 
revised capital estimate of £6.6m, which would be funded from the 
uncommitted balance in the 2010/11 Basic Need allocation.     

 
6.17 Wellington Primary School – A capital estimate of £2.901m was adopted for 

this scheme based on anticipated construction costs and professional fees.   
Since the previous Cabinet decision in April 2010, the planning application 
has been submitted and permission has been received.   However, certain 
planning conditions more onerous than anticipated have been imposed on the 
permission in relation to the adjacent conservation area and the costs of these 
exceed the planned budget.   Cabinet is recommended to approve the 
adoption of a revised capital estimate of £3.051m which would be funded from 
the uncommitted balance in the 2010/11 Basic Need allocation.     

 
6.18 Arnhem Wharf Primary School – The adopted capital estimate for this 

scheme is £4.4m.  The scheme is being implemented in 2 phases.  Phase 1 
has been completed and phase 2 is to start on site later this summer.   
Following a design review for phase 2, the scheme has been adjusted to 
ensure the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of the implementation.   However, 
in order to complete the scheme to meet the needs of the expanded school, it 
is recommended that a revised capital estimate of £4.65m is adopted which 
would be funded from the Basic Need allocation. 

 
6.19 Culloden Primary School - Feasibility work has been undertaken on the 

proposed expansion of the school from 2 forms of entry to 3 forms of entry.   
Initial consultation on the proposals with the school community is taking place 
in the second half of the summer term. Subject to the response to this 
consultation, Cabinet approval will be sought for publication of statutory 
proposals for implementation in September 2012.   The scheme is being 
procured via the LEP and is the first primary school scheme to be 
commissioned in this way.    

Page 92



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

 
6.20 The estimated cost of the scheme is £5.5m.   The programme for works, 

which would be implemented subject to Cabinet’s approval of statutory 
proposals, would commence on site in summer 2011 for a construction period 
of approximately twelve months. This means that the main expenditure would 
fall in the period of the next round of allocations.   However, due to the time 
taken to implement these projects, planning has to proceed at this stage in 
order to ensure that sufficient supply of primary school places can be 
achieved.   Any implications for proceeding with the scheme will be reviewed 
when allocations of capital funding for 2011/12 are known.   The programme 
assumes that the contract would not be entered into until spring 2011. 

 
6.21 Cabinet is recommended to adopt a capital estimate of £5.5m for the 

expansion of Culloden School.   The project will be funded from future 
allocations of Basic Need funding and s. 106 contributions, to be confirmed. 

 
6.22 Other Options for Additional Primary Places - A further review of the 

primary medium strategy is being undertaken and will be reported to Cabinet 
at a later date.  In the short term it will be necessary to identify suitable school 
sites to locate temporary accommodation for the additional pupils.  

 
6.23 Feasibility Studies 
 
6.24 In order to keep the capital programme and the CSF AMP under 

development, including the need for developing PCP projects at Voluntary 
Aided schools and identifying schemes to create additional places, it is 
recommended that a sum of £250,000 is included in the programme to fund 
feasibility studies of future schemes.  

 
6.25 EYS Capital Programme 

 
6.26 Cabinet had previously approved an Early Years Service (EYS) Capital 

Programme in respect of a DfE capital grant allocation of £1,570,496 per 
annum for three years from April 2008. The grant has three main aims: 

 
• To improve the quality of the learning environment in early years 

settings to support the delivery of the Early Years Foundation 
Stage, with a particular emphasis on improving play and physical 
activities; and ICT resources 

 
• To ensure all children, including disabled children, are able to 

access provision. 
 

• To enable PVI providers to deliver the extension to the free offer for 
3 and 4 year olds and to do so flexibly. 

 
6.27 It is expected that the majority of this capital grant will be used to improve the 

quality of the environment in private, voluntary and independent (PVI) early 
years and childcare settings both to support higher quality experiences for 

Page 93



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

young children and to ensure that all children can access services and benefit 
fully from them, although spending on the maintained sector is not precluded. 

 
6.28 It is recommended that the global minor works budget for the EYS Capital 

Programme 2010/11 of £598,613 be adopted and that the detailed list of 
projects will be subject to approval under Corporate Director’s Delegated 
powers. Any individual projects above the £100,000 threshold will be subject 
to specific approval and subject to containing within the overall Global budget 
of £598,613. The remainder of the allocation will fund larger projects as 
identified below which have been agreed by the Early Years Service’s Capital 
Funding Panel:  

 
6.29   Lincoln Hall Playgroup – has been recommended for the award of a sum up 

to a maximum of £381,313 to improve the free-flow between the inside and 
outside areas, through the creation of a new transitional space. The project 
will also see the increasing of the capacity of the playgroup; additional 
improvements will be made to the premises, specifically: installing toilets in 
the main room and outdoor area; installing multi-functional play equipment; 
creating a shaded area to protect children from the sun, improving the heating 
system and lighting; enlarging the windows; creating a new office area; 
creating a new kitchen area and making equipment accessible for children in 
need.  

 
6.30   Mudchute Nursery – has been recommended for the award of a sum up to a 

maximum of £590,570 to carry out a comprehensive programme of internal 
remodelling and expansion of the building. These two elements for work will 
combine to: more than double the existing baby area by converting some of 
the existing internal space of the kitchen and adjacent laundry; move and 
provide a new industrial kitchen at the front of the building; expand the 
preschool area; extend the afterschool club area; move the laundry to create 
a new facility accessible form both the nursery and preschool areas; and to 
build onto the front of the building creating new storage and cloakroom 
facilities.  

 
7 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
7.1 This is a financial report setting out how the Children Schools and Families 

Department plans to spend available capital over the next three years, (with 
Cabinet endorsement) by applying the capital resources known to be 
available.  The financial information is included through this report and in the 
appendices.   

 
7.2 The capital budget set out in Table 1, paragraph 6.3 above identifies 2010/11 

spending plans for £45.656m which is £25.693m more than the figures 
previously approved by Cabinet in February 2010.  This increase is accounted 
for by further DfE capital grants of £3.94m, associated carry-forwards of 
£14.98m (as set out in Appendix A), £4.78m for Section 106 Planning Gain 
and £1.99m of School Contributions. 

 

Page 94



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

8. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
(LEGAL SERVICES) 

 
8.1 The report outlines proposed projects in Children’s Services and seeks 

Cabinet’s approval of the associated capital estimates. 
 
8.2 The Financial Regulations set a threshold of £250,000, above which Cabinet 

approval is required for a capital estimate.  The Financial Procedures 
supplement this requirement.  In accordance with Financial Procedure FP 3.3, 
senior managers are required to proceed with projects only when there is a 
capital estimate adopted and adequate capital resources have been identified.  
Where the estimate is over £250,000 the approval of the adoption of that 
capital estimate must be sought from the Cabinet.  Senior managers must 
obtain a supplementary capital estimate where an individual capital scheme is 
projected to spend in excess of the original approval.  If the supplementary 
capital estimate is more than £250,000, then Cabinet’s approval must be 
obtained. 

 
8.3 There is no legal impediment to approval of the estimates, as the proposed 

projects are capable of being carried out within the Council’s statutory 
functions.  The Council has a duty under the Education 1996 to secure that 
sufficient schools are available for Tower Hamlets.  The Council has a duty 
under the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 to make premises 
available as part of its duty to maintain schools.  The Council is also subject to 
duties under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 to ensure so far as is 
reasonably practicable the health and safety of staff, pupils, visitors and 
volunteers on school premises.  It will be for officers to ensure that individual 
commitments are carried out in accordance with legal requirements. 

 
8.4 Procurement for the various projects will need to be carried out in accordance 

with the Council’s Procurement Procedures and, where relevant, the Public 
Contract Regulations 2006.  In the case of works the relevant threshold for 
application of the regulations is £3.5m and in the case of related consultancy 
contracts the threshold is £140k.  Compliance with the procurement 
procedures should assist the Council to comply with its duty as a best value 
authority to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the 
way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness” (section 3 of the Local Government 
Act 1999). 

 
9.0 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
9.1 The implementation of the CSF’s capital programme is part of the LA’s 

strategy to improve achievement by improving the teaching and learning 
environment. 

 
9.2 Strategies to raise educational attainment, including improving quality of 

school buildings, support students moving into employment. 
 
10.0  SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 

Page 95



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\4\3\AI00025349\CSFCapitalcabinet070710rev210610revsd30.doc  

 
10.1 The proposed capital works aim to improve and preserve the quality of the   

building stock. Sustainability considerations are applied as far as possible to   
design and materials used. Projects included in the Primary Capital 
Programme are expected to obtain a rating of Very Good in the BREEAM 
Assessment.  
 

11.0  RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 

 11.1 The individual projects will be closely monitored to ensure that programmes 
are completed on time and within the budget provision.    

  
12.0  CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no specific implications arising.  
 
13.0 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
 
13.1 The capital works identified in the report will seek to improve energy efficiency    

and reduce ongoing maintenance.    
 

 APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A - CSF Capital Out-Turn 2009/10 
Appendix B - CSF Condition Programme 
Appendix C - Primary Capital Programme 
Appendix D - Expansion Programme         
 
 

 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

None N/A 
 
  
 

Page 96



 

 
11 

Out-turn 2009/10                APPENDIX A 
 

 
 
 

      Resources      Commitment       Carry Forward 
DCSF Supported Borrowing    
New Pupil Places 11,052,078 2,044,591 9,007,487 
Modernisation 1,084,565 207,092 877,473 
SAI 451,813 107,510 344,303 
*Other ICT 1,453,643 0 1,453,643 
 14,042,099 2,359,193 11,682,906 
Grants    
Primary Capital Programme 8,555,681 7,035,190 1,520,491 
Modernisation 1,511,632 809,718 701,914 
Extended Schools 788,968 154,063 634,905 
DCF 1,180,671 0 1,180,671 
*Sure Start 2,129,068 2,042,674 86,394 
*Space for Sports & Art 12,820 2,821   9,999 
CLC  150,000 150,000 0 
LPSA Reward Grant  98,868 98,868 0 
*ICT Capital Grant 13,767 -12,015 25,782 
*Learning School Council 10,395 10,394 1 
*Youth Capital Fund 215,800 209,151  6,649 
*Fair Play Pathfinder 1,615,489 1,594,678  20,811 
*TCF (school kitchens) 228,000 150,022 77,978 
ISPP  18,613 18,613 0 
NOF PE & Sports 19,298 19,298 0 
Integrating Children Services 65,925 65,925 0 
*NIACE 40,000 39,994 6 
*Short Breaks Capital Grant 176,700 6,478 170,222 
LHC 33,780 33,780 0 
School Contributions  812,250 0 812,250 
 17,677,725 12,429,652 5,248,073 
 
 
Section 106    
Ben Jonson/Manorfield  2,961,000 2,961,000 0 
*Lift at Bethnal Green Tech. College 30,000 585 29,415 
*Bishops Square - Thomas Buxton 111,069 46,526 64,543 
*Bishops Square – Christ Church Community 
Gardens 300,000 0 300,000 
Bishops Square - Osmani 695,885 0 695,885 
Bishops Square – LMU Community Space 50,000 1,442 48,558 
 4,147,954 3,009,553 1,138,401 
 
 
    

Page 97



 

 
12 

Local Priorities Programme 
*Youth Services Accommodation 99,510   5,300 94,210 
Professional Development Centre 198,629 198,629 0 
*Harry Gosling   14,940    2,488 12,452 
*School Meals Kitchen Improvements   1,943 0  1,943 
Improvement to school meals – kitchen 
refurb 6,613 0 6,613 
*Food Regeneration Kitchens 4,984 0 4,984 
Bishop Challenor community facilities  545,000 0 545,000 
Osmani Youth Centre 1,300,000 56,362 1,243,638 
 2,171,619 262,779 1,908,840 
    
    
Total (excluding BSF) 38,039,397 18,061,177 19,978,220 
 

 
Building Schools for the Future (grant 
funding) 
BSF  37,218,665 

          
34,232,982 2,985,683 

BSF Co-location Fund 178,247 178,247 0 
BSF – London Thames Gateway Funding 920,000 920,000 0 
 38,316,912 35,331,229 2,985,683 
 
    
    
Grand Total 76,356,309 53,392,406 22,963,903 
 

 
 

 
* Balance of previously agreed allocations 

Page 98



 

 1
3 

CS
F C

AP
ITA

L C
ON

DI
TIO

N 
PR

OG
RA

MM
E  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 A
PP

EN
DI
X B

  
  

LB
 TO

WE
R 
HA

ML
ET

S 
Co

nd
itio

n 
pr
og

ram
me

 
Ju

ly 
20
10
 

 
 

 
 

Pr
em

ise
s 

Wo
rks

 
Es

tim
ate

 
Pr
ev
iou

s S
pe

nd
 A

pr
 10

 - M
ar 

11
 
Ap

r 1
1 –

 M
ar 

 12
 

Ap
r 1

2 -
  M

ar 
13
 

By
gro

ve
* 

W
ind

ow
s/R

oo
f 

£6
17
,47

0 
£5
99
,62

5 
£1
7,8

45
 

 
 

By
gro

ve
* 

He
ati
ng
 

£7
5,0

00
 

£7
2,1

10
 

£2
,89

0 
 

 
Ba

ng
ab
an
dh
u 

Ro
of 

£4
83
,00

0 
 

 
£2
41
,50

0 
£2
41
,50

0 
Ba

ng
ab
an
dh
u 

Bo
un
da
ry 
Fe

nc
ing

 
£2
57
,00

0 
£3
5,0

00
 

£2
17
,00

0 
£5
,00

0 
 

Ca
no
n B

arn
ett
* 

Fa
bri
c R

ep
air
s 

£5
7,5

00
 

 
£5
7,5

00
 

 
 

Ch
ise

nh
ale

 
Bo

ile
rs 
& P

ipe
wo

rk 
£2
53
,00

0 
 

 
£2
00
,00

0 
£5
3,0

00
 

Ch
ise

nh
ale

 
Re

wir
e/E

me
rge

nc
y 

Lig
hti
ng
 

£1
50
,00

0 
 

 
 

£9
0,0

00
 

Eli
sa
be
th 
Se

lby
* 

Ro
of/
Ro

of 
Lig

hts
 

£5
45
,00

0 
£4
76
,75

0 
£6
8,2

50
 

 
 

Ev
a A

rm
sb
y 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t 

£9
0,0

00
 

£2
2,0

00
 

£6
8,0

00
 

 
 

Ge
org

e G
ree

ns
 C
C 

Re
fur

b. 
£6
0,0

00
 

 
 

£1
0,0

00
 

£2
5,0

00
 

Gl
ob
e* 

Ro
of/
RW

G 
& F

ab
ric
 

£1
38
,52

1 
£7
6,0

00
 

£6
2,5

21
 

 
 

Gl
ob
e* 

Pa
rt R

e-w
ire
 

£1
03
,50

0 
£9
0,0

00
 

£1
3,5

00
 

 
 

Go
rse

fie
ld 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t 

£8
5,0

00
 

£1
,00

0 
£8
4,0

00
 

 
 

Ha
rry

 G
os
lin
g 

Ad
dit
ion

al 
W
ork

s 
 

 
£4
07
,25

0 
 

 
He

rm
ita
ge
  

Fir
e A

lar
m 

£5
1,7

50
 

 
£5
1,7

50
 

 
 

He
rm

ita
ge
 

Pa
rt r

oo
f/C

eil
ing

s 
£8
0,5

00
 

 
 

 
£8
0,5

00
 

Kit
ka
t T

err
ac
e 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t 

£4
0,0

00
 

 
£2
0,0

00
 

£2
0,0

00
 

 

Page 99



 

 1
4 

Pr
em

ise
s 

Wo
rks

 
Es

tim
ate

 
Pr
ev
iou

s S
pe

nd
 A

pr
 10

 - M
ar 

11
 
Ap

r 1
1 –

 M
ar 

 12
 

Ap
r 1

2 -
  M

ar 
13
 

Jo
hn
 Sc

urr
 

W
ate

r P
um

ps
 

£4
0,2

50
 

 
£4
0,2

50
 

 
 

Jo
hn
 Sm

ith
s C

C 
Re

fur
b. 

£2
5,0

00
 

 
 

£2
5,0

00
 

 
La
wd

ale
 

Bo
un
da
ry 
W
all
s 

£8
0,0

00
 

 
 

£8
0,0

00
 

 
Ma

no
rfie

ld 
Bo

ile
rs 

£8
2,0

00
 

£8
0,0

00
 

2,0
00
 

 
 

Ma
lm
es
bu
ry 

Re
su
rfa

cin
g 

£6
0,0

00
 

 
 

£6
0,0

00
 

 
Ma

ry 
Sa

mb
roo

ke
 C
C 

Re
fur

b. 
£1
00
,00

0 
 

£5
0,0

00
 

£5
0,0

00
 

 
Ma

yfl
ow

er*
 

W
ind

ow
s 

£7
2,7

83
 

£7
0,9

64
 

£1
,81

9 
 

 
Ma

yfl
ow

er*
 

Re
wir

e/E
me

rge
nc
y 

Lig
hti
ng
 

£5
7,5

00
  

£5
7,5

00
  

 
 

 
Ma

yfl
ow

er*
 

Bo
ile
rs/
Pip

ew
ork

 
£1
39
,43

3 
£1
35
,91

2 
£3
,52

1 
 

 
Oa

kla
nd
s 

Fir
e A

lar
m 
& 

em
erg

en
cy
 lig

hti
ng
 

£2
10
,00

0 
£2
05
,00

0 
£5
,00

0 
 

 
Ol
d P

ala
ce
 

Co
nc
ret

e r
ep
air
s 

£1
15
,00

0 
 

£1
00
,00

0 
£1
5,0

00
 

 
Ov

erl
an
d C

C 
Re

fur
b. 

£2
0,0

00
 

 
 

 
£1
0,0

00
 

PD
C 

Fir
e A

lar
m 

£4
0,2

50
 

£3
5,2

50
 

£5
,00

0 
 

 
Qu

ee
n M

ary
’s 
CC

 
Re

fur
b. 

£1
10
,00

0 
 

£1
0,0

00
 

£5
0,0

00
 

£5
0,0

00
 

Sir
 W

illia
m 
Bu

rro
ug
h 

Ro
of/
Hig

h L
ev
el 
Fa

bri
c 

£2
07
,00

0 
 

 
 

£1
07
,00

0 
Sm

ith
y 

Re
su
rfa

cin
g 

£5
1,7

50
 

 
£5
1,7

50
 

 
 

Sm
ith
y* 

HW
/C
W
S 

£5
7.5

00
 

£4
7,5

00
 

£1
0,0

00
 

 
 

Sm
ith
y *

 
Fir

e A
lar
m 

£4
0,2

50
 

£4
0,2

50
 

 
 

 
Ste

bo
n* 

To
ile
ts 

£9
9,7

54
 

£8
3,6

00
 

£1
6,1

54
 

 
 

Ste
bo
n* 

Po
ol 

£1
40
,00

0 
 

£1
40
,00

0 
 

 

Page 100



 

 1
5 

Pr
em

ise
s 

Wo
rks

 
Es

tim
ate

 
Pr
ev
iou

s S
pe

nd
 A

pr
 10

 - M
ar 

11
 
Ap

r 1
1 –

 M
ar 

 12
 

Ap
r 1

2 -
  M

ar 
13
 

W
illia

m 
Da

vis
 

He
ati
ng
 

£2
07
,00

0 
 

 
£2
07
,00

0 
 

W
oo
lm
ore

 
To

ile
ts 

£6
0,0

00
 

 
 

 
£6
0,0

00
 

W
oo
lm
ore

 
Ex

ter
na
l B

uil
din

gs
 

£2
10
,00

0 
 

 
 

 
To

tal
 of

 al
l C

on
dit

ion
 sc

he
me

s  
 

£2
,12

8,4
61
 

£1
,50

6,0
00
 

£9
63
,50

0 
£7
17
,00

0 

 
Of
 w
hic

h s
pe

cif
ic 
ap

pr
ov

al 
so

ug
ht 

at 
thi

s 
me

eti
ng

.  (
As

 pe
r T

ab
le 
1) 

 
£1
,11

2,0
00
 

 
 

 
Of
 w
hic

h s
ch
em

es
 in
clu

de
d i
n A

pp
en
dix

 C
  

£1
,59

6,2
11
 

£3
94
,00

0 
 

 

 
Of
 w
hic

h F
utu

re 
sc
he
me

s w
he
re 

on
ly 
ag
ree

me
nt 
in 

pri
nc
ipl
e s

ou
gh
t 

 
 

£9
63
,50

0 
£7
17
,00

0 

  
* C

on
dit
ion

 w
ork

s a
nd
 co

sts
 pa

rt o
f P

CP
 pr

oje
ct

Page 101



 

 1
6 

PC
P P

lan
ne

d P
ro
jec

ts 
Wa

ve
 1 
  

 
 

 
 

 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
AP

PE
ND

IX 
C 
  

    
    
    
  

Pr
em

ise
s 

Wo
rks

 
Al
loc

ati
on

 P
rev

iou
s S

pe
nd

 
Ap

r 1
0 -

 M
ar 

11
 

Ap
r 1

1 –
 M
ar 

 12
 
Ap

r 1
2 –

 M
ar 

13
 

Co
mm

en
ts 

Gl
ob
e 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t, r

em
od
el 
an
d 

pla
nn
ed
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

£1
.8m

 
£2
52
,00

0  
£1
,51

6,0
00
 

£3
2,0

00
 

 
 

Ca
no
n B

arn
ett
  

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t, r

em
od
el 
gro

un
d 

flo
or 

an
d p

lan
ne
d m

ain
ten

an
ce
 

£1
.1m

 
£1
5,0

00
 

£6
87
,00

0 
£3
98
,00

0 
 

 
Ma

lm
es
bu
ry 

Re
mo

de
l a
nd
 pl
an
ne
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 

£1
.45

m 
£4
57
,00

0 
£8
65
,00

0 
£1
28
,00

0 
 

 
By
gro

ve
 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t, p

lan
ne
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 an

d r
em

od
ell
ing

 
£1
.7m

 
£9
29
,00

0  
£7
53
,00

0 
£1
8,0

00
 

 
 

Ma
yfl
ow

er 
Re

fur
bis

hm
en
t, e

xte
ns
ion

 & 
pla

nn
ed
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
  

£1
.6m

 
£3
51
,00

0  
£1
,22

2,0
00
 

£2
7,0

00
 

 
 

Ste
bo
n 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t, e

xte
ns
ion

 an
d 

pla
nn
ed
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

£1
.1m

 
£1
17
,00

0 
£7
46
,00

0 
£2
37
,00

0 
 

 
Eli
sa
be
th 
Se

lby
 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t, e

xte
ns
ion

 an
d 

pla
nn
ed
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

£1
.3m

 
£6
56
,00

0 
£6
32
,00

0 
£1
2,0

00
 

 
 

Sm
ith
y S

tre
et 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t, e

xte
ns
ion

 an
d 

pla
nn
ed
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 

£1
.9m

 
£5
44
,00

0 
£1
,32

7,0
00
 

£2
9,0

00
 

 
 

Va
rio
us
 ki
tch

en
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 sc

ho
ol 
me

als
 

kit
ch
en
s 

£1
.1m

 
£2
52
,00

0 
£8
48
,00

0 
 

 
 

Vo
lun

tar
y A

ide
d S

ch
oo

ls 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ch
ris
t C

hu
rch

 C
E 

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t a
nd
 pl
an
ne
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 

£1
.5m

 
(£1

,17
0m

 
gra

nt)
 

0 
£1
,00

0,0
00
 

£1
70
,00

0 
 

Gr
an

t E
lem

en
t O

nly
 

St 
Jo
hn
’s 
CE

 
Re

fur
bis

hm
en
t a
nd
 pl
an
ne
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
; in

clu
din

g a
dd
itio

na
l 

sit
e  

£1
.6m

 
(£1

,26
0 g

ran
t) 

 
0 

£1
,00

0,0
00
 

£2
60
,00

0 
 

Gr
an

t E
lem

en
t O

nly
 

St 
Pa

ul’
s C

E 
Re

fur
bis

hm
en
t a
nd
 pl
an
ne
d 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 

£2
.0m

 
(£1

,62
0 g

ran
t) 

0 
£1
,10

0,0
00
 

£5
20
,00

0 
 

Gr
an

t E
lem

en
t O

nly
 

Ma
jor
 Sc

he
me

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Fe
es
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
fut
ure

 
pro

gra
mm

es
  

£2
50
,00

0 
0 

£2
50
,00

0 
 

 
 

Co
nti
ng
en
cy
  

 
£2
00
,00

0 
 

£2
00
,00

0 
 

 
 

To
tal

s 
 

£1
7.5

5m
 

£3
,57

3,0
00
 

£1
2,1

46
,00

0 
£1
,83

1,0
00
  

 

Page 102



 

 1
7 

Ex
pa

ns
ion

 Pr
og

ram
me

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  A

PP
EN

DI
X D

 
     
    
    
  

Pr
em

ise
s 

Al
loc

ati
on

 
Pr
ev
iou

s S
pe

nd
 

Ap
r 1

0 -
 M
ar 

11
 

Ap
r 1

1 –
 M
ar 

 12
 

Ap
r 1

2 –
 M
ar 

13
 

Co
mm

en
ts 

Ar
nh
em

 W
ha
rf 

£4
.65

m 
£1
,66

2,1
30
 

£1
.04

9,4
66
 

£1
,93

9,3
74
 

 
 

Be
n J

oh
ns
on
 

£3
.5m

 
£1
,52

4,0
19
 

£1
,98

0,0
00
 

 
 

 
Cu

llo
de
n 

£5
.5m

 
 

£5
00
,00

0 
£4
,00

0,0
00
 

£1
,00

0,0
00
 

 
Ma

no
rfie

ld 
£5
.1m

 
£3
,42

2,8
89
 

£1
,42

3,4
66
 

£1
80
,42

5 
 

 
Ma

rne
r 

£6
.6m

 
£2
,61

2,3
85
 

£3
,01

9,4
11
 

£1
,00

0,0
00
 

 
 

W
ell
ing

ton
 

£3
.05

m 
 

£1
,33

5,0
00
 

£1
,68

6,0
00
 

£3
0,0

00
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
To

tal
s 

£2
8.4

m 
£9
,22

1,4
23
 

£9
,30

7,3
43
 

£8
,80

5,7
99
 

£1
,03

0,0
00
 

 
 

 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



  
Committee 
 
Cabinet  

Date 
 
7 July 2010 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 
 

Report 
No 

Agenda 
Item No 

Report of: 
 
Service Head, Scrutiny and Equalities 
 
Originating Officer(s) 
Frances Jones & Hafsha Ali 
Service Head, Scrutiny and Equalities 
 

Title:  
 
Single Equality Framework 2010-11 
 
Wards Affected All 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report presents Cabinet with the Council’s draft Single Equality Framework 2010/11. 

Replacing the annual Single Equality Framework, the Single Equality Framework is the 
Council’s new corporate strategy for promoting diversity and equality.  The Framework will 
help to achieve the vision of One Tower Hamlets by prioritising equality outcomes that 
require intervention at a strategic level and ensure that we have the capacity to deliver our 
vision. The Framework pulls together an ambitious programme of equalities work across 
the Council, including: 

 
• The activities required for the implementation of the Council’s Race, Disability, Gender, 

Religion/Belief, Sexual Orientation and Age Equality Schemes;  
• The actions that are necessary to maintain the highest level of the Equality Framework for 

local government and respond to the findings of the Council’s assessment against the 
Framework which took place in January 2010 and; 

• The organisation’s response to the requirements of the Equality Act (2009).  
 

The Council’s Workforce to Reflect the Community action plan also forms part of the Single 
Equality Framework. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Cabinet approves the Single Equality Framework 2009/10 which is set out in Appendix 

1. 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of background papers: 
 
Single Equality Framework 2009/10 agreed 

 
Name and telephone number of holder 
and address where open to inspection 
 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 105



by Cabinet on 2 July 2009 
 
 

David Sommerfeld, Support Officer, 
Scrutiny and Equalities 
020 7364 4521 

 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Tower Hamlets is one of the most culturally diverse and vibrant boroughs in the country.  

The rich cultural heritage of people living and working in the borough has been something 
that the Council has valued and celebrated.  While diversity brings tremendous strengths to 
Tower Hamlets, it also brings real challenges.  There continue to be groups in the local 
community who are not yet able to access all the opportunities and life chances that are 
available.  Some people continue to face discrimination at work and in the community.   

 
3.2 The Council’s Vision, developed in the Community Plan 2020, and to be achieved with our 

partners and with the active participation of all those who have a stake in the borough, is to 
improve the quality of life for everyone who lives and works in the borough. Underpinning 
this vision is the desire to build One Tower Hamlets –an ambition to reduce poverty and 
inequality, bring local communities closer together, and provide strong leadership by 
involving people and giving them the tools and support to improve their lives.  

 
3.3 The Council has also sought to be at the very forefront of developments on equalities and 

community cohesion, benchmarking progress against best practice from across the 
country.  This commitment and the achievement of real progress on the ground have been 
recognised by central government. 

 
3.4 The Council has placed equality at the core of all planning and service delivery and has 

developed an effective approach to equality action planning and monitoring. In March 2002 
the then Policy and Implementation Committee agreed to bring together the separate 
Stephen Lawrence Action Plan and the Equality Action Plan into a single integrated 
document.  The aim was to create a strong focus for driving equalities through the 
organisation and achieving real change on the ground.  The Single Equality Framework 
provided a mechanism for the identification and monitoring of equality priorities by bringing 
together a comprehensive picture of the work taking place across the Council to respond to 
identifies equalities issues. The new Single Equality Framework builds on the progress 
made through the implementation of annual Single Equality Frameworks since 2002.  

 
3.5 A combination of factors made 2010/11 an appropriate time to revise our strategic 

approach to equality to ensure that our analysis, methods and practices continue to be 
effective: 

 
3.5.1 Legislative changes 

Almost a decade on from the introduction of the first public sector equality duty much has 
been achieved in terms of embedding the promotion of equality in the structures and 
processes of service delivery and employment in the public sector. At a national level these 
changes have resulted in significant improvements in equality outcomes for target groups. 

Page 106



However the legal duties were developed in response to the needs of individual equality 
strands and this has lead to variation in the protection and rights afforded to different 
equality groups.  The Equality Act 2010, which has been passed but not yet commenced, 
recognises the need to address inequality in a more integrated way, responding to diversity 
within groups and the complex needs and experiences of inequality facing people in Britain. 
The provisions of the Act harmonise the rights afforded to equality target groups, require 
public organisations to identify and respond to the effects of socio-economic inequality as 
well as putting in place specific measures to safeguard the rights of pregnant women and 
disabled people. 
 

3.5.2 Equality Framework for Local Government  
The Equality Framework for Local Government replaced the Equality Standard in 2009. 
The Framework moves beyond an assessment of legal compliance to measure how well 
local authorities understand and respond to the profile of inequality in their local areas. In 
January 2010 the Council was the second local authority nationally to be awarded 
‘excellent’ status against the Equality Framework for Local Government. The assessment 
report described that: 

 
 ‘Equality and diversity underpins everything that the Council does with partners and 
stakeholders in the provision of services to its community.  London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets has an in-depth and sophisticated knowledge about its community which informs 
service delivery, very strong political and managerial leadership on equality and diversity; 
good levels of equality and diversity resources and expertise; a national reputation for 
diversity and innovative community engagement’.  

 
3.5.3 Continuous improvement 

Since the introduction of the Single Equality Framework in 2002 we have seen significant 
improvements in some key equality outcomes including educational achievement as well 
as notable improvements in access to services by equality target groups. However, deep 
seated inequality and deprivation remain a reality for many people in Tower Hamlets. Local 
and national research makes it clear that to address these issues which prevent people 
realising their potential requires a step change in the way we tackle inequality.  

 
At a national level, the 2007 Equalities Review stated that "It is not true that things will 
automatically get better with time. Some equality gaps are simply not closing...These 
inequalities threaten to undermine our social fabric at a time when it is already challenged 
by rapid and widespread economic and technological change... In some areas there is 
progress but it is painfully slow. Despite the often heroic efforts of individuals, the nature of 
a particular inequality can be so persistent, or the problems in an institution so deep, that 
conventional means or incremental progress are ineffective in bringing about significant 
change."  

 
 

Page 107



  
A recent report of the National Equality Panel (NEP) finds that “despite the elimination and 
even reversal of the differences in educational qualifications that often explain employment 
rates and relative pay, significant differences remain between men and women and 
between ethnic groups.  If we do not step up the progress it is anticipated that the pay gap 
between men and women in the UK will not close until 2085 and it will take almost 100 
years for people from ethnic minorities to get the same job prospects as white British 
people“. Tackling these complex and multi layered problems requires an approach to 
equalities which goes beyond mitigation of adverse impact and involve the marshalling of 
resources across the public, voluntary and private sectors.  

 
3.5.4 Public sector transformation and efficiency 

The Single Equality Framework has been developed in the context of significant reductions 
in public sector funding, an increased emphasis on efficiency and transformation in the 
provision of public services. Across the public sector there is a move away from a 
standardised model of service provision towards personalisation, shaping services provided 
to citizens in response to individual needs. This change presents a great opportunity to 
redesign services to better meet the needs of diverse populations and thereby tackle 
inequality. It also raises risks for the most vulnerable who are least able to access the 
benefit of greater personal choice and control.  The recession and reduction in public sector 
funding will also have a significant impact on the resources available to tackle inequality. 
The Single Equality Framework seeks to reshape our approach to equalities to move away 
from supplementary layers of activity to a more embedded approach to ensure that a focus 
on equality is at the centre of transformation and informs the allocation of resources from 
strategic to operational levels.  

 
 
4. The Single Equality Framework 
 
4.1 The Single Equality Framework brings together actions to promote equality at a 

Directorate, corporate level and through partnership working. It also includes the actions 
we will take as an employer to promote equality and develop a workforce that reflects our 
community.  

Page 108



  
 
4.2 Equality Schemes 
 
4.2.1 In preparation for the introduction of the Single Equality Duty we developed individual 

Equality Schemes for each equality strand during 2009-10. In these Schemes we analysed 
evidence of inequality between individuals and groups in the borough. Drawing on the 
Equality Measurement Framework categories the Equality Schemes offer a description of 
inequality which distinguishes between inequality of access and outcome. For example we 
know that many new communities in the borough are less able to access public services as 
they may not be aware of the services that exist, may experience language barriers and 
may not be eligible for some services. To ensure that we respond to this inequality of 
access we have a duty to engage with these communities to identify and minimise barriers 
and improve access. However we also know that for some groups and individuals, tackling 
inequality of outcome is not a case simply of improving access to services but requires a 
more holistic response to a range of factors. Mapping inequality across the equality strands 
in this way has helped us to identify areas of persistent and systemic inequality which arise 
from a complex interplay of factors and require a holistic and long term response. These 
areas are set out in Table 1 (see below).  

 
Single Equality 
Framework 

Equality Schemes: 
Age, Religion/Belief, 
Sexual Orientation, 

Disability, Gender and 
Race 

Workforce to Reflect 
the Community 
Action Plan 

Annual corporate 
Single Equality 
Action Plan 

 

Page 109



Pr
ior

ity
 

are
a 

Ag
e 

Di
sa
bil

ity
 

Ge
nd

er 
Ra

ce
 

Re
lig

ion
/B
eli
ef 

Se
xu

al 
Or

ien
tat

ion
 

A Prosperous 
Community: 
Worklessness 

 Inc
rea

se
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

dis
ab
led

 p
eo
ple

 
in 
em

plo
ym

en
t 

  

 Re
du
ce
 ra

te 
of 

ec
on
om

ic 
ina

cti
vit
y a

mo
ng
 

wo
rki
ng
 

ag
e 

wo
me

n 
 

Re
du
ce
 le

ve
ls 

of 
un
em

plo
ym

en
t 

an
d 

wo
rkl
es
sn
es
s 

am
on
gs
t 

Ba
ng
lad

es
hi 

an
d 

So
ma

li r
es
ide

nts
 

Re
du
ce
 
rat

e 
of 
 

ec
on
om

ic 
ina

cti
vit
y 

am
on
g 

Mu
slim

 w
om

en
 

       

A 
Prosperous 
Community: 
Educational 
achievement  Re

du
ce
 

nu
mb

er 
of 
16
-

18
 y

ea
r 
old

s  
no
t 

in 
ed
uc
ati
on
, 

em
plo

ym
en
t 

or 
tra

ini
ng
 

 
 

 Im
pro

ve
 
un
de
r 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 o

f 
bo
ys
 re

lat
ive

 to
 

gir
ls 
at 
GC

SE
 

 

Na
rro

w 
the

 
ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
ga
ps
 

be
tw
ee
n 

dif
fer

en
t 

eth
nic

 
gro

up
s 

an
d 

the
 

na
tio
na
l a
ve
rag

e  

 
Ta

ck
le 

ho
mo

ph
ob
ia 

in 
sc
ho
ols

 

A Great Place 
to Live: 
Housing 

 
Inc

rea
se
 ac

ce
ss
 

to 
ind

ep
en
de
nt 

livi
ng
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r 

dis
ab
led

 pe
op
le 

 

Ad
dre

ss
 sh

ort
ag
e 

of 
su
ita
ble

 s
oc
ial
 

ho
us
ing

 
wh

ich
 

ha
s 

a 
dis

pro
po
rtio

na
te 

im
pa
ct 

on
 B

ME
 

fam
ilie

s 

Ad
dre

ss
 sh

ort
ag
e 

of 
su
ita
ble

 s
oc
ial
 

ho
us
ing

 
wh

ich
 

ha
s 

a 
dis

pro
po
rtio

na
te 

eff
ec
t o

n 
Mu

slim
 

fam
ilie

s 

 

One Tower 
Hamlets: 
Community 
cohesion Str
en
gth

en
 

int
er-

ge
ne
rat

ion
al 

co
he
sio

n 

Gi
ve
 

dis
ab
led

 
pe
op
le 

a 
vo
ice

 
in 

de
cis

ion
 

ma
kin

g 
 

Inc
rea

se
 

the
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

pe
op
le 

of 
dif
fer

en
t 

ba
ck
gro

un
ds
 w
ho
 

fee
l 

tha
t 

eth
nic

 
dif
fer

en
ce
s 

are
 

res
pe
cte

d  

Inc
rea

se
 

the
 

ex
ten

t 
to 

wh
ich

 
pe
op
le 

of 
dif
fer

en
t 

fai
ths

 
sa
y 

the
y 

ge
t o

n 
we

ll t
og
eth

er 

Re
du
ce
 

ho
mo

ph
ob
ia 

an
d 

pro
mo

te 
un
de
rst
an
din

g 
an
d 

res
pe
ct 

for
 

LG
B p

eo
ple

 

A Healthy 
Community:  
Health 

Re
du
ce
 

ch
ild
ho
od
 

ob
es
ity
 

 

Im
pro

ve
 

life
 

ex
pe
cta

nc
y 

for
 

me
n 

thr
ou
gh
 

eff
ec
tiv
e 

he
alt
h 

pro
mo

tio
n 

se
rvi
ce
s 

Pr
om

ote
 h

ea
lth
y 

life
sty

les
 
in 

an
 

eff
ec
tiv
e 

wa
y 

to 
BM

E 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
 

Im
pro

ve
 a

cc
es
s 

to 
pri
ma

ry 
ca
re 

he
alt
h 

se
rvi
ce
s 

for
 LG

B p
eo
ple

 

Ta
bl
e 
1:
 Pr

ior
ity
 ar

ea
s o

f in
eq
ua
lity

 to
 be

 ad
dre

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 Eq

ua
lity

 Sc
he
me

s, 
20
09
-12

 

Page 110



 
 
4.2.2 Under the new Single Equality Framework, the actions within the Schemes 

will be taken forward by services and actively monitored by Directorates 
through their Equality Focus Groups. The Corporate Equalities Steering 
Group will continue to have a oversight and challenge role to ensure that 
overall progress to deliver the Schemes is maintained. 

 
4.2.3 Workforce to Reflect the Community Action Plan 

This annual action plan is an integral part of the Council’s Single Equality 
Framework and specifically will provide the bulk of the actions relating to 
the Council as an employer. The action plan will therefore complement the 
Council’s equality schemes and service provision activities also included in 
the Single Equality Framework. 

 
4.2.4 Annual Single Equality Framework Action Plan  

The annual corporate action plan has two objectivities: 
 

• To identify priority areas of persistent inequality and develop 
effective strategies to tackle them 
The Single Equality Framework enables us to look across all six Equality 
Schemes and identify areas of persistent inequality which arise from a 
complex interplay of factors. For example, to understand the pattern of 
educational achievement in the borough we need to look at the impact of 
gender, ethnicity, religion/belief, age and socio-economic background. 
Through the Framework we will investigate the determinants of unequal 
outcomes beyond individual equality strands and aim to understand the 
relationship between the strands and other circumstances that drive poor 
outcomes including socio-economic disadvantage.  We will explore 
whether the interventions that we have in place can tackle the drivers of 
inequality to deliver the outcomes we look to see in the long term. To 
enable us to target these areas of persistent inequality the Single Equality 
Framework action plan will address a small number of priority areas each 
year. The priorities will be identified through: 
 

• A mapping of evidence of inequalities identified within each of the 
six equality schemes that cut across the strands (see Table 1) 

• An analysis of the priorities within the Community Plan  
• An assessment of current interventions which suggests that there is 

scope to improve the effectiveness and efficiency  
 

• To ensure that the Council has the resources, structures and 
processes in place to achieve our commitments.  The Council will 
use the Equality Framework for Local Government to improve the 
capacity of the organisation to tackle inequality. 

 

Page 111



 
4. DISSEMINATION OF THE PLAN 

 
4.1 The preparation of the Single Equality Framework has taken place through 

the Council’s Corporate Equalities Steering Group which has 
representation from across the authority and includes the Trade Unions, 
and with the contribution of Directorate Equalities Focus Groups.   

 
4.2 Once agreed by Cabinet, the Plan will be distributed widely and will also 

be published on the Council’s Web site.  Internally, the Plan will be taken 
forward through each of the Directorate Equalities Focus Groups, and will 
be reflected in team plans and individual staff performance and 
development plans.  Copies of the Plan will also be made available 
through the Council’s intranet.  

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The contents of the Single Equality Framework has been drawn together 

by the Council’s Corporate Equalities Steering Group with contributions 
from all Directorates and reflecting the input from latest consultation, such 
as the Annual Residents Survey and external consultation groups, 
including the Tower Hamlets Interfaith Forum and the LGBT Forum, as 
well as partnership groups such as the Race and Hate Crime Interagency 
Forum and the Refugee and New Migrants Forum.  The contents of the 
Plan are also informed from feedback through the staff survey, the local 
Trade Unions and corporate staff groups which have a specific focus on 
Disability, Sexuality and Ethnicity.   Further input from these groups will be 
sought as part of the implementation process to ensure maximum impact 
is achieved from this work. 

 
6. MONITORING AND EVALUATION ARRANGEMENTS 
 
6.1 As well as the monitoring of implementation taking place through the 

Directorate Equality Focus Groups, and the Corporate Equalities Steering 
Group, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee formally reviews progress 
every six months.  The Council also seeks out opportunities for external 
challenge and benchmarking.  

 
6.2 In 2008-9 the Deputy Leader chaired the pilot Members’ Diversity and 

Equality Working Group. Aimed to help develop the community leadership 
skills of Councillors, the Group considered a range of areas persistent 
inequality.  

 
The Working Group involved partners and residents to explore real life 
scenarios. These highlighted the complexities involved and the importance 
of creating public space to air them. Arising from the Group Members 

Page 112



were involved in a public event where local young people discussed with 
central government officials the implications of the Preventing Violent 
Extremism agenda locally. They also participated in events during LGBT 
History Month including a debate about the future of the LGBT Community 
Forum. The work of the Group demonstrated how Members’ on the 
ground experience can provides a vital counterweight to the development 
of strategic plans.  

 
 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
  
7.1. Cabinet is asked to agree the Single Equality Framework 2010-11.  The 

Plan sets out the Council’s commitment to promoting diversity and equality 
and how the Council will deliver on that commitment. 

 
7.2. The Council is subject to general equality duties in relation to race, gender 

and disability, details of which are as follows.  The Council is required in 
carrying out its functions to have due regard to the need to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination on grounds of gender, race and disability.  The 
Council must also have regard to the need to eliminate harassment on 
grounds of gender and disability.  The Council must in addition have 
regard to the need to: promote equality of opportunity in these areas, 
promote good relations between persons of different racial groups; take 
steps to take account of disabled persons’ disabilities, even where that 
involves treating disabled persons more favourably than other persons; 
promote positive attitudes towards disabled persons; and encourage 
participation by disabled persons in public life.  Insofar as the Single 
Equality Framework is targeted at race, gender and disability, the plan 
may be regarded as giving effect to the Council’s legal obligations. 

 
7.3. The Council is not presently subject to general equality duties in respect of 

other protected characteristics.  In the absence of general equality duties, 
the Council is still subject to obligations not to discriminate on grounds of 
age, sexuality and religion or belief.  The Single Equality Framework may 
in part be supported by the Council’s need to comply with the statutes and 
regulations listed in the first section of the Plan. 

 
7.4. To the extent that the Single Equality Framework contains broader goals 

of promoting diversity and equality, then it may be viewed as a matter of 
good administration, consistent with the Equality Framework for Local 
Government, and in pursuance of the Council’s goal of One Tower 
Hamlets set out in the Community Plan.  The Council is empowered under 
section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 to do anything which it 
considers likely to promote the social, economic or environmental well 
being of Tower Hamlets, provided the action is not otherwise prohibited by 

Page 113



statute.  The power may be exercised in relation to, or for the benefit of: 
(a) the whole or any part of Tower Hamlets; or (b) all or any persons 
resident in Tower Hamlets.  In exercising the power, regard must be had 
to the Community Plan.  The report and the Single Equality Framework set 
out details of the One Tower Hamlets goal and how working towards that 
goal will benefit people living in Tower Hamlets.  Cabinet may view the 
Single Equality Framework as being supported by its well-being power. 

 
7.5. The Equality Act 2010 has been passed, but not yet commenced.  The Act 

seeks to harmonise the law on equality.  It proposes to introduce a public 
sector equality duty that will require the Council in the exercise of its 
functions to have due regard to the need to: (a) eliminate discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act; (b) 
advance equality of opportunity between persons who have relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not; and (c) foster good 
relations between those who share relevant protected characteristics and 
those who do not.  The relevant protected characteristics are: age; 
disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or 
belief; sex and sexual orientation.  The Act also proposes to introduce a 
duty on the Council to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to 
the desirability of exercising the functions in a way that is designed to 
reduce the inequalities of outcome which result from socio-economic 
disadvantages.  The Single Equality Framework appears consistent with 
these duties. 

 
7.6. It will be for officers to ensure that individual actions carried out under the 

Framework are conducted lawfully, taking legal advice where necessary. 
 
 
8. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
8.1 Equalities issues should be embedded into service delivery, and they are 

taken into account when budgets are set. In 2010-11 some of the funding 
identified in the Action Plan attached to the report, currently available to 
the Council to support the Single Equality Framework such as the Working 
Neighborhoods Fund (WNF) programme will come to end. In addition, the 
government has recently announced 2010-11 in-year savings for certain 
categories of grants.  

 
8.2 There are no additional financial implications arising from adopting the 

Single Equality Framework 2010-11. However, if additional costs arise 
from implementing the Plan, given constraints on future grant funding, 
they must be contained within revenue budget provisions in directorates. 

 
9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
 

Page 114



9.1 The Single Equality Framework 2010-11 represents an important step in 
progressing the Council’s commitment to building One Tower Hamlets as 
a place in which people live together and where they are treated with 
respect and fairness regardless of their differences.  The Plan 
demonstrates that a commitment to tackling inequality and promoting 
cohesion is at the heart of the Council’s agenda and sets out the work due 
to take place to integrate diversity and equality fully into all aspects of 
service delivery and employment practice.  The 2010-11 Plan also 
explores the inter relationship between work on equalities and community 
cohesion. The aim of the Action Plan is to create an environment in which 
everyone who lives and works in our borough is treated with dignity and 
respect and where everyone can improve their life chances and access 
the increasing opportunities on offer. 

 
9.2 The Single Equality Framework aims to tackle the barriers currently 

preventing some of the most disadvantaged people in our community from 
accessing the life opportunities on offer and aims to enable them to 
actively participate in creating and sharing prosperity in the borough. It 
also sets out the role of elected members and other community leaders in 
bringing about the change required to drive forward real improvement in 
relation to equality and cohesion.  

 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
10.1 Efforts will be made to ensure that in delivering the commitments of the 

Single Equality Framework the impact on the environment is kept to an 
absolute minimum.  This includes the use of recycled paper in any 
documentation, and careful consideration of the methods used to engage 
with local communities, partners and staff. 

  
11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Council is seeking to implement an ambitious diversity and equality 

agenda in the context of changes in national legislation and standards.  
Progress to date has been very positive, but there is still much to be done 
if all the Council’s targets are to be achieved and all the new legislative 
requirements are fully complied with.  Any slippage could potentially 
undermine this. 

 
11.2 The Single Equality Framework provides a focus for all the Council’s 

equalities work, and a means by which Members can ensure that each of 
the progress milestones are achieved.  The arrangements in place to 
review progress during the year through the Corporate Equalities Steering 
Group, Corporate Management Team and finally by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are considered to be effective ways of keeping this 
work on track. 

Page 115



 
11.3 Diversity and equality performance indicators will help keep the focus 

firmly on delivery and outcomes.  The emphasis on consultation will mean 
that the Council’s performance in this area will be judged by the 
experiences of service users on the ground. 

 
11.4 The Council will continue to work closely with the Improvement and 

Development Agency (IDeA) to ensure that local practice in implementing 
the Equality Standard and all equalities issues is informed by best practice 
taking place in other parts of the country. 

 
12. APPENDICES 
 Appendix 1 - Single Equality Framework 2010-11 
 

Page 116



 
1 

 
DR

AF
T 
 

To
we

r H
am

le
ts
  

SI
NG

LE
 E
QU

AL
IT
Y 

FR
AM

EW
OR

K 
20
10
/1
1 

Page 117



 
2 

DR
AF

T S
IN
GL

E E
QU

AL
ITY

 FR
AM

EW
OR

K 
20
10
/11

 
 1. 

Int
ro
du

cti
on

 
 Th

e 
Sin

gle
 E
qu
ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

is 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s

 n
ew

 co
rpo

rat
e 
str
ate

gy
 fo

r p
rom

oti
ng
 d
ive

rsi
ty,
 e
qu
ali
ty 

an
d 
co
he
sio

n, 
it 

rep
lac

es
 th

e 
an
nu
al 

Div
ers

ity
 a
nd
 E
qu
ali
ty 

Ac
tio
n 
Pla

n. 
 In

teg
rat

ed
 in

to 
the

 S
tra

teg
ic 

Pla
n, 

the
 F
ram

ew
ork

 sh
arp

en
s t

he
 

str
ate

gic
 di
rec

tio
n o

f th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 w
ork

 an
d i
s d

es
ign

ed
 to

 st
ren

gth
en
 ou

r e
xis

tin
g a

pp
roa

ch
 to

 m
ee
t th

e n
ew

 ch
all
en
ge
s t
ha
t 

we
 fa

ce
 to

da
y. 
It e

mb
rac

es
 th

e p
rin
cip

les
 of

 a 
ne
w 
Sin

gle
 E
qu
ali
ty 
Du

ty,
 ad

ds
 va

lue
 to

 th
e s

ix 
ind

ivid
ua
l E

qu
ali
ty 
Sc

he
me

s 
an
d b

uil
ds
 on

 ou
r s
tro

ng
 re

co
rd 

of 
em

be
dd
ing

 di
ve
rsi
ty 
an
d e

qu
ali
ty 
in 
ev
ery

thi
ng
 w
e d

o. 
 

 Th
e 
Co

un
cil’

s 
Vis

ion
, d

ev
elo

pe
d 
in 

the
 C

om
mu

nit
y 
Pla

n 
20
20
, i
s 
to 

be
 a
ch
iev

ed
 w

ith
 o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
 a
nd
 w

ith
 th

e 
ac
tiv
e 

pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n o

f a
ll t
ho
se
 w
ho
 ha

ve
 a 

sta
ke
 in
 th
e b

oro
ug
h, 
is 
to 
im
pro

ve
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 lif
e f
or 

ev
ery

on
e w

ho
 liv

es
 an

d w
ork

s i
n 

the
 b
oro

ug
h. 

Un
de
rpi
nn
ing

 th
is 

vis
ion

 is
 th

e 
de
sir
e 
to 

bu
ild
 O

ne
 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 –
 a
n 
am

bit
ion

 to
 re

du
ce
 p
ov
ert

y 
an
d 

ine
qu
ali
ty,
 br

ing
 lo

ca
l c
om

mu
nit
ies

 cl
os
er 

tog
eth

er,
 an

d p
rov

ide
 st

ron
g l

ea
de
rsh

ip 
by
 in

vo
lvin

g p
eo
ple

 an
d g

ivin
g t

he
m 

the
 

too
ls 

an
d 
su
pp
ort

 to
 im

pro
ve
 th

eir
 liv

es
. T

he
 S

ing
le 

Eq
ua
lity

 F
ram

ew
ork

 w
ill 
he
lp 

to 
ac
hie

ve
 th

is 
by
 p
rio
riti
sin

g 
eq
ua
lity

 
ou
tco

me
s t
ha
t re

qu
ire
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
 at
 a 
str
ate

gic
 le
ve
l a
nd
 it 
wil

l e
ns
ure

 th
at 
we

 ha
ve
 th
e c

ap
ac
ity
 to
 de

live
r o

ur 
vis

ion
.   

 2. 
Ba

ck
gr
ou

nd
 to

 th
e S

ing
le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
or
k 2

01
0/1

1 
 A 
co
mb

ina
tio
n o

f fa
cto

rs 
ma

de
 20

10
/11

 an
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 tim
e t

o r
ev
ise

 ou
r s

tra
teg

ic 
ap
pro

ac
h t

o e
qu
ali
ty 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t o

ur 
an
aly

sis
, m

eth
od
s a

nd
 pr

ac
tic
e c

on
tin
ue
 to
 be

 ef
fec

tiv
e. 
  

 Alm
os
t a

 de
ca
de
 on

 fro
m 

the
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of

 pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 eq
ua
lity

 du
tie
s w

e h
av
e c

om
e a

 lo
ng
 w
ay
 in
 te

rm
s o

f th
e e

qu
ali
ty 

ou
tco

me
s 
we

 h
av
e 
ac
hie

ve
d 
an
d 
ou
r c

ap
ac
ity
 to

 ta
ck
le 

ine
qu
ali
ty.
  
In 

Ja
nu
ary

 2
01
0 
the

 C
ou
nc
il w

as
 th

e 
se
co
nd
 lo

ca
l 

au
tho

rity
 na

tio
na
lly 

to 
be
 aw

ard
ed
 ‘E

xc
ell
en
t’ s

tat
us
 ag

ain
st 
the

 E
qu
ali
ty 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 Lo
ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt.
 Th

e a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

rep
ort

 qu
ote

d t
ha
t: 

  ‘E
qu
ali
ty 
an
d d

ive
rsi
ty 
un
de
rpi
ns
 ev

ery
thi
ng
 th
at 
the

 C
ou
nc
il d

oe
s w

ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 an
d s

tak
eh
old

ers
 in
 th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f s
erv

ice
s 

to 
its
 co

mm
un
ity
.  
Lo
nd
on
 B
oro

ug
h 
of 

To
we

r H
am

let
s h

as
 a
n 
in-
de
pth

 a
nd
 so

ph
ist
ica

ted
 kn

ow
led

ge
 a
bo
ut 

its
 co

mm
un
ity
 

wh
ich

 in
for

ms
 s
erv

ice
 d
eli
ve
ry,
 v
ery

 s
tro

ng
 p
oli
tic
al 

an
d 
ma

na
ge
ria
l le

ad
ers

hip
 o
n 
eq
ua
lity

 a
nd
 d
ive

rsi
ty;
 g
oo
d 
lev

els
 o
f 

eq
ua
lity

 an
d d

ive
rsi
ty 
res

ou
rce

s a
nd
 ex

pe
rtis

e; 
a n

ati
on
al 
rep

uta
tio
n f
or 

div
ers

ity
 an

d i
nn
ov
ati
ve
 co

mm
un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt’
.  

 Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
 co

nte
xt 
wit

hin
 w
hic

h w
e w

ork
 to

 ta
ck
le 
ine

qu
ali
ty 
is 
un
de
rgo

ing
 si
gn
ific

an
t c
ha
ng
e, 

wh
ich

 ca
lls 

for
 a 

sh
arp

en
ing

 
of 
ou
r e

xis
tin
g a

pp
roa

ch
. T

he
 ch

an
ge
s i
n e

qu
ali
tie
s l
eg
isla

tio
n s

et 
ou
t in

 th
e 2

01
0 E

qu
ali
ty 
Bil
l, t
he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 th
e E

qu
ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

for
 L
oc
al 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t a

nd
 w

ide
r p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m

ea
su
res

 a
ll r

ec
og
nis

e 
tha

t i
f w

e 
are

 to
 a
ch
iev

e 
pro

gre
ss
 in

 
tac

klin
g 
pe
rsi
ste

nt 
are

as
 o
f in

eq
ua
lity

 w
e 
ne
ed
 to

 b
e 
mo

re 
so
ph
ist
ica

ted
 in

 o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h 
to 

un
de
rst
an
din

g 
eq
ua
lity

. T
his

 

Page 118



 
3 

req
uir
es
 us

 to
 be

 re
sp
on
siv

e t
o t
he
 su

pe
r d

ive
rsi
ty 
of 
ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

 an
d t
he
ir c

om
ple

x n
ee
ds
 an

d e
xp
eri
en
ce
s o

f in
eq
ua
lity

, 
in 
a w

ay
 w
hic

h i
s r
ele

va
nt 
to 
the

 ne
w 
wa

ys
 of
 w
ork

ing
 an

d c
ha
lle
ng
es
 th
at 
the

 pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 fa
ce
s t
od
ay
.   

 Th
e E

qu
ali
tie
s R

ev
iew

 20
07
 se

t o
ut 

in 
ab
sol

ute
 te

rm
s t
he
 st
ep
 ch

an
ge
 ne

ces
sar

y t
o a

ch
iev

e r
eal

 pr
og
res

s o
n e

qu
ali
ty 

in 
Br
ita
in.

 A
t th

e 
cu
rre

nt 
rat

e o
f p

rog
res

s, t
he
 Re

vie
w 
sta

ted
 th

at 
it w

ill 
tak

e u
nti

l 3
02
6 f

or 
Pa
rlia

me
nt 

to 
be
 re

pre
sen

tat
ive

. T
he
 Re

vie
w 
arg

ue
s: 

"It 
is 
no
t tr

ue
 th
at 
thi
ng
s w

ill a
uto

ma
tic
all
y g

et 
be
tte
r w

ith
 tim

e. 
So

me
 eq

ua
lity

 ga
ps
 ar

e s
im
ply

 no
t c
los

ing
...T

he
se
 in
eq
ua
litie

s 
thr

ea
ten

 to
 u
nd
erm

ine
 o
ur 

so
cia

l fa
bri
c 
at 

a 
tim

e 
wh

en
 it
 is

 a
lre
ad
y 
ch
all
en
ge
d 
by
 ra

pid
 a
nd
 w

ide
sp
rea

d 
ec
on
om

ic 
an
d 

tec
hn
olo

gic
al 
ch
an
ge
... 

In 
so
me

 ar
ea
s t
he
re 

is 
pro

gre
ss
 bu

t it
 is
 pa

inf
ull
y s

low
. D

es
pit
e t

he
 of

ten
 he

roi
c e

ffo
rts
 of

 in
div

idu
als

, 
the

 na
tur

e o
f a
 pa

rtic
ula

r in
eq
ua
lity

 ca
n b

e s
o p

ers
ist
en
t, o

r th
e p

rob
lem

s i
n a

n i
ns
titu

tio
n s

o d
ee
p, 
tha

t c
on
ve
nti
on
al 
me

an
s o

r 
inc

rem
en
tal
 pr

og
res

s a
re 

ine
ffe
cti
ve
 in
 br

ing
ing

 ab
ou
t s
ign

ific
an
t c
ha
ng
e."

  

 
 M
ov
ing

 be
yo
nd

 sin
gle

 eq
ua

lity
 st
ra
nd

s 
Th

e R
ev
iew

 de
mo

nst
rat

ed
 th

at 
to 

ach
iev

e t
he
 ste

p c
ha
ng
e n

ece
ssa

ry 
we

 ne
ed
 to

 re
co
gn
ise

 th
at 
ine

qu
ali
ty 
ari

ses
 fro

m 
an
 in

ter
pla

y o
f fa

cto
rs 

wh
ich

 co
mb

ine
 to

 cr
eat

e r
eal

 ba
rri
ers

 to
 eq

ua
lity

 of
 op

po
rtu

nit
y a

nd
 ou

tco
me

. In
 th

e p
ast

 eq
ua
liti

es 
leg

isl
ati
on
 ha

s f
oc
use

d o
n i

nd
ivi

du
al 

eq
ua
lity

 str
an
ds 

of 
rac

e, 
gen

de
r, d

isa
bil

ity
, a
ge,

 re
lig

ion
/be

lie
f a
nd
 se

xu
al 
ori

en
tat
ion

. H
ow

ev
er 
in 

To
we

r H
am

let
s w

e k
no
w 
tha

t to
 de

ve
lop

 
eff

ect
ive

 in
ter

ve
nti

on
s w

e n
eed

 to
 un

de
rst
an
d h

ow
 a 
va
rie

ty 
of 

fac
tor

s s
ha
pe
 lif

e c
ha
nc
es 

an
d t

ha
t p

ov
ert

y h
as 

a d
efi

nin
g i

mp
act

 on
 a 
ran

ge
 

of 
ou
tco

me
s. 
 Th

e 2
01
0 N

ati
on
al 

Eq
ua
lity

 Pa
ne
l re

po
rte

d t
ha
t e

co
no
mi

c a
dv
an
tag

e a
nd
 di

sad
va
nta

ge 
rei

nfo
rce

 th
em

sel
ve
s a

cro
ss 

the
 lif

e 
cyc

le,
 an

d o
fte

n o
n t

o t
he
 ne

xt 
gen

era
tio

n. 
Ine

qu
ali
ty 

acc
um

ula
tes

 ac
ros

s th
e l
ife

 cy
cle

, e
spe

cia
lly

 th
ose

 re
lat
ed
 to

 pe
op
le’

s s
oc
io-

eco
no
mi

c 
ba
ck
gro

un
d. 
Th

is i
s s

een
 be

for
e c

hil
dre

n e
nte

r s
ch
oo
l, t

hro
ug
h t

he
 sc

ho
ol 

yea
rs,
 th

rou
gh
 en

try
 in

to 
the

 la
bo
ur 

ma
rke

t, a
nd
 on

 to
 re
tire

me
nt,

 
we

alt
h a

nd
 re

sou
rce

s f
or 

ret
ire

me
nt,

 an
d m

ort
ali
ty 

rat
es 

in 
lat
er 

life
. B

y i
mp

lic
ati
on
, p
oli

cy 
int

erv
en
tio

ns 
to 

co
un
ter

 th
is 
are

 ne
ed
ed
 at
 ea

ch
 

life
 cy

cle
 sta

ge
. 

 It i
s i
mp

ort
an
t th

at 
ou
r a

pp
roa

ch
 is
 al
so
 re

sp
on
siv

e t
o t

he
 tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n w

e a
re 

se
ein

g t
o t

he
 w
ay
 in
 w
hic

h t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 

ou
r p

art
ne
rs 
de
live

r p
ub
lic 

se
rvi
ce
s. 
Fo

r e
xa
mp

le,
 ac

ros
s t
he
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 th
ere

 is
 a 
mo

ve
 aw

ay
 fro

m 
a s

tan
da
rdi
se
d m

od
el 
of 

Page 119



 
4 

se
rvi
ce
 p
rov

isio
n 
tow

ard
s 
Pe

rso
na
lisa

tio
n 
- s

ha
pin

g 
se
rvi
ce
s 
pro

vid
ed
 to

 c
itiz

en
s 
in 

res
po
ns
e 
to 

ind
ivid

ua
l n

ee
ds
. T

his
 

ap
pro

ac
h b

rin
gs
 gr

ea
t o

pp
ort

un
itie

s t
o b

ett
er 

me
et 

the
 di
ve
rse

 ne
ed
s o

f r
es
ide

nts
 bu

t a
lso

 pr
es
en
ts 
a c

ha
lle
ng
e o

f e
ns
uri
ng
 

tha
t a

ll p
eo
ple

 ar
e a

ble
 to

 re
ali
se
 th

e b
en
efi
ts 
of 

gre
ate

r c
ho
ice

. T
he
 re

ce
ss
ion

 an
d r

ed
uc
tio
n i

n p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r s
pe
nd
ing

 w
ill 

als
o h

av
e a

 si
gn
ific

an
t im

pa
ct 
on
 ou

r a
bil
ity
 to

 ta
ck
le 
pri
ori
ty 
are

as
 of

 in
eq
ua
lity

 an
d t

he
 w
ay
 in
 w
hic

h w
e p

rov
ide

 se
rvi
ce
s t
o 

pro
mo

te 
eq
ua
lity

. T
he
 sc

ale
 of

 th
e e

sti
ma

ted
 cu

ts 
me

an
s t
ha
t w

e w
ill 
ne
ed
 to

 m
ak
e s

av
ing

s i
n t

he
 sh

ort
 te

rm
 an

d a
lso

 lo
ok
 

be
yo
nd
 th

e s
ha
vin

g a
nd
 sl
icin

g o
f c
os
ts 
to 

ne
w 
an
d d

iffe
ren

t w
ay
s i
n w

hic
h s

erv
ice

s c
an
 be

 tra
ns
for

me
d t

o m
ak
e t

he
m 

mo
re 

eff
ec
tiv
e a

nd
 ef
fic
ien

t.  
 3. 

Va
lui

ng
 D
ive

rsi
ty:

 O
ur
 Po

lic
y S

tat
em

en
t o

n D
ive

rsi
ty 

an
d E

qu
ali
ty 

 Ou
r c

om
mi

tm
en

t 
Va

lui
ng
 d
ive

rsi
ty 

is 
on
e 
of 

the
 fo

ur 
co
re 

va
lue

s 
of 

To
we

r H
am

let
s 
Co

un
cil.

  
W
e 
wil

l p
rom

ote
 d
ive

rsi
ty 

an
d 
eq
ua
lity

 in
 

ev
ery

thi
ng
 w

e 
do
 to

 im
pro

ve
 th

e 
qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

 fo
r e

ve
ryo

ne
 liv

ing
, w

ork
ing

 a
nd
 v
isit

ing
 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

.  
Th

e 
bo
rou

gh
’s 

div
ers

ity
 is
 on

e o
f it
s g

rea
tes

t s
tre

ng
ths

 an
d a

ss
ets

.  W
e w

ill b
uil
d u

po
n t
his

 by
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 

pro
vid

e a
cc
es
sib

le 
an
d r

es
po
ns
ive

 se
rvi
ce
s t
ha
t e

na
ble

 ev
ery

on
e t

o t
ak
e p

art
 in
 th

e s
oc
ial
, c
ult
ura

l a
nd
 ec

on
om

ic 
we

alt
h o

f 
the

 bo
rou

gh
.  A

ch
iev

ing
 th
is 
is 
ce
ntr

al 
to 
de
live

rin
g t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 vi
sio

n, 
is 
lin
ke
d t
o o

ur 
Str

ate
gic

 Pl
an
 pr

ior
itie

s a
nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 

an
d f
orm

s a
 dr

ivin
g f
orc

e w
ith
in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit
y P

lan
 an

d i
s k

ey
 to
 cr
ea
tin
g a

 co
he
siv

e c
om

mu
nit
y. 

 Ou
r c

om
mi
tm
en
t is

 su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

leg
al 

du
tie
s t

ha
t r
eq
uir
e u

s t
o p

rom
ote

 eq
ua
lity

 an
d e

lim
ina

te 
dis

cri
mi
na
tio
n. 
 

Th
es
e p

rov
ide

 im
po
rta

nt 
too

ls 
to 

he
lp 
fur

the
r e

mb
ed
 di
ve
rsi
ty 
an
d e

qu
ali
ty 
in 
the

 cu
ltu
re 

of 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
.  W

e b
eli
ev
e w

e 
ha
ve
 a 

str
on
g m

ora
l a
nd
 so

cia
l d

uty
 to

 do
 ev

ery
thi
ng
 w
e c

an
 to

 ch
all
en
ge
 pr

eju
dic

e a
nd
 di

sc
rim

ina
tio
n a

nd
 pr

om
ote

 be
tte
r 

un
de
rst
an
din

g a
nd
 re

sp
ec
t.  
At 

the
 sa

me
 tim

e w
e r

ec
og
nis

e t
ha
t d
isc

rim
ina

tio
n t
ak
es
 pl
ac
e a

nd
 te
ns
ion

s c
an
 so

me
tim

es
 ex

ist
 

be
tw
ee
n d

iffe
ren

t c
om

mu
nit
ies

.  
 Ou

r a
im

s a
nd

 va
lue

s 
As

 a 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

r w
e w

ill: 
 

• 
Pr
om

ote
 eq

ua
lity

 of
 op

po
rtu

nit
y a

nd
 el
im
ina

te 
dis

cri
mi
na
tio
n i
n t

he
 pl
an
nin

g a
nd
 de

live
ry 

of 
ou
r s

erv
ice

s i
n t

erm
s o

f a
ge
, 

dis
ab
ility

, e
thn

icit
y, 
ge
nd
er,

 se
xu
al 
ori
en
tat
ion

, re
lig
ion

 or
 be

lie
f, h

ea
lth
 an

d i
nc
om

e s
tat
us
; 

• 
Pr
om

ote
 go

od
 re

lat
ion

s b
etw

ee
n c

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d a

dd
res

s n
eg
ati
ve
 st
ere

oty
pin

g o
f a
ny
 gr

ou
ps
; 

• 
En

su
re 

tha
t a
ll r
es
ide

nts
 ha

ve
 eq

ua
l o
pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 pa

rtic
ipa

te 
in 
the

 de
mo

cra
tic
 pr

oc
es
s; 
an
d 

• 
Ta

ck
le 
ha
ras

sm
en
t re

lat
ing

 to
 a 

pe
rso

n’s
 ag

e, 
dis

ab
ility

, e
thn

icit
y, 
ge
nd
er,

 se
xu
al 
ori
en
tat
ion

, re
lig
ion

 or
 be

lie
f, h

ea
lth
 an

d 
inc

om
e s

tat
us
. 

 
As

 an
 em

plo
ye
r w

e w
ill: 

 
• 

De
ve
lop

, re
vie

w 
an
d p

rom
ote

 po
lici

es
 an

d p
rac

tic
es
 th
at 
en
su
re 

eq
ua
lity

 of
 op

po
rtu

nit
y a

nd
 el
im
ina

te 
dis

cri
mi
na
tio
n f
or 

ou
r 

wo
rkf
orc

e i
n a

ll a
rea

s o
f e

mp
loy

me
nt 

(in
clu

din
g r

ec
rui
tm
en
t, r

ete
nti
on
, le

arn
ing

 an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t, p

rom
oti
on
, g

rie
va
nc
e, 

Page 120



 
5 

dis
cip

lin
ary

 an
d r

eti
rem

en
t); 

an
d 

• 
En

su
re 

tha
t o
ur 

wo
rkf
orc

e r
efl
ec
ts 
the

 di
ve
rse

 na
tur

e o
f th

e b
oro

ug
h. 

 
W
e w

ill c
om

ply
 w
ith
: 

• 
the

 Eq
ua
l P

ay
 Ac

t 1
97
0 

• 
the

 Se
x D

isc
rim

ina
tio
n A

ct 
19
75
 

• 
the

 R
ac
e R

ela
tio
ns
 Ac

t 1
97
6 

• 
the

 R
ac
e R

ela
tio
ns
 (A

me
nd
me

nt)
 Ac

t 2
00
0 

• 
the

 D
isa

bil
ity
 D
isc

rim
ina

tio
n A

ct 
19
95
 

• 
the

 D
isa

bil
ity
 D
isc

rim
ina

tio
n A

ct 
(A
me

nd
me

nt)
 20

05
 

• 
the

 H
um

an
 R
igh

ts 
Ac

t 1
99
8 

• 
the

 Em
plo

ym
en
t E

qu
ali
ty 
(R
eli
gio

n o
r B

eli
ef)

 R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 20

03
 

• 
the

 Em
plo

ym
en
t E

qu
ali
ty 
(S
ex
ua
l O

rie
nta

tio
n) 

Re
gu
lat
ion

s 2
00
3  

• 
the

 Em
plo

ym
en
t E

qu
ali
ty 
(A
ge
) R

eg
ula

tio
ns
 20

06
 

• 
the

 Eq
ua
lity

 Ac
t 2
00
6 

• 
the

 Eq
ua
lity

 Ac
t 2
01
0 (

pa
ss
ed
 bu

t n
ot 
ye
t c
om

me
nc
ed
 at
 th
e t
im
e o

f d
raf

tin
g t
his

 Fr
am

ew
ork

) 
 W
e w

ill 
rec

og
nis

e o
ur 

co
mm

un
ity
 le
ad
ers

hip
 ro

le 
an
d u

se
 th

is 
to 

wo
rk 

tow
ard

s a
 co

he
siv

e c
om

mu
nit
y i
n w

hic
h i

ne
qu
ali
ty 
is 

tac
kle

d a
nd
 eq

ua
lity

 pr
om

ote
d. 
 

 3. 
Ho

w 
we

 w
ill 
co

nti
nu

e t
o d

eli
ve
r o

ur
 co

mm
itm

en
t 

 Th
e S

ing
le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 de
sc
rib
es
 ou

r a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 de

live
rin
g o

ur 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 ta
ck
le 
ine

qu
ali
ty.
 

 In 
Ja
nu
ary

 2
01
0 
we

 b
ec
am

e 
the

 se
co
nd
 a
uth

ori
ty 

in 
the

 co
un
try
 to

 a
ch
iev

e 
‘Ex

ce
lle
nt’
, t
he
 h
igh

es
t le

ve
l o

f t
he
 E
qu
ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk 
for

 Lo
ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt.
 Bu

ild
ing

 on
 th
e w

ork
 w
e h

ad
 al
rea

dy
 ac

hie
ve
d u

nd
er 

the
 Eq

ua
lity

 St
an
da
rd 

thi
s F

ram
ew

ork
 

ha
s b

ee
n a

nd
 w
ill 
co
nti
nu
e t

o b
e c

riti
ca
l to

 de
live

rin
g o

ur 
co
mm

itm
en
t.  

It i
s a

 na
tio
na
lly 

rec
og
nis

ed
 Fr

am
ew

ork
 w
hic

h w
e w

ill 
co
nti
nu
e 

to 
us
e 

to 
pro

mo
te 

co
nti
nu
ou
s 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
in 

ma
ins

tre
am

ing
 d

ive
rsi
ty 

an
d 

eq
ua
lity

 a
nd
 im

pro
vin

g 
eq
ua
lity

 
ou
tco

me
s. 
  

 W
e r

ec
og
nis

e t
ha
t d
eli
ve
rin
g t
his

 co
mm

itm
en
t c
an
 on

ly 
be
 ac

hie
ve
d t
hro

ug
h b

uil
din

g s
us
tai
na
ble

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s. 
 W

e w
ill d

eli
ve
r 

ou
r c
om

mi
tm
en
t b
y: 

 • 
bu
ild
ing

 on
 ou

r g
oo
d p

rac
tic
e; 

• 
inv

olv
ing

 al
l s
ec
tor

s o
f o
ur 

co
mm

un
ity
 in
 th
e d

es
ign

, re
vie

w 
an
d s

cru
tin
y o

f o
ur 

se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
an
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 
pra

cti
ce
s; 

• 
pro

mo
tin
g i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 an

d a
cc
es
s t
o o

ur 
se
rvi
ce
s i
n a

cc
es
sib

le 
wa

ys
; 

Page 121



 
6 

• 
ca
rry

ing
 ou

t E
qu
ali
ty 
Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 of
 ne

w 
an
d e

xis
tin
g p

oli
cie

s a
nd
 pr

ac
tic
es
 to
 m
ak
e s

ure
 th
at 
the

y w
ill n

ot 
 

 
 di
sc
rim

ina
te 
ag
ain

st 
an
yo
ne
; 

• 
de
live

rin
g s

erv
ice

s w
hic

h a
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

, fl
ex
ibl
e a

nd
 re

sp
on
siv

e t
o t
he
 ne

ed
s o

f th
e c

om
mu

nit
y; 

• 
rem

ov
ing

 ba
rrie

rs 
wh

ich
 de

ny
 pe

op
le 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 ou

r s
erv

ice
s; 

• 
pro

mo
tin
g a

n e
nv
iro
nm

en
t w

hic
h g

ive
s a

ll r
es
ide

nts
 an

 eq
ua
l c
ha
nc
e t
o l
ea
rn,

 w
ork

 an
d l
ive

 fre
e o

f d
isc

rim
ina

tio
n a

nd
 

 
 pr

eju
dic

e; 
• 

de
ve
lop

ing
 a 
wo

rkf
orc

e w
hic

h r
efl
ec
ts 
at 
all
 le
ve
ls 
the

 co
mm

un
ity
 w
hic

h w
e s

erv
e; 

• 
ma

kin
g s

ure
 th
at 
all
 em

plo
ye
es
 an

d C
ou
nc
illo

rs 
kn
ow

 th
e e

ffe
cts

 of
 th
is 
po
licy

 an
d a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 w
ith
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 tra
ini
ng
; 

• 
ma

kin
g s

ure
 th
at 
all
 em

plo
ye
es
 (a

nd
 th
e r

es
ide

nt 
co
mm

un
itie

s) 
kn
ow

 ab
ou
t th

eir
 rig

hts
 of
 pr

ote
cti
on
 fro

m 
dis

cri
mi
na
tio
n, 
 

    
  h
ara

ss
me

nt 
or 

bu
llyi
ng
; 

• 
de
ve
lop

ing
 an

d p
rom

oti
ng
 po

lici
es
 w
hic

h g
ive

 ev
ery

on
e e

qu
al 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 em

plo
ym

en
t a
nd
 re

lat
ed
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

; 
• 

se
ttin

g p
erf

orm
an
ce
 ta
rge

ts 
so
 w
e c

an
 m
ea
su
re 

ou
r p

rog
res

s; 
an
d 

• 
us
ing

 ou
r p

ow
ers

 to
 m
ak
e s

ure
 th
at 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 se

rvi
ce
s o

n o
ur 

be
ha
lf w

ork
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 th
is 
po
licy

 - w
e a

re 
    

    
  c
om

mi
tte
d t
o u

sin
g o

ur 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p
ow

ers
 to
 su

pp
ort

 ou
r e

qu
ali
tie
s o

bje
cti
ve
s. 
 

 Eq
ua
litie

s i
s e

mb
ed
de
d t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
ou
r p

roc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
ss
: 

- T
he
 pr

ep
ara

tio
n o

f a
ll t
en
de
r d

oc
um

en
tat
ion

 in
vo
lve

s a
n a

ss
es
sm

en
t o
f th

e e
qu
ali
tie
s i
mp

ac
t o
f th

e s
erv

ice
 or

 go
od
s a

nd
 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 of
 pr

ev
iou

s p
rov

ide
rs 
on
 m
ee
tin
g t
he
 ne

ed
s o

f d
ive

rse
 se

rvi
ce
 us

ers
.  T

he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 to
llg
ate

 pr
oc
es
s r
eq
uir
es
 

off
ice

rs 
to 
ad
dre

ss
 eq

ua
lity

 an
d d

ive
rsi
ty.
 

- A
ll s

up
pli
ers

 ar
e r

eq
uir
ed
 to
 m
ee
t a
 ra

ng
e o

f m
ini
mu

m 
sta

nd
ard

s i
n r

ela
tio
n t
o t
he
ir e

qu
ali
tie
s p

oli
cy
 an

d p
rac

tic
e i
n r

ela
tio
n 

to 
sta

ff a
nd
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n. 
Th

is 
co
ve
rs 
are

as
 su

ch
 as

 re
as
on
ab
le 
ad
jus

tm
en
ts 
for

 di
sa
ble

d s
taf
f a
nd
 se

rvi
ce
 us

ers
, 

dis
cri
mi
na
tio
n a

nd
 ha

ras
sm

en
t p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd
 eq

ua
litie

s t
rai
nin

g. 
- W

he
re 

the
re 

is 
ev
ide

nc
e t
ha
t s
om

e g
rou

ps
 of
 se

rvi
ce
 us

ers
 ha

ve
 be

en
 un

de
rre

pre
se
nte

d i
n t
he
 ta
ke
 up

 of
 se

rvi
ce
s, 

gu
ida

nc
e s

ho
uld

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
co
ntr

ac
ts 
inc

orp
ora

te 
me

as
ure

s t
o m

on
ito
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 in
 th
is 
are

a a
s p

art
 of
 

the
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 

  4. 
Th

e S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
or
k i
n c

on
tex

t 
Th

e 
Sin

gle
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

se
ts 

ou
t t
he
 C

ou
nc
il's
 s
tra

teg
ic 

pri
ori
tie
s 
for

 ta
ck
lin
g 
ine

qu
ali
ty 

an
d 
ide

nti
fie
s 
are

as
 fo

r 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
to 
str
en
gth

en
 th
e c

ap
ac
ity
 of
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 to
 m
ain

str
ea
m 
eq
ua
lity

 in
 pr

oc
es
se
s a

nd
 st
ruc

tur
es
.  

 Th
e 
an
aly

sis
 w

hic
h 
un
de
rpi
ns
 th

e 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
inf
orm

s t
he
 w

ide
r p

lan
s a

nd
 st

rat
eg
ies

 o
f t
he
 C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
, in

clu
din

g: 
 Th

e C
om

mu
nit

y P
lan

 se
ts 
ou
t th

e v
isio

n a
nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 of
 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

, lo
ok
ing

 fo
rw
ard

 to
 20

20
. T

he
 Pl

an
 

wil
l b
e r

efr
es
he
d d

uri
ng
 20

10
/11

 an
d a

 re
vis

ed
 ve

rsi
on
 pr

od
uc
ed
 in
 A
pri
l 2
01
1. 

 Th
e P

lan
 em

bra
ce
s t
he
 br

ea
dth

 of
 st
rat

eg
ies

 

Page 122



 
7 

wh
ich

 th
e 
Co

un
cil 

an
d 
its
 p
art

ne
rs 

ha
ve
 in

 p
lac

e 
to 

de
live

r o
ur 

vis
ion

 a
nd
 o
bje

cti
ve
s. 

 A
n 
ov
era

rch
ing

 th
em

e 
for

 th
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 P
lan

 is
 a 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 bu
ild
ing

 ‘O
ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s’.
 Th

is 
pu
ts 
tac

klin
g i
ne
qu
ali
ty,
 st
ren

gth
en
ing

 re
lat
ion

sh
ips

 
be
tw
ee
n c

om
mu

nit
ies

 an
d b

uil
din

g s
tro

ng
 an

d e
ffe
cti
ve
 co

mm
un
ity
 le
ad
ers

hip
 at

 th
e h

ea
rt o

f a
ll t
ha
t w

e d
o. 

On
e o

f th
e k

ey
 

wa
ys
 in
 w
hic

h t
his

 w
ill b

e d
eli
ve
red

 is
 th
rou

gh
 th
e L

oc
al 
Ar
ea
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
(LA

A)
.   

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il’s
 S
tra

teg
ic 

Pla
n 
se
ts 
ou
t a

 w
ork

 pl
an
 fo

r T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 is
 up

da
ted

 an
nu
all
y. 
 E
mb

ed
de
d w

ith
in 

the
 b
rea

dth
 o
f t
he
 S
tra

teg
ic 

Pla
n 
is 

a 
co
mm

itm
en
t t
o 
de
live

rin
g 
the

 C
om

mu
nit
y P

lan
 co

mm
itm

en
t t
o 
bu
ild
ing

 O
ne
 T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

. 
 Th

e C
ou

nc
il's

 E
qu

ali
ty 

Sc
he

me
s p

ro
vid

e a
n a

na
lys

is 
of 

ine
qu

ali
ty 

in 
the

 bo
ro
ug

h a
nd

 se
t o

ut 
the

 ac
tiv

itie
s s

erv
ice

s 
wi
ll 
un

de
rta

ke
 to

 a
dd

res
s 
pr
ior

ity
 a
rea

s 
of 

ine
qu

ali
ty 

ov
er 

a 
thr

ee
 y
ea
r p

eri
od

. T
he
se
 S

ch
em

es
 d
em

on
str
ate

 o
ur 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 go
 be

yo
nd
 th

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 

lai
d d

ow
n i

n l
aw

 an
d e

ns
ure

 w
e u

nd
ers

tan
d a

nd
 ar

e t
ak
ing

 ac
tio
n t

o a
dd
res

s 
ine

qu
ali
ty 
for

 al
l o
ur 

co
mm

un
itie

s i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
.  E

ac
h o

f th
e S

ch
em

es
 ou

tlin
e t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 co
mm

itm
en
t to

 en
su
re 

tha
t ra

ce
, 

ge
nd
er,

 di
sa
bil
ity
, s
ex
ua
l o
rie
nta

tio
n, 

ag
e a

nd
 re

lig
ion

/be
lie
f e

qu
ali
ty 
is 
at 

the
 ce

ntr
e o

f o
ur 

wo
rk 

wh
en
 de

ve
lop

ing
 a 

po
licy

 or
 

str
ate

gy
, p
rov

idi
ng
 a 
se
rvi
ce
 or

 em
plo

yin
g p

eo
ple

.  T
he
 Sc

he
me

s a
re:

 
 1 

Th
e R

ac
e E

qu
ali
ty 
Sc

he
me

 20
09
-12

  
ww

w.
tow

erh
am

let
s.g

ov
.uk

/lg
sl/
85
1-9

00
/86

1_
div

ers
ity
_a
nd
_e
qu
ali
tie
s/r
ac
e_
eq
ua
lity

.as
px
 

2 
Th

e D
isa

bil
ity

 Eq
ua

lity
 Sc

he
me

 20
10
-13

 
htt
p:/
/w
ww

.to
we

rha
ml
ets

.go
v.u

k/l
gs
l/8
51
-90

0/8
61
_d
ive

rsi
ty_

an
d_
eq
ua
litie

s/d
isa

bil
ity
_e
qu
ali
ty.
as
px
 

3 
Th

e G
en

de
r E

qu
ali
ty 

Sc
he

me
 20

10
-13

 
htt
p:/
/w
ww

.to
we

rha
ml
ets

.go
v.u

k/l
gs
l/8
51
-90

0/8
61
_d
ive

rsi
ty_

an
d_
eq
ua
litie

s/g
en
de
r_e

qu
ali
ty.
as
px
 

4 
Th

e A
ge

 Eq
ua

lity
 Sc

he
me

 20
09
-12

 
ww

w.
tow

erh
am

let
s.g

ov
.uk

/lg
sl/
85
1-9

00
/86

1_
div

ers
ity
_a
nd
_e
qu
ali
tie
s/a

ge
_e
qu
ali
ty.
as
px
 

5 
Th

e R
eli
gio

n/B
eli
ef 

Eq
ua

lity
 Sc

he
me

 20
09
-12

 
ww

w.
tow

erh
am

let
s.g

ov
.uk

/lg
sl/
85
1-9

00
/86

1_
div

ers
ity
_a
nd
_e
qu
ali
tie
s/r
eli
gio

n_
an
d_
be
lie
f_e

qu
ali
ty.
as
px
 

6 
Th

e S
ex
ua

l O
rie

nta
tio

n E
qu

ali
ty 

Sc
he

me
s, 
20
09
-12

 
htt
p:/
/w
ww

.to
we

rha
ml
ets

.go
v.u

k/l
gs
l/8
51
-90

0/8
61
_d
ive

rsi
ty_

an
d_
eq
ua
litie

s/s
ex
ua
l_o

rie
nta

tio
n_
eq
ua
lity

.as
px
 

 Th
e F

ram
ew

ork
 al
so
 lin

ks
 to
 hi
gh
 le
ve
l a
cti
on
s t
o d

eli
ve
r  th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 H
om

es
 D
ive

rsi
ty 

St
rat

eg
y 

 Wo
rkf

or
ce
 to

 R
efl

ec
t t
he

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
St
rat

eg
y: 

To
 d
eli
ve
r t
he
 h
igh

es
t q

ua
lity

 o
f s

erv
ice

s, 
the

 C
ou
nc
il i
s c

om
mi
tte
d 
to 

de
live

rin
g a

 w
ork

for
ce
 th
at 

ref
lec

ts 
the

 co
mm

un
ity
. T

his
 is
 a 

ke
y C

ou
nc
il S

tra
teg

y w
hic

h r
ec
og
nis

es
 th

at 
the

 hi
gh
es
t q
ua
lity

 of
 

se
rvi
ce
 ca

n o
nly

 be
 pr

ov
ide

d b
y a

 w
ork

for
ce
 th
at 
ref

lec
ts 
ou
r lo

ca
l c
om

mu
nit
y. 

 5. 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re:

 Th
e s

tru
ctu

res
 an

d p
ro
ce
ss
es
 th

at 
de

liv
er 

eq
ua

lity
  

Page 123



 
8 

 Str
on
g 
lea

de
rsh

ip 
at 

a 
Me

mb
er 

an
d 
off
ice

r l
ev
el 

ha
s b

ee
n 
cru

cia
l to

 o
ur 

ab
ility

 to
 d
riv
e 
for

wa
rd 

wo
rk 

on
 e
qu
ali
ty.
 R

ob
us
t 

str
uc
tur

es
 an

d p
roc

es
se
s e

ns
ure

 th
at 
thi
s c

orp
ora

te 
co
mm

itm
en
t is

 tra
ns
lat
ed
 to
 w
ork

 at
 al
l le

ve
ls 
of 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
.  

 In 
20
10
/11

 th
e L

ea
d M

em
be
r w

ith
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo

r D
ive

rsi
ty 
an
d E

qu
ali
ty 
is 
Cll

r R
ac
ha
el 
Sa

un
de
rs 
an
d t
he
 S
cru

tin
y L

ea
d f
or 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 is
 C
llr 
Ah

me
d O

me
r w

ho
 ha

s d
ive

rsi
ty,
 eq

ua
lity

 an
d c

om
mu

nit
y c

oh
es
ion

 w
ith
in 
his

 re
mi
t.  
 

 Th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Dir

ec
tor

 re
sp
on
sib

le 
for

 di
ve
rsi
ty 
an
d e

qu
ali
tie
s i
s t
he
 A
ss
ist
an
t C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e (

po
st 
cu
rre

ntl
y v

ac
an
ct)
 T
he
 

wo
rk 
of 

co
-or

din
ati
ng
 an

d f
ac
ilita

tin
g w

ork
 ac

ros
s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il is

 un
de
rta

ke
n b

y t
he
 S
cru

tin
y a

nd
 E
qu
ali
tie
s s

erv
ice

 ar
ea
 w
hic

h 
co
mp

ris
es
 of

 Jo
int
 A
cti
ng
 S
erv

ice
 H
ea
ds
 fo

r S
cru

tin
y a

nd
 E
qu
ali
tie
s -

 Fr
an
ce
s J

on
es
 an

d H
afs

ha
 A
li. 
 Th

ey
 ar

e s
up
po
rte

d b
y 

thr
ee
 D
ive

rsi
ty 

an
d E

qu
ali
ty 

Co
-or

din
ato

rs 
- P

au
l R

ob
ins

on
, P

riti
 B
ata

via
 an

d S
ha
ha
na
z B

eg
um

. S
cru

tin
y a

nd
 E
qu
ali
tie
s i
s 

als
o r

ep
res

en
ted

 on
 th
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 H
om

es
 D
ive

rsi
ty 
W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p. 
 

 W
ith
in 

ea
ch
 of

 th
e s

erv
ice

 D
ire
cto

rat
es
 th

ere
 is
 a 

se
nio

r a
nd
 ex

ec
uti
ve
 D
ire
cto

rat
e E

qu
ali
ty 
Lia

iso
n O

ffic
er 

(D
EL

O)
.  
Th

es
e 

are
 Ju

an
ita
 H
ay
ne
s a

nd
 H
ug
h C

ha
mb

ers
 (D

ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 R
en
ew

al)
, L
ay
la 
Ric

ha
rds

 an
d P

au
l G

res
ty 
(C
hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce
s),
 

Ro
bin

 B
ea
ttie

 an
d C

ore
en
 U
ng
 (C

om
mu

nit
ies

, L
oc
ali
tie
s a

nd
 C
ult
ure

), 
Ka

tha
rin
e M

ark
s a

nd
 H
an
na
h B

ail
ey
 (A

du
lts
 H
ea
lth
 

an
d W

ell
be
ing

), C
lai
re 

Sy
mo

nd
s a

nd
 Sa

ma
nth

a W
hit
tak

er 
(R
es
ou
rce

s) 
an
d F

ran
ce
s J

on
es
/H
afs

ha
 Al

i a
nd
 Pr

iti 
Ba

tav
ia 
(C
hie

f 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
’s)
.  W

ith
in 
Hu

ma
n R

es
ou
rce

s (
HR

) th
e l
ea
d r

es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 si
ts 
wit

h M
ark

 K
ee
ble

, In
ter

im
 H
ea
d o

f C
orp

ora
te 
Hu

ma
n 

Re
so
urc

es
.  

 In 
ord

er 
to 

ma
int
ain

 a
nd
 d
ev
elo

p 
ex
ist
ing

 g
oo
d 
pra

cti
ce
s, 

the
 C

ou
nc
il h

as
 in

 p
lac

e 
a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

sta
nd
ard

 o
rga

nis
ati
on
al 

pro
ce
du
res

:   
 1. 

Th
e S

ing
le 

Eq
ua
lity

 F
ram

ew
ork

 A
cti
on
 P
lan

 is
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ab
ine

t a
nn
ua
lly 

an
d m

on
ito
red

 by
 th

e O
ve
rvi
ew

 an
d S

cru
tin
y 

Co
mm

itte
e b

i-a
nn
ua
lly.

 
 2. 

Th
e 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Eq

ua
litie

s S
tee

rin
g G

rou
p 
me

ets
 m

on
thl
y w

ith
 a
n 
alt
ern

ati
on
 b
etw

ee
n 
bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 w
ork

sh
op
 se

ss
ion

s. 
 

Th
e g

rou
p i
s c

ha
ire
d b

y t
he
 C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e a

nd
 m
em

be
rsh

ip 
inc

lud
es
 th

e D
EL

Os
, H

R 
an
d t

he
 tra

de
 un

ion
s. 
 E
ac
h D

EL
O 

als
o c

ha
irs
 a 
mo

nth
ly 
Dir

ec
tor

ate
 Eq

ua
litie

s F
oc
us
 G
rou

p. 
  

 3. 
Ea

ch
 se

rvi
ce
, t
ea
m 

an
d 
ind

ivid
ua
l w

ork
 p
lan

 is
 e
xp
ec
ted

 to
 in

clu
de
 d
ive

rsi
ty 

an
d 
eq
ua
lity

 o
bje

cti
ve
s t

ha
t a

ris
e 
fro

m 
the

 
Sin

gle
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk,
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Sc
he
me

s, 
Eq

ua
lity

 Im
pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nts
 a
nd
 o
ur 

du
tie
s 
to 

pro
mo

te 
eq
ua
lity

 in
 

em
plo

ym
en
t to

 en
su
re 

tha
t s
taf
f s
ee
 eq

ua
lity

 is
su
es
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
eir
 da

y-t
o-d

ay
 w
ork

.  T
o s

up
po
rt t

his
 is
 a 

ran
ge
 of

 tra
ini
ng
 

off
ere

d b
y C

orp
ora

te 
Le
arn

ing
 an

d D
ev
elo

pm
en
t in

clu
din

g a
ge
 le

gis
lat
ion

 an
d b

es
t p

rac
tic
e, 

dis
ab
ility

 eq
ua
lity

, s
ex
ua
lity

 
aw

are
ne
ss
 an

d E
qu
ali
ty 
Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 (E

qIA
).  

 
 

Page 124



 
9 

To
 he

lp 
me

et 
ou
r p

rio
riti
es
, w

e h
av
e a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

sta
nd
ard

s t
o m

ain
str
ea
m 
div

ers
ity
 an

d e
qu
ali
ty 
ac
ros

s t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
.  T

o 
ac
hie

ve
 th
is,
 w
e w

ill: 
 

 St
an

da
rd
 

Ho
w 
is 
thi

s d
eli
ve
red

? 
Un

de
rta

ke
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Im
pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nts
 o
f b

oth
 

ne
w 
an
d e

xis
tin
g p

oli
cie

s. 
Th

e 
Eq

IA 
pro

gra
mm

e 
is 

mo
nit
ore

d 
reg

ula
rly
 b

y 
the

 C
orp

ora
te 

Eq
ua
litie

s 
Ste

eri
ng
 G

rou
p 
an
d 
pro

gre
ss
 is

 re
po
rte

d 
an
nu
all
y w

ith
in 

the
 S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re

po
rts
. 

En
su
re 

tha
t a
ll o

ur 
tea

m 
pla

ns
 in
co
rpo

rat
e r

ele
va
nt 

div
ers

ity
 an

d e
qu
ali
ty 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d t
arg

ets
. 

Th
is 

is 
inc

lud
ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
an
nu
al 

rev
iew

 o
f t
ea
m 

pla
ns
 a
nd
 re

po
rte

d 
to 

the
 

Co
un
cil’

s P
erf

orm
an
ce
 R
ev
iew

 G
rou

p. 
En

su
re 

all
 n

ew
 s
taf
f p

art
icip

ate
 in

 th
e 

Co
un
cil 

eq
ua
lity

 in
du
cti
on
 tra

ini
ng
 pr

oc
es
se
s 

Th
is 

is 
co
-or

din
ate

d 
by
 O

rga
nis

ati
on
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
Co

rpo
rat

e 
Hu

ma
n 

Re
so
urc

es
. 

En
su
re 

tha
t 

ou
r 

po
lici

es
 a

re 
co
mp

lia
nt 

wit
h 

eq
ua
litie

s l
eg
isla

tio
n. 

Co
mm

itte
e r

ep
ort

s a
nd
 bu

dg
et 

pro
po
sa
ls 
mu

st 
inc

lud
e c

on
sid

era
tio
n o

f ‘O
ne
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s’ 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
. G

uid
an
ce
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
pro

du
ce
d 
for

 o
ffic

ers
 to

 
en
ab
le 

the
m 

to 
as
se
ss
 th

e i
mp

ac
t o

f p
oli
cy
 an

d s
erv

ice
 ch

an
ge
s i
n t

erm
s o

f 
co
he
sio

n, 
eq
ua
litie

s a
nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 le
ad
ers

hip
.  

Inv
olv

e c
om

mu
nit
ies

, s
taf
f a

nd
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 in
 th

e 
de
sig

n, 
rev

iew
 a
nd
 s
cru

tin
y 
of 

ou
r s

erv
ice

s 
an
d 

em
plo

ym
en
t p
rac

tic
es
. 

 

Th
ree

 cr
os
s-c

utt
ing

 eq
ua
lity

 st
aff
 fo

rum
s (

co
ve
rin
g B

lac
k a

nd
 M

ino
rity

 E
thn

ic,
 

Le
sb
ian

, G
ay
, B

ise
xu
al 

an
d 
Tra

ns
ge
nd
er 

an
d 
Dis

ab
led

 S
taf
f) 

me
et 

ev
ery

 
qu
art

er.
 

 W
e a

lso
 ha

ve
 fo

ur 
se
lf-o

rga
nis

ed
 S
taf
f F

oru
ms

: th
e M

us
lim

 S
taf
f F

oru
m,
 th

e 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 D
ire
cto

rat
e B

lac
k a

nd
 A
sia

n W
ork

ers
 Fo

rum
 an

d 
tw
o C

hri
sti
an
 Pr

ay
er 

Gr
ou
ps
.  

 Ex
ter

na
l fo

rum
s i

nc
lud

e 
the

 T
H 

Int
erf

ait
h 
Fo

rum
 a
nd
 L
es
bia

n, 
Ga

y B
ise

xu
al 

an
d T

ran
sg
en
de
r C

om
mu

nit
y F

oru
m 
an
d t
he
 Pa

n-D
isa

bil
ity
 Pa

ne
l.  

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 F
oru

ms
 in

clu
de
 th

e N
ew

 R
es
ide

nts
 an

d R
efu

ge
e F

oru
m,
 th

e N
o 

Pla
ce
 fo
r H

ate
 Fo

rum
 an

d t
he
 O
lde

r P
eo
ple

’s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Bo

ard
.  

 Th
e C

on
su
lta
tio
n C

ale
nd
ar 

ou
tlin

es
 th
e k

ey
 pi
ec
es
 of
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 un

de
rw
ay
 in
 

the
 b
oro

ug
h 
an
d 
inc

lud
es
 fo

cu
ss
ed
 p
iec

es
 o
f w

ork
 o
n 
sp
ec
ific

 d
ive

rsi
ty 

an
d 

eq
ua
lity

 is
su
es
. 

 An
 eq

ua
litie

s a
na
lys

is 
of 
the

 An
nu
al 
Re

sid
en
ts’
 Su

rve
y i
s p

rod
uc
ed
 ea

ch
 ye

ar.
 

Me
mb

ers
 
pro

vid
e 

co
mm

un
ity
 
lea

de
rsh

ip 
on
 T

he
 L
ea
d 
Me

mb
er 

for
 H

ea
lth
 a
nd
 W

ell
be
ing

 is
 C

llr 
Ra

ch
ae
l S

au
nd
ers

 a
nd
 

Page 125



 
10
 

div
ers

ity
 an

d e
qu
ali
ty.
 

wit
hin

 he
r p

ort
fol
io 
sh
e h

as
 th
e l
ea
d f
or 

div
ers

ity
 an

d e
qu
ali
tie
s. 

 Th
e 

Sin
gle

 E
qu
ali
ty 

Fra
me

wo
rk,
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Sc
he
me

s 
an
d 

the
 W

ork
for

ce
 to

 
Re

fle
ct 
the

 C
om

mu
nit
y P

oli
cy
 ar

e a
ll a

gre
ed
 by

 C
ab
ine

t.  
 

 Ov
erv

iew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y m

on
ito
rs 

the
 S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
ork

.  E
qu
ali
ty 
an
d 

div
ers

ity
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s i
nfo

rm
s t
he
 S
cru

tin
y w

ork
 pr

og
ram

me
 an

d t
he
 re

vie
ws

 
un
de
rta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
Sc

rut
iny

 L
ea
ds
 to

 e
ns
ure

 th
at 

div
ers

ity
, e

qu
ali
ty 

an
d 

co
mm

un
ity
 co

he
sio

n a
re 

ad
dre

ss
ed
 at
 ea

ch
 st
ag
e. 

 Th
e M

em
be
rs’
 D
ive

rsi
ty 
an
d E

qu
ali
ty 
W
ork

ing
 G
rou

p h
as
 be

en
 es

tab
lish

ed
 as

 
a f

oru
m 

for
 le
arn

ing
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t fo

cu
se
d o

n c
om

mu
nit
y l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
sk
ills

 
an
d 
as
 a
n 
op
en
 sp

ac
e 
to 

ex
plo

re 
div

ers
ity
 a
nd
 e
qu
ali
ty 

iss
ue
s f

ac
ed
 b
y t

he
 

Co
un
cil.

 
Be

nc
hm

ark
 o

ur 
po
lici

es
 a

nd
 p

rac
tic
es
 a

ga
ins

t 
oth

er 
pu
bli
c b

od
ies

. 
 

W
e w

ork
 w
ith
 Lo

nd
on
 C
ou
nc
ils 

an
d o

the
r re

lev
an
t c
ros

s-b
oro

ug
h, 
reg

ion
al 
an
d 

na
tio
na
l g
rou

ps
 to
 te
st 
ou
r p

rac
tic
e. 
  

 A 
me

mb
er 

of 
the

 D
ive

rsi
ty 
an
d E

qu
ali
ty 
Te

am
 is
 se

co
nd
ed
 to
 Lo

nd
on
 C
ou
nc
ils 

pa
rt 

tim
e 

to 
su
pp
ort

 w
ork

 o
n 

the
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Sta
nd
ard

 f
or 

Lo
nd
on
 L

oc
al 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t.  

 W
e 

ha
ve
 d

em
on
str
ate

d 
ou
t 

co
mm

itm
en
t 

to 
lea

rni
ng
 f

rom
 o

the
rs 

by
 

es
tab

lish
ing

 th
e D

ive
rsi
ty 
an
d E

qu
ali
ty 
Ne

tw
ork

 to
 br

ing
 to

ge
the

r d
ive

rsi
ty 
an
d 

eq
ua
lity

 p
rac

titi
on
ers

 fr
om

 a
cro

ss
 th

e 
loc

al 
pri
va
te,
 p

ub
lic 

an
d 

vo
lun

tar
y 

se
cto

rs.
  

 As
 a
 re

su
lt o

f t
he
 w
ork

 d
on
e 
wit

h 
thi
s N

etw
ork

 w
e 
ha
ve
 e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 a
 lo

ca
l 

Eq
ua
lity

 I
mp

ac
t 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
Pe

er 
Su

pp
ort

 I
nit
iat
ive

 t
hro

ug
h 

wh
ich

 1
4 

me
mb

ers
 of

 st
aff
 fro

m 
loc

al 
sta

tut
ory

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s h

av
e b

ee
n t

rai
ne
d a

s p
ee
r 

me
nto

rs 
to 

su
pp
ort

 o
rga

nis
ati
on
s 
wit

hin
 th

e 
To

we
r H

am
let
s 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 
ca
rry

 ou
t h
igh

 qu
ali
ty 
Eq

ua
lity

 Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
.  

 Sta
ff f
rom

 th
e D

ive
rsi
ty 
an
d E

qu
ali
ty 
Te

am
 co

ntr
ibu

te 
to 
na
tio
na
l 

be
nc
hm

ark
ing

 gr
ou
ps
 in
clu

din
g t
he
 Em

plo
ye
rs 
Fo

rum
s o

n A
ge
, D

isa
bil
ity
 an

d 
Be

lie
f. 

Page 126



 
11
 

Se
ek
 

ex
ter

na
l 

va
lid
ati
on
 

of 
ou
r 

eq
ua
lity

 
ac
hie

ve
me

nts
 

 
Th

e n
ew

 E
qu
ali
ty 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
is 
the

 va
lid
ati
on
 to

ol 
for

 as
se
ss
ing

 th
e a

bil
ity
 of

 
loc

al 
au
tho

riti
es
 to

 de
live

r o
n t

he
 eq

ua
litie

s a
ge
nd
a. 

W
e a

re 
on
e o

f tw
o l

oc
al 

au
tho

riti
es
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 ‘E

xc
ell
en
t’, 
the

 hi
gh
es
t ra

tin
g o

f th
e F

ram
ew

ork
. 

 Inv
es
tor

s i
n P

eo
ple

, th
e F

aw
ce
tt C

ha
rte

r, t
he
 S
ton

ew
all
 E
qu
ali
ty 
Ind

ex
 an

d t
he
 

Em
plo

ye
rs’
 F

oru
m 

on
 D

isa
bil
ity
 E

mp
loy

ers
 S

tan
da
rd 

are
 tw

o 
oth

er 
rec

en
t 

ex
am

ple
s o

f b
en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 sc

he
me

s w
hic

h w
e h

av
e p

art
icip

ate
d i
n. 
 

Ce
leb

rat
e d

ive
rsi
ty 
an
d p

rom
ote

 co
he
sio

n 
W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 th
e T

hir
d a

nd
 pr

iva
te 
se
cto

rs,
 a 
se
rie
s o

f e
ve
nts

 an
d f
es
tiv
als

 ar
e 

tim
eta

ble
d 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t t

he
 y
ea
r 
bo
th 

to 
ce
leb

rat
e 

the
 d

ive
rsi
ty 

of 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml
ets

 an
d t
o h

elp
 pr

om
ote

 co
he
sio

n. 
 

Inc
rea

se
 th
e e

xte
nt 
to 
wh

ich
 ou

r w
ork

for
ce
 re

fle
cts

 
the

 lo
ca
l c
om

mu
nit
y  

Th
is 
is 
a k

ey
 C
ou
nc
il p

oli
cy
 ai
me

d a
t d

eli
ve
rin
g t

he
 co

rpo
rat

e c
om

mi
tm
en
t “t

o 
pro

vid
e 
se
rvi
ce
s 
wh

ich
 o
ffe
r e

qu
al 

ac
ce
ss
 to

 e
ve
ry 

pe
rso

n 
in 

the
 b
oro

ug
h 

ref
lec

tin
g t
he
 di
ve
rsi
ty 
of 

the
 po

pu
lat
ion

, a
nd
 w
ill 
be
 ov

erw
he
lm
ing

ly 
sta

ffe
d b

y 
loc

al 
pe
op
le 

wh
os
e 

pro
file

 r
efl
ec
ts 

the
 c

om
mu

nit
y”.
 T

o 
dri
ve
 f
orw

ard
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in

 th
is 

are
a 

we
 h

av
e 

a 
joi
nt 

ac
tio
n 

pla
n 

wit
h 

NH
S 

To
we

r 
Ha

ml
ets

 an
d a

re 
se
ek
ing

 to
 ex

ten
d t
his

 w
ork

 to
 co

ve
r th

e s
ix 
eq
ua
lity

 st
ran

ds
.  

   6. 
Sin

gle
 Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
or
k O

bje
cti

ve
s 2

01
0/1

1 
 Th

e S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 ha
s t
wo

 ob
jec

tiv
es
: 

 A)
 To

 id
en

tify
 pr

ior
ity

 ar
ea
s o

f p
ers

ist
en

t in
eq

ua
lity

 an
d d

ev
elo

p e
ffe

cti
ve
 st

rat
eg

ies
 to

 ta
ck
le 
the

m:
 

In 
pre

pa
rat

ion
 fo

r t
he
 S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 D
uty

 w
e d

ev
elo

pe
d s

ix 
ind

ivid
ua
l E

qu
ali
ty 

Sc
he
me

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

we
 ha

ve
 a 

rob
us
t 

un
de
rst
an
din

g 
of 

ine
qu
ali
ty 

in 
the

 b
oro

ug
h. 

Us
ing

 th
e 
Eq

ua
lity

 a
nd
 H

um
an
 R

igh
ts 

Co
mm

iss
ion

's 
Eq

ua
lity

 M
ea
su
rem

en
t 

Fra
me

wo
rk,
 ea

ch
 Sc

he
me

 m
ea
su
red

 an
d a

na
lys

ed
 in
eq
ua
lity

 ag
ain

st 
the

 te
n d

om
ain

s o
f th

e F
ram

ew
ork

: 
 • L

on
ge

vit
y –

 in
clu

din
g a

vo
idi
ng
 pr

em
atu

re 
mo

rta
lity

. 
• P

hy
sic

al 
se
cu

rit
y –

 in
clu

din
g f
ree

do
m 
fro

m 
vio

len
ce
 an

d p
hy
sic

al 
an
d o

r s
ex
ua
l a
bu
se
. 

• H
ea
lth

 – 
inc

lud
ing

 w
ell
be
ing

 an
d a

cc
es
s t
o h

igh
-qu

ali
ty 
he
alt
hc
are

. 
• E

du
ca
tio

n –
 in
clu

din
g b

ein
g a

ble
 to
 be

 cr
ea
tiv
e, 
to 
ac
qu
ire
 sk

ills
 an

d q
ua
lific

ati
on
s a

nd
 ha

vin
g a

cc
es
s t
o t
rai
nin

g  
 a

nd
 lif
e-l
on
g l
ea
rni
ng
. 

• S
tan

da
rd
 of

 liv
ing

 – 
inc

lud
ing

 be
ing

 ab
le 
to 
live

 w
ith
 in
de
pe
nd
en
ce
 an

d s
ec
uri
ty 
an
d c

ov
eri
ng
: n
utr

itio
n, 
clo

thi
ng
,  

Page 127



 
12
 

 h
ou
sin

g, 
wa

rm
th,
 ut
iliti

es
, s
oc
ial
 se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 tra

ns
po
rt. 

• P
ro
du

cti
ve
 an

d v
alu

ed
 ac

tiv
itie

s –
 su

ch
 as

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 em

plo
ym

en
t, a

 po
sit
ive

 ex
pe
rie
nc
e i
n t
he
 w
ork

pla
ce
, w

ork
-lif
e  

 b
ala

nc
e, 
an
d b

ein
g a

ble
 to
 ca

re 
for

 ot
he
rs.
 

• I
nd

ivi
du

al,
 fa

mi
ly 
an

d s
oc

ial
 lif

e –
 in
clu

din
g s

elf
-de

ve
lop

me
nt,
 ha

vin
g i
nd
ep
en
de
nc
e a

nd
 eq

ua
lity

 in
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

  
 a

nd
 m
arr

iag
e. 
 

• P
art

ici
pa

tio
n, 

inf
lue

nc
e a

nd
 vo

ice
 – 
inc

lud
ing

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n i
n d

ec
isio

n m
ak
ing

 an
d d

em
oc
rat

ic 
life

. 
• I

de
nti

ty,
 ex

pr
es
sio

n a
nd

 se
lf-r

es
pe

ct 
– i
nc
lud

ing
 fre

ed
om

 of
 be

lie
f a
nd
 re

lig
ion

. 
• L

eg
al 
se
cu

rit
y –

 in
clu

din
g e

qu
ali
ty 
an
d n

on
-di
sc
rim

ina
tio
n b

efo
re 

the
 la
w 
an
d e

qu
al 
tre

atm
en
t w

ith
in 
the

 cr
im

ina
l 

 j
us
tic
e s

ys
tem

. 
 Th

e S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 en
ab
les

 us
 to
 lo
ok
 ac

ros
s a

ll s
ix 
Eq

ua
lity

 S
ch
em

es
 an

d i
de
nti
fy 
are

as
 of

 pe
rsi
ste

nt 
ine

qu
ali
ty 

wh
ich

 ar
ise

 fr
om

 a 
co
mp

lex
 in

ter
pla

y o
f fa

cto
rs.
 F
or 

ex
am

ple
, to

 un
de
rst
an
d t

he
 pa

tte
rn 

of 
ed
uc
ati
on
al 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
in 

the
 

bo
rou

gh
 w
e n

ee
d t

o l
oo
k a

t th
e i
mp

ac
t o
f g

en
de
r, e

thn
icit

y, 
rel
igi
on
/be

lie
f, a

ge
 an

d s
oc
io-
ec
on
om

ic 
ba
ck
gro

un
d. 
Th

rou
gh
 th
e 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

we
 w

ill 
inv

es
tig
ate

 th
e 

de
ter

mi
na
nts

 o
f u

ne
qu
al 

ou
tco

me
s 
be
yo
nd
 in

div
idu

al 
eq
ua
lity

 s
tra

nd
s 
an
d 

aim
 to

 
un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 re

lat
ion

sh
ip 
be
tw
ee
n t
he
 st
ran

ds
 an

d o
the

r c
irc
um

sta
nc
es
 th
at 
dri
ve
 po

or 
ou
tco

me
s i
nc
lud

ing
 so

cio
-ec

on
om

ic 
dis

ad
va
nta

ge
.  W

e w
ill 
ex
plo

re 
wh

eth
er 

the
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
s t
ha
t w

e h
av
e i
n p

lac
e c

an
 ta

ck
le 
the

 dr
ive

rs 
of 

ine
qu
ali
ty 
to 

de
live

r 
the

 o
utc

om
es
 w
e 
loo

k t
o 
ac
hie

ve
 in

 th
e 
lon

g 
ter

m.
 T
o 
en
ab
le 

us
 to

 ta
rge

t t
he
se
 a
rea

s o
f p

ers
ist
en
t in

eq
ua
lity

, t
he
 S
ing

le 
Eq

ua
lity

 F
ram

ew
ork

 A
cti
on
 P
lan

 w
ill 
ad
dre

ss
 a
 sm

all
 n
um

be
r o

f p
rio
rity

 a
rea

s e
ac
h 
ye
ar.

 T
he
 p
rio
riti
es
 w

ill 
be
 id

en
tifi
ed
 

thr
ou
gh
: 

 • A
 m
ap
pin

g o
f e
vid

en
ce
 of
 in
eq
ua
litie

s i
de
nti
fie
d w

ith
in 
ea
ch
 of
 th
e s

ix 
eq
ua
lity

 sc
he
me

s t
ha
t c
ut 
ac
ros

s t
he
 st
ran

ds
 (s
ee
  

 a
pp
en
dix

 A)
; 

• A
n a

na
lys

is 
of 
the

 pr
ior
itie

s w
ith
in 
the

 C
om

mu
nit
y P

lan
; a
nd
 

• A
n a

ss
es
sm

en
t o
f c
urr

en
t in

ter
ve
nti
on
s w

hic
h s

ug
ge
sts

 th
at 
the

re 
is 
sc
op
e t
o i
mp

rov
e e

ffe
cti
ve
ne
ss
 an

d e
ffic

ien
cy
. 

 
 In 

20
10
/11

 th
e p

rio
rit
y a

rea
s a

re:
  

 Ec
on

om
ic 
ina

cti
vit

y a
mo

ng
st 

Ba
ng

lad
es
hi 

an
d S

om
ali
 w
om

en
 

In 
To

we
r H

am
let
s w

e 
ha
ve
 th

e 
se
co
nd
 hi

gh
es
t le

ve
l o

f e
co
no
mi
ca
lly 

ina
cti
ve
 w
ork

ing
 a
ge
 w
om

en
 in

 th
e 
co
un
try
, a

t 4
9%

. 
W
om

en
 a
re 

tw
ice

 a
s l

ike
ly 

to 
be
 w

ork
les

s 
as
 m

en
 a
nd
 a
pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
75
% 

of 
wo

rki
ng
 a
ge
 B
an
gla

de
sh
i w

om
en
 a
re 

no
t 

ec
on
om

ica
lly 

ac
tiv
e. 

Th
e G

LA
 ha

s p
ub
lish

ed
 re

se
arc

h s
ho
win

g t
ha
t a

cro
ss
 th

e c
ap
ita
l, M

us
lim

 pe
op
le 

are
 al

mo
st 

tw
ice

 as
 

Page 128



 
13
 

like
ly 
to 
be
 ec

on
om

ica
lly 

ina
cti
ve
 co

mp
are

d t
o t
he
 av

era
ge
. O

f th
e e

co
no
mi
ca
lly 

ina
cti
ve
 gr

ou
p, 
Mu

slim
 pe

op
le 
are

 m
ore

 lik
ely

 
to 

be
 lo

ok
ing

 a
fte
r a

 fa
mi
ly 

or 
be
 s
tud

yin
g 
tha

n 
oth

er 
gro

up
s. 

 In
 2
00
7, 

the
 E

qu
al 

Op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

 id
en
tifi
ed
 

em
plo

ym
en
t a

s "
an
 a
rea

 of
 de

ep
 se

ate
d 
ge
nd
er 

ine
qu
ali
ty 

an
d d

isc
rim

ina
tio
n" 

for
 b
lac

k a
nd
 m

ino
rity

 e
thn

ic 
wo

me
n. 

Th
eir
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
 in

to 
the

 is
su
e 
fou

nd
 th

at 
Mu

slim
 w

om
en
 a
re 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 lik

ely
 to

 b
e 
ec
on
om

ica
lly 

ina
cti
ve
 a
nd
 e
xp
eri
en
ce
 

mu
ltip

le 
ba
rrie

rs 
to 
ac
ce
ss
ing

 pa
id 
em

plo
ym

en
t.  

 Gi
ve
n 
the

 h
igh

 u
ne
mp

loy
me

nt 
rat

e 
in 

the
 b
oro

ug
h 
an
d 
yo
un
g 
pro

file
 o
f t
he
 p
op
ula

tio
n, 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
res

ou
rce

s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

dir
ec
ted

 to
 su

pp
ort

ing
 th

os
e 
loo

kin
g 
for

 w
ork

 to
 se

cu
re 

job
s. 

Fo
r e

xa
mp

le 
ou
r 2

00
8-1

1 
Lo
ca
l A

rea
 A
gre

em
en
t (
LA

A)
 se

t 
am

bit
iou

s t
arg

ets
 fo
r th

e C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 ra

ise
 th
e o

ve
ral
l e
mp

loy
me

nt 
rat

e i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
 an

d e
na
ble

 lo
ca
l p
eo
ple

 to
 

mo
ve
 of

f e
mp

loy
me

nt 
rel
ate

d 
be
ne
fits

. T
he
re 

ha
ve
 a
lso

 b
ee
n 
tar

ge
ted

 in
ter

ve
nti
on
s t

hro
ug
h 
the

 W
ork

ing
 N
eig

hb
ou
rho

od
s 

pro
gra

mm
e t

o s
up
po
rt t

arg
et 

gro
up
s, 
inc

lud
ing

 w
om

en
 an

d p
eo
ple

 w
ith
 di
sa
bil
itie

s, 
int
o e

mp
loy

me
nt.
 W

ith
in 
ou
r L

AA
 w
e a

lso
 

ha
ve
 a
 ch

ild
 p
ov
ert

y r
ed
uc
tio
n 
tar

ge
t w

hic
h 
ha
s i

nv
olv

ed
 w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 th

e 
pa
ren

ts 
of 

ch
ild
ren

 fr
om

 th
e 
low

es
t p

er 
ca
pit
a 

inc
om

e h
ou
se
ho
lds

 to
 ge

t th
em

 of
f In

co
me

 S
up
po
rt 
an
d i

nto
 em

plo
ym

en
t. B

an
gla

de
sh
i fa

mi
lie
s c

on
tin
ue
 to

 be
 am

on
g t

he
 

po
ore

st 
in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 an

d t
he
ir a

ve
rag

e h
ou
se
ho
ld 
siz

e i
s a

bo
ve
 av

era
ge
, th

ere
for

e t
he
y h

av
e b

ee
n t

arg
ete

d w
ith
in 
the

se
 

pro
gra

mm
es
.  

 Th
e c

ha
lle
ng
e n

ow
 is
 to
 de

ep
en
 ou

r u
nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e d
riv
ers

 of
 ec

on
om

ic 
ina

cti
vit
y f
or 

thi
s g

rou
p a

nd
 as

se
ss
 th
e l
ea
rni
ng
 

fro
m 

the
se
 va

rio
us
 pr

og
ram

me
s t
o i
nfo

rm
 fu

tur
e p

lan
nin

g a
nd
 st

rat
eg
y. 
In 

the
 co

nte
xt 
of 

red
uc
tio
ns
 in
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 fu
nd
ing

 
the

re 
is 

like
ly 

to 
be
 fe

we
r r

es
ou
rce

s 
av
ail
ab
le 

for
 ta

rge
ted

 a
dd
itio

na
l p

roj
ec
ts 

to 
su
pp
lem

en
t m

ain
str
ea
m 

em
plo

ym
en
t 

se
rvi
ce
s. 

Th
ere

for
e 
we

 n
ee
d 
pu
t in

 p
lac

e 
me

as
ure

s 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t o

ur 
co
re 

em
plo

ym
en
t i
nte

rve
nti
on
s a

nd
 th

os
e 
of 

ou
r 

pa
rtn

ers
 en

ab
le 

us
 to

 no
t o

nly
 in

cre
as
e o

ve
ral
l e

mp
loy

me
nt 

bu
t p

rom
ote

 eq
ua
lity

 fo
r t
ho
se
 m

os
t e

xc
lud

ed
 fr
om

 th
e l

ab
ou
r 

ma
rke

t. 
 Du

rin
g 

20
10
/11

 w
e 

wil
l w

ork
 w

ith
 c
oll
ea
gu
es
 in

 th
e 

Pr
os
pe
rou

s 
Co

mm
un
itie

s 
Co

mm
un
ity
 P

lan
 D

eli
ve
ry 

Gr
ou
p 

an
d 

Em
plo

ym
en
t T

as
k G

rou
p t
o: 

• 
De

ve
lop

 a 
co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
rof

ile
 of
 w
ork

les
sn
es
s a

mo
ng
 w
om

en
 in
 th
e b

oro
ug
h t
hro

ug
h t
he
 Lo

ca
l E

co
no
mi
c A

ss
es
sm

en
t  

 
an
d w

ork
les

sn
es
s p

rof
ile
, to

 bu
ild
 up

 an
 un

de
rst
an
din

g o
f ri
sk
 fa
cto

rs 
for

 ec
on
om

ic 
ina

cti
vit
y a

mo
ng
 th
is 
gro

up
; 

• 
Re

vie
w 
ex
ist
ing

 em
plo

ym
en
t in

ter
ve
nti
on
s d

eli
ve
red

 by
 th

e C
ou
nc
il, 
So

cia
l L
an
dlo

rds
 an

d J
ob
ce
ntr

e P
lus

 ta
rge

ted
 at

 th
is 

gro
up
 an

d i
nc
orp

ora
te 
the

 fin
din

gs
 in
to 
the

 re
fre

sh
 of
 th
e l
oc
al 
Em

plo
ym

en
t S

tra
teg

y; 
an
d 

• 
Th

rou
gh
 a
cti
on
 re

se
arc

h 
we

 w
ill 
ap
ply

 a
 re

fle
cti
ve
 p
roc

es
s 
of 

pro
ble

m 
so
lvin

g 
led

 b
y s

tak
eh
old

ers
 in

clu
din

g 
wo

rkl
es
s 

Ba
ng
lad

es
hi 

an
d 

So
ma

li 
wo

me
n 

to 
str
en
gth

en
 c
urr

en
t i
nte

rve
nti
on
s 
su
ch
 a

s 
tho

se
 d

eli
ve
red

 th
rou

gh
 th

e 
W
ork

ing
 

Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 Fu

nd
  a
nd
 te
st 
ou
t a
 ne

w 
co
urs

e o
f a
cti
on
.  

   

Page 129



 
14
 

Ind
ep

en
de

nc
e a

nd
 di

gn
ity

 fo
r o

lde
r p

eo
ple

 an
d v

uln
era

ble
 ad

ult
s 

 In 
20
07
, t
he
 G

ov
ern

me
nt 

lau
nc
he
d 
Pu

ttin
g 
Pe

op
le 

Fir
st,
 a
 sh

are
d 
vis

ion
 a
nd
 co

mm
itm

en
t t
o 
tra

ns
for

m 
ad
ult
 so

cia
l c

are
 

tow
ard

s a
 pe

rso
na
lise

d, 
pe
rso

n-c
en
tre

d a
du
lt s

oc
ial
 ca

re 
sy
ste

m.
 Im

ple
me

nti
ng
 th
is 
vis

ion
 m
ea
ns
 pu

ttin
g s

erv
ice

 us
ers

 at
 th
e 

he
art

 of
 th

e d
ec
isio

n m
ak
ing

 pr
oc
es
s a

bo
ut 

ho
w 
the

y a
re 

su
pp
ort

ed
, a

nd
 en

ab
lin
g t

he
m 

to 
ha
ve
 m

ore
 ch

oic
e a

nd
 co

ntr
ol,
 so

 
tha

t th
ey
 ca

n g
et 
su
pp
ort

 th
at 
is 
pe
rso

na
lise

d t
o m

ee
t th

eir
 in
div

idu
al 
ne
ed
s. 

 Th
is 

vis
ion

 c
on
sti
tut
es
 a
 tr
an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 in

 th
e 
wa

y 
ad
ult
 s
oc
ial
 c
are

 s
erv

ice
s 
are

 p
rov

ide
d. 

To
 d
eli
ve
r t
his

 c
ha
ng
e 
an
 

am
bit
iou

s t
hre

e y
ea
r T

ran
sfo

rm
ing

 S
oc
ial
 C
are

 pr
og
ram

me
 is
 be

ing
 le
d b

y A
du
lts
 H
ea
lth
 an

d W
ell
be
ing

 D
ire
cto

rat
e. 
In 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml
ets

 w
e 
ha
ve
 re

co
gn
ise

d 
tha

t t
he
se
 ch

an
ge
s h

av
e 
a 
gre

at 
po
ten

tia
l to

 n
ot 

on
ly 
inc

rea
se
 d
ign

ity
 a
nd
 q
ua
lity

 o
f li
fe 

for
 

se
rvi
ce
 u
se
rs,
 b
ut 

als
o 
be
tte
r m

ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f d

ive
rse

 co
mm

un
itie

s. 
In 

a 
rep

ort
 p
ub
lish

ed
 in

 2
00
7 
for

 th
e 
Eq

ua
lity

 a
nd
 

Hu
ma

n 
Rig

hts
 C

om
mi
ss
ion

, D
EM

OS
 re

se
arc

he
rs 

arg
ue
d 
tha

t "
the

re 
wil

l b
e 
hu
ge
 s
co
pe
 fo

r s
elf
-di
rec

ted
 s
erv

ice
s 
an
d 

pe
rso

na
l b

ud
ge
ts.
 T
he
se
 p
ay
-of

fs 
wil

l p
art

icu
lar
ly 
ap
ply

 w
he
re 

pe
op
le 

ca
n 
mo

bil
ise

 th
eir
 ow

n 
kn
ow

led
ge
 a
nd
 re

so
urc

es
 to

 
ma

ke
 th

e s
erv

ice
 m

ore
 ef

fec
tiv
e".

 H
ow

ev
er,

 al
tho

ug
h t

he
 po

ten
tia
l b

en
efi
ts 

for
 m

arg
ina

lise
d a

nd
 ex

clu
de
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 ar
e 

sig
nif
ica

nt,
 ca

re 
ne
ed
s t
o b

e t
ak
en
 to

 en
su
re 

tha
t th

e s
pe
cif
ic 
ne
ed
s o

f th
es
e p

eo
ple

 ar
e r

ec
og
nis

ed
 an

d m
ec
ha
nis

ms
 pu

t in
 

pla
ce
 to
 en

su
re 

ev
ery

on
e c

an
 ga

in 
fro

m 
ch
an
ge
s a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 th
eir
 qu

ali
ty 
of 
life

.  
 Du

rin
g 2

01
0/1

1 w
e w

ill: 
• 

Ca
rry

 o
ut 

a 
str
ate

gic
 le

ve
l e

qu
ali
ty 

im
pa
ct 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

the
 T
ran

sfo
rm

ing
 S
oc
ial
 C

are
 P
rog

ram
me

. T
his

 w
ill 
inv

olv
e 

wo
rki
ng
 w

ith
 c
oll
ea
gu
es
 a
nd
 p
art

ne
rs 

to 
ide

nti
fy 

an
d 
be
tte
r u

nd
ers

tan
d 
wh

at 
the

 c
ha
ng
es
 p
ut 

for
wa

rd 
thr

ou
gh
 th

e 
Tra

ns
for

mi
ng
 So

cia
l C

are
 pr

og
ram

me
 w
ill m

ea
n f
or 

dif
fer

en
t s
ec
tio
ns
 of
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

.  
• 

Ide
nti
fy 
the

 st
ep
s w

e n
ee
d t

o t
ak
e t

o e
ns
ure

 th
at 

all
 se

rvi
ce
 us

ers
, b

ut 
es
pe
cia

lly 
tho

se
 at

 gr
ea
tes

t ri
sk
 of

 m
arg

ina
lisa

tio
n 

an
d e

xc
lus

ion
 ar

e e
na
ble

d t
o 
live

 th
eir
 o
wn

 liv
es
 a
s t

he
y w

ish
, c

on
fid
en
t th

at 
se
rvi
ce
s a

re 
of 

hig
h 
qu
ali
ty,
 a
re 

sa
fe 

an
d 

pro
mo

te 
the

ir o
wn

 in
div

idu
al 
ne
ed
s f
or 

ind
ep
en
de
nc
e, 
we

ll-b
ein

g a
nd
 di
gn
ity
.  

 B)
 T
o 
en

su
re 

tha
t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il h

as
 th

e r
es
ou

rce
s, 

str
uc

tur
es
 an

d 
pr
oc

es
se
s i

n 
pla

ce
 to

 ac
hie

ve
 o
ur
 co

mm
itm

en
ts.

  
Th

e 
Co

un
cil
 w

ill 
wo

rk 
un

de
r t

he
 E

qu
ali
ty 

Fr
am

ew
or
k 
for

 L
oc

al 
Go

ve
rn
me

nt 
to 

im
pr
ov

e 
the

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f t

he
 

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 to

 ta
ck
le 
ine

qu
ali
ty 

thr
ou

gh
 th

e u
se
 of

 th
e E

qu
ali
ty 

Fr
am

ew
or
k f

or
 Lo

ca
l G

ov
ern

me
nt.

  In
 20

10
/11

 w
e 

wi
ll s

tre
ng

the
n t

he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

's 
ca
pa

cit
y t

o d
eli
ve
r e

qu
ali
ty 

thr
ou

gh
:  

      

Page 130



 
15
 

Ac
tiv

ity
 

Mi
les

ton
es
 

St
ren

gth
en

ing
 th

e c
ap

ac
ity

 of
 th

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 ta

ck
le 
ine

qu
ali
ty 

thr
ou

gh
:   

En
su
re 

tha
t s
tra

teg
ic 
eq
ua
lity

 pr
ior
itie

s a
re 

de
sig

ne
d i
nto

 
the

 re
fre

sh
 of
 th
e C

om
mu

nit
y P

lan
 an

d L
oc
al 
Ar
ea
 

Ag
ree

me
nt 
an
d t
ha
t a
 ro

bu
st 
an
aly

sis
 of
 in
eq
ua
lity

 in
 th
e 

bo
rou

gh
 in
for

ms
 th
eir
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.
  

• 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pl

an
 N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
. 

• 
Co

mm
un
ity
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 co

mp
let
ed
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
. 

• 
Ne

w 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pl

an
 ag

ree
d b

y M
arc

h 2
01
1. 

De
ve
lop

 th
e D

ive
rsi
ty 
an
d E

qu
ali
ty 
Ne

tw
ork

 as
 an

 
eff
ec
tiv
e p

ee
r fo

rum
 to
 dr

ive
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 in
 eq

ua
lity

 
pra

cti
ce
s a

cro
ss
 th
e l
oc
al 
pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

. 
 

• 
Re

vie
w 
of 
Div

ers
ity
 an

d E
qu
ali
ty 
Ne

tw
ork

 co
mp

let
ed
 by

 en
d o

f J
un
e 

20
10
. 

• 
Ev

alu
ati
on
 re

po
rt a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 pr

es
en
ted

 to
 To

we
r H

am
let
s 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 Ex
ec
uti
ve
 by

 Ju
ly 
20
10
. 

• 
Ne

w 
Te

rm
s o

f R
efe

ren
ce
 an

d w
ork

 pr
og
ram

me
 de

ve
lop

ed
 by

 Au
gu
st 

20
10
. 

• 
Ne

tw
ork

 re
lau

nc
he
d b

y N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
0. 

 
La
un
ch
 an

d d
eli
ve
r th

e O
ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s T

hir
d s

ec
tor

 
fun

din
g s

tre
am

 to
 en

ab
le 
co
mm

un
ity
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s t
o 

co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 
the

 de
live

ry 
of 
On

e T
ow

er 
Ha

ml
ets

. 
• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 To

we
r H

am
let
s P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
to 
es
tab

lish
 a 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 
the

 O
ne
 To

we
r H

am
let
s F

un
d t
o e

na
ble

 Th
ird
 se

cto
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s t
o 

ac
ce
ss
 fu
nd
ing

 fo
r a

cti
vit
ies

 th
at 
im
pro

ve
 re

lat
ion

s b
etw

ee
n p

eo
ple

. 
• 
La
un
ch
 by

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10
. 

 
Str

en
gth

en
 th
e i
ntr

fac
e b

etw
ee
n t
he
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 TH

P 
wit

h p
art

icip
ato

ry 
Fo

rum
s (
Eq

ua
lity

 Fo
rum

s, 
LA

Ps
 an

d 
Th

ird
 se

cto
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s) 
an
d c

lar
ify
 th
eir
 ro

le 
in 

go
ve
rna

nc
e o

f th
e T

HP
 an

d t
he
 w
ork

 of
 O
ve
rvi
ew

 an
d 

Sc
rut

iny
. 

• 
Un

de
rta

ke
 jo
int
 TH

P/E
qu
ali
ty 
Fo

rum
 w
ork

sh
op
 fa
cili

tat
ed
 by

 SO
LA

CE
 

co
ns
ult
an
ts 
to 
ex
plo

re 
wa

ys
 to
 be

tte
r li
nk
 Eq

ua
lity

 Fo
rum

s t
o T

HP
 

de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

 an
d d

eli
ve
ry 
str
uc
tur

es
 by

 Ap
ril 
20
10
. 

• 
Pr
od
uc
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s r
ep
ort

 fro
m 
wo

rks
ho
p a

nd
 re

po
rt t

o T
HP

 
Ex

ec
uti
ve
 by

 Ju
ly 
20
10
. 

 
Im

pr
ov

e t
he

 ca
pa

cit
y o

f th
e C

ou
nc

il a
t a

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lev

el 
in 

20
10
/11

 w
e w

ill:
  

 Ide
nti
fy 
the

 ar
ea
s o

f s
ign

ific
an
t tr

an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 in
 lo
ca
l 

pu
bli
c s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 w
ork

 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
to 

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
ir i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 fo
r d

eli
ve
rin
g o

ur 
eq
ua
lity

 
ou
tco

me
s. 

 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 Vi

sio
n a

nd
 Va

lue
s s

ub
-gr

ou
p o

f th
e T

ran
sfo

rm
ati
on
 Bo

ard
 

to 
de
ve
lop

 an
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o t
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on
 w
hic

h e
mb

ed
s a

 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 eq
ua
litie

s a
nd
 in
for

ms
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 Se
rvi
ce
 O
pti
on
s 

rev
iew

. 

Page 131



 
16
 

De
ve
lop

 ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f th

e i
mp

ac
t o
f b
oth

 th
e 

rec
es
sio

n a
nd
 pu

bli
c s

ec
tor

 fu
nd
ing

 cu
ts 
on
 eq

ua
lity

 
ou
tco

me
s f
or 

loc
al 
res

ide
nts

 an
d e

ns
ure

 th
at 
a 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 re
du
cin

g i
ne
qu
ali
ty 
sit
s a

t th
e h

ea
rt o

f o
ur 

loc
al 
res

po
ns
e. 
 

 

• 
Em

be
d e

qu
ali
tie
s a

na
lys

is 
wit

hin
 th
e L

oc
al 
Ec

on
om

ic 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
(LE

A)
 du

e f
or 

co
mp

let
ion

 by
 Ju

ly 
20
10
. 

• 
Lo
ca
l E

nte
rpr

ise
 St

rat
eg
y -
 em

be
d f
ind

ing
s o

f th
e L

EA
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t s
tep

s a
re 

tak
en
 to
 su

pp
ort

 bu
sin

es
se
s m

os
t a
t ri
sk
 fro

m 
rec

es
sio

n r
ela

ted
 pr

es
su
res

 (J
an
ua
ry 
20
11
). 

De
ve
lop

 a 
co
he
sio

n f
ram

ew
ork

 w
hic

h b
ala

nc
es
 th
ree

 
ele

me
nts

; c
om

mu
nit
y p

roj
ec
ts;
 st
ruc

tur
es
 an

d g
rou

ps
 

wh
ich

 br
ing

 pe
op
le 
tog

eth
er 

an
d; 
str
ate

gic
 le
ve
l w

ork
 to
 

un
de
rst
an
d a

nd
 st
ren

gth
en
 co

he
sio

n i
mp

ac
t o
f s
erv

ice
s, 

pro
jec

ts 
an
d i
nc
ide

nts
. 

 

• 
De

ve
lop

 co
he
sio

n i
mp

ac
t to

ol 
to 
en
ha
nc
e u

nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f h
ow

 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
aff
ec
ts 
rel
ati
on
s b

etw
ee
n p

eo
ple

 an
d i
mp

rov
e t
he
 

ex
ten

t to
 w
hic

h m
ajo

r p
roj
ec
ts 
str
en
gth

en
 co

he
sio

n b
y J

un
e 2

01
0. 

• 
Pil
ot 
co
he
sio

n i
mp

ac
t to

ol 
on
 pr

ior
ity
 se

rvi
ce
s d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts 
/ 

pro
jec

ts 
by
 D
ec
em

be
r 2

01
0. 

• 
Pr
od
uc
e r

ep
ort

 on
 fin

din
gs
 of
 pi
lot
 C
oh
es
ion

 Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nts
 

an
d u

se
 to
 in
for

m 
ne
w 
Co

mm
un
ity
 Pl

an
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
. 

De
live

r a
 pi
lot
 pr

oje
ct 
wit

h t
he
 Br

itis
h I
ns
titu

te 
for

 H
um

an
 

Rig
hts

 an
d I
De

A l
oo
kin

g a
t h
ow

 a 
hu
ma

n r
igh

ts 
pe
rsp

ec
tiv
e c

an
 he

lp 
the

 C
ou
nc
il t
o i
mp

rov
e s

erv
ice

 
de
live

ry,
 lo
ca
l d
ec
isio

n m
ak
ing

 an
d e

ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 th
e 

co
mm

un
itie

s t
he
y s

erv
e. 

 

• 
Sta

ke
ho
lde

r w
ork

sh
op
 fo
r c
ou
nc
il a

nd
 pa

rtn
er 

sta
ff t
o e

xp
lor
e 

pro
jec

t p
rop

os
al 
an
d a

gre
e p

roj
ec
t m

ile
sto

ne
s 

• 
Co

ntr
ibu

te 
to 
ID
eA

 di
ss
em

ina
tio
n e

ve
nt 
he
ld 
to 
co
mm

un
ica

te 
fin
din

gs
 of
 pr

oje
ct 
by
 Ap

ril 
20
11
 

 
De

ve
lop

 a 
me

ch
an
ism

 fo
r in

co
rpo

rat
ing

 eq
ua
litie

s w
ith
in 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g, 
thr

ou
gh
 th
e d

isa
gg
reg

ati
ng
 of
 

na
tio
na
l a
nd
 ot
he
r in

dic
ato

rs 
an
d u

pd
ate

 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 
su
ite
 of
 eq

ua
lity

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 in
dic

ato
rs.
 

 

• 
De

ve
lop

 a 
lon

g l
ist
 of
 na

tio
na
l a
nd
 lo
ca
l in

dic
ato

rs 
wh

ich
 w
e c

an
 

dis
ag
gre

ga
te 
an
d s

ub
mi
t fo

r d
isc

us
sio

n a
t C

ES
G 
in 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10
. 

• 
Ag

ree
 ne

w 
ba
sk
et 
of 
str
ate

gic
 eq

ua
litie

s i
nd
ica

tor
s t
o b

e 
inc

orp
ora

ted
 w
ith
in 
the

 Si
ng
le 
Eq

ua
lity

 Fr
am

ew
ork

 fro
m 
Ma

rch
 

20
11
. 

De
ve
lop

 th
e p

ro
ce
ss
es
 an

d s
tru

ctu
res

 w
hic

h e
ns

ur
e t

ha
t e

qu
ali
ty 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s i

nfo
rm

 al
l s
erv

ice
 pl

an
nin

g a
nd

 de
cis

ion
 

ma
kin

g i
n t

he
 C
ou

nc
il, 
thr

ou
gh

:  
Re

vie
w 
the

 eq
ua
litie

s i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

of 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 to
 

ma
ke
 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien

t a
nd
 ef
fec

tiv
e u

se
 of
 eq

ua
litie

s 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 st
aff
 in
 D
ire
cto

rat
es
 an

d t
he
 co

rpo
rat

e t
ea
m.
 

 

• 
Sc

op
e o

f re
vie

w 
ag
ree

d b
y C

ES
G 
by
 Ju

ly 
20
10
  

• 
Re

po
rt a

nd
 re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 pr

es
en
ted

 to
 C
ES

G 
by
 N
ov
em

be
r 

20
10
. 

• 
Ne

w 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 in
 pl
ac
e b

y M
arc

h 2
01
0. 

Page 132



 
17
 

Re
vie

w 
an
d r

ed
es
ign

 th
e E

qu
ali
ty 
Im
pa
ct 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
(E
qIA

) p
roc

es
s t
o m

ak
e i
t m

ore
 fle

xib
le 
an
d u

se
r fr

ien
dly

 
an
d e

mb
ed
 it 
wit

hin
 w
ide

r s
erv

ice
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
. 

 

• 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ini
tia
tio
n D

oc
um

en
t a
pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ES

G,
 Ap

ril 
20
10
 

• 
Co

nv
en
e P

roj
ec
t W

ork
ing

 G
rou

p b
y M

ay
 20

10
. 

• 
Re

co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 of
 re

vie
w 
su
bm

itte
d t
o C

ES
G 
by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10
. 

• 
Pil
ot 
of 
ne
w 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 co

mp
let
ed
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
11
. 

• 
Fin

al 
ag
ree

me
nt 
of 
ne
w 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 by

 C
ES

G 
by
 M
arc

h 2
01
1. 

 
W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 th
e J

oin
t In

tel
lig
en
ce
 G
rou

p d
ev
elo

p a
 

ce
ntr

al 
ba
nk
 of
 lo
ca
l a
nd
 na

tio
na
l s
tat
ist
ics

, in
for

ma
tio
n 

an
d r

es
ea
rch

 on
 in
eq
ua
lity

 ac
ros

s t
he
 si
x e

qu
ali
ty 

str
an
ds
 th
at 
is 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e t
o s

taf
f a
nd
 pa

rtn
ers

. 
 

• 
Dr
aft
 eq

ua
litie

s p
rof

ile
 to
 be

 de
ve
lop

ed
 by

 D
ec
em

be
r 2

01
0. 

• 
Eq

ua
litie

s p
rof

ile
 in
co
rpo

rat
ed
 w
ith
in 
TH

IS 
Bo

rou
gh
 in
tel
lig
en
ce
 

sy
ste

m 
by
 M
arc

h 2
01
1. 

     

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
7th July 2010 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 

 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  
 
Isabella Freeman (Assistant Chief 
Executive, Legal) 
 
Originating officer(s)   
John Williams, Service Head Democratic Services 
 

Title:  
 
Petition Scheme 
 
Wards Affected:  All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 

Councillor Joshua Peck, Deputy Leader of the Council 
Community Plan Theme 
  

One Tower Hamlets 
Strategic Priority 
 

• Reduce inequalities & foster strong community cohesion  
• Work efficiently and effectively as One Council 
• Develop and deliver the Citizen Engagement Strategy 

 
1.        SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Local Democracy, Economic Development & Construction Act 2009 (‘the 

2009 Act’) places a duty on principal authorities to respond to petitions.  Each 
authority must adopt and publish a ‘Petition Scheme’, informing local people 
of how to submit petitions and how the authority will respond.  The scheme 
must include a number of specific provisions.  
 

1.2 The duty applies from 15 June 2010.  The Council must therefore review 
urgently its arrangements for receiving and responding to petitions, and adopt 
a Petition Scheme at the next Council meeting.  

 
1.3 The Council has an established procedure for petitions to Council, Cabinet 

and committee meetings or directorates and this is well used by residents. 
However, some of the specific requirements of the 2009 Act are not included 
in the existing procedure and must now be introduced, including:- 

 
• Provision for a petition exceeding a stated number of signatures (to be 

determined by the Council) to either:- 
o trigger a debate at the Council meeting (as opposed to merely 

presenting the petition for Members questions and response); or 
o require a senior officer to appear before the Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee to answer questions on the matter 
 

• A right of ‘review’ by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee if the petition 
organiser feels the authority’s response to the petition was inadequate. 

 
• An ‘e-petitions’ facility (from 15 December 2010) 

 

Agenda Item 10.3

Page 135



 
  

 

2.        DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 
           Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Note the duty to respond to petitions included in the Local Democracy, 

Economic Development & Construction Act 2009 and the consequent 
requirement on the Council to agree a Petition Scheme at the next Council 
Meeting on 14 July 2010; and 
 

2.2 Comment on the draft petition scheme at Appendix ‘C’ to this report and in 
particular on the proposed thresholds for the number of signatures required to 
trigger a Council meeting debate or attendance by a senior officer at the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.        REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 

TOWER HAMLETS’ EXISTING PROCEDURE/ACTION REQUIRED 
 
3.1 The Council has a well established petition procedure (see Appendix A) that 

provides for a written response to all petitions by the relevant Chief Officer 
within 28 days and for petitions that include over 30 signatures to be 
presented on request to the Council meeting or (if the petition relates to an 
agenda item) to a meeting of the Cabinet, O&S or other committee. 

 
3.2 It is proposed that these provisions should be retained.  In addition, the 

Council’s Petition Scheme will need to include further provisions to meet the 
requirements of the new duty as follows:- 
• Petition to trigger a Council debate.  In order to force the allocation of time 

for a debate at Council, a petition should provide evidence of widespread 
concern or support and the number of signatures required should reflect 
this.  The maximum threshold that can be set is 5% of the borough’s 
population or approximately 10,000.  However, 2,000 signatures is 
proposed as a more realistic and potentially achievable level, and indeed 
this is consistent with the notional 1% figure included in the Government’s 
model scheme (1,500 for a hypothetical authority with a population of 
150,000).  

• Petition to trigger O&S Committee evidence:  Similarly, to justify the 
allocation of O&S Committee time and officer resources to an issue, the 
petition should provide evidence of widespread concern.  A threshold of 
1,000 signatures is suggested for this purpose (again, this is proportionate 
to the figure included in the model scheme)  .  

• It will no longer be possible to stipulate that signatories are on the electoral 
register as the scheme must enable under 18’s to participate in petitions. 

• A review provision (‘appeal’ to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee) will 
be required. 

 
3.3 A draft Petition Scheme for Tower Hamlets, based on the model scheme and 

incorporating where possible the Council’s existing practice and the above 
provisions, is attached at Appendix C for comment.  Subject to any necessary 

Page 136



 
  

 

amendment the draft scheme will then be submitted to the Council for 
adoption.   

 
3.4 Following the adoption of the Petition Scheme it will be necessary to issue a 

revised procedure and guidance to directorates on its implementation and 
logging of petitions under the scheme.   

 
4.        ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1      The Council is required to have a Petition Scheme that complies with the 

requirements of the 2009 Act.  Within these requirements there are matters 
that the Council may determine, such as the specified time periods in which 
the Council will take action and the numbers of signatures required to trigger a 
debate before full Council or the calling to account of a senior officer.  
Provided the requirements of the 2009 Act are met, the Council may also 
include such additional provisions as it considers appropriate.  The options 
considered in preparing the Petition Scheme proposed in Appendix C are set 
out within the body of the report.  As set out above, the proposed Scheme is 
based on the model scheme, retaining the Council’s existing practice where 
possible. 

 
5.        BACKGROUND 
 
5.1  The 2009 Act contained a range of provisions to take forward the community 

empowerment agenda of the ‘Communities in Control’ white paper and related 
legislation.   A stated aim was to put local authorities at the forefront of the 
drive to reconnect people with public and political decision-making.    
 

5.2 The Government recognises that signing a petition is one way for citizens to 
express their concerns and priorities, and research suggests that petitions are 
amongst the most popular and recognised forms of civic action.  The 2009 Act 
therefore placed a duty on principal local authorities to take certain steps in 
response to petitions on local matters.  Each authority must adopt a Petition 
Scheme which sets out clearly what local people should do to make their 
feelings known on local issues, and how the council will respond.   
 

5.3 Following a consultation period the Government has issued statutory 
guidance on the new duty and has directed that the duty will come into force 
on 15 June 2010.  Recognising that a longer preparation time will be required 
for the ‘e-petitions’ element of the duty, the requirement to provide this facility 
will come into force later, on 15 December 2010. 
 

5.4 The statutory guidance includes a model Petition Scheme that authorities may 
wish to adopt, amended (within the requirements of the Act) to meet the 
needs of their own locality.   

 
5.5 At Tower Hamlets, the recent Scrutiny Review on Strengthening Local 

Community Leadership has also recommended that the Council review the 
way that petitions are managed and develop a more comprehensive system 
for receiving and responding to petitions.  

Page 137



 
  

 

 
6. THE DUTY TO RESPOND TO PETITIONS 
 
6.1 The 2009 Act introduces a legal requirement for all councils to respond to 

petitions and tell local people what action is going to be taken to address their 
concerns.  Petitions cannot be ignored, for example because they raise a 
difficult issue in the local area. 

 
6.2 The Act requires all principal authorities in England to establish a scheme for 

handling petitions made to the authority.  The scheme: 
• must be approved by a meeting of the council before it comes into force; 
• must be published on the authority’s website and by any other method 

appropriate for bringing it to the attention of those who live, work or study 
in its area; 

• can be revised at any time but the revised scheme must be approved and 
publicised as above; and 

• the authority must comply with its petition scheme. 
 
6.3 Councils have some flexibility around how they fulfil the duty but the Act sets 

out some minimum standards that Petition Schemes must meet:- 
• anyone who lives, works or studies in the local authority area, including 

under 18’s, can sign or organise a petition and trigger a response; 
• a facility for electronic petitions must be provided by the local authority; 
• petitions must be acknowledged within the time period specified in the 

scheme; 
• the scheme must list possible options for the steps that the Council may 

choose to take in response to a petition, including: 
o taking the action requested in the petition 
o considering the petition at a meeting of the authority 
o holding an inquiry 
o holding a public meeting 
o commissioning research 
o a written response setting out the authority’s views on the request 
o referring the petition to an overview and scrutiny committee 

• the scheme must secure that: (a) the petition organiser is notified within a 
period specified in the scheme of the steps taken or proposed to be taken 
by the Council and the Council’s reasons for that action; and (b) the 
notification is published on the Council’s web site; 

• petitions with a significant level of support trigger a debate of the full 
Council (Councils will determine this threshold locally but it must be no 
higher than 5 per cent of the local population); 

• petitions with a requisite level of support, set by the local authority, which 
seek to hold a senior officer to account for a function for which the officer 
is responsible trigger at least the attendance by the senior officer to give 
evidence to the overview and scrutiny committee; 

• petition organisers can prompt a review of the local authority’s response if 
they feel it is inadequate 

 

Page 138



 
  

 

6.4 Statutory guidance encourages authorities to adopt schemes wider than these 
requirements, e.g. responding to petitions from those who do not live, work or 
study in the area or e-petitions on non-council sites. Councils may include 
other information such as details of how they handle petitions which do not 
qualify under the scheme or which apply to the functions of another authority.   

 
7.0 THE PETITION SCHEME 
 
7.1 Government believes that petitions are an important tool for local people to 

raise concerns and that councils should approach their scheme from the 
starting point of responding in some way to all the petitions they receive – 
including those on very local issues - regardless of the number of signatures 
providing they follow the guidelines set out in the scheme i.e. the petition is 
not discriminatory or about an excluded matter such as a planning decision.  
Tower Hamlets’ existing petitions procedure (see Appendix A) does provide 
for a response in all cases.  In designing their scheme, councils are expected 
to: 
• take into account local circumstances to ensure the scheme is appropriate 

e.g. in relation to the thresholds set to trigger different types of response; 
• ensure that the scheme is accessible to all; and 
• ensure that the process is easy for citizens to use. 

 
7.2 Thresholds may be reviewed periodically and amended if necessary.  Should 

it become apparent that authorities are setting unachievable requirements, the 
Secretary of State has power to direct them to amend their petition schemes. 

 
8.0 THE DETAILED REQUIREMENTS  
 

(a) Items covered by the petitions duty  
 
8.1 As a minimum, a council’s petition scheme must apply if a petition meets all of 

the following criteria: 
• it calls for the authority to take action or to cease to take action; 
• it is signed by the requisite number of people who live, work or study in the 

local area (this number must be specified in the Scheme); 
• if made under another enactment, it does not qualify under that enactment 

(for example a mayoral petition under the Local Government Act 2000 
which does not contain enough signatures to trigger a referendum); and 

• if made electronically, it is made through the authority’s e-petition facility 
 
8.2 The legislation does not define a petition – in most cases this will be obvious 

but authorities sometimes have to decide whether to deal with an item of 
correspondence under its petition scheme or in another way, e.g. via the 
complaints procedure.  Government guidance is that authorities should treat 
as a petition anything which identifies itself as a petition, or which a 
reasonable person would regard as a petition. 

 
 
 
 

Page 139



 
  

 

(b) Verification of signatures and acknowledgement 
 
8.3 Authorities can choose to verify the signatures given on a petition if they wish, 

and it is suggested that such a provision should be included in the Tower 
Hamlets scheme.  Under the provisions of the 2009 Act, a hard copy 
signature only counts if the petition gives the signatory’s name and an 
address where the signatory lives, works or studies.  In the case of e-petitions 
the authority must decide what counts as an authentic signature, for example 
a valid email address, a valid postcode or both.  All petitions which meet the 
scheme criteria must be acknowledged within the period specified in the 
scheme. 

 
(c) Relevant matters 

 
8.4 Recognising councils’ wider community leadership role, the Act requires an 

authority to respond to any petition relating to one of the Council’s functions, 
but also one relating to other matters that are not within the Council’s 
functions but which relate to the economic, social or environmental well-being 
of the area and to which any of the Council’s partners could contribute.  This 
could mean acting as an advocate for the local community, working with 
partners to resolve the issue or instigating a scrutiny review.  Should a petition 
of this sort call for something which goes against council policy the council 
may choose to say ‘no’ to the request but must explain their position in their 
response. 

 
(d) Exclusions 

 
8.5 Certain petitions are excluded from the duty to respond as follows:- 

• Petitions which are vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate – these 
must still be acknowledged and the acknowledgement should explain why 
the authority will not be taking action.    

• Certain petitions may be inappropriate to deal with during a pre-election 
period. 

• Petitions made under another enactment (if they meet the requirements of 
that enactment) 

• Matters excluded by order, where established processes already exist for 
communities to have their say:- 

o any matter relating to a planning decision, including about a 
development plan document or the community infrastructure levy; 

o any matter relating to an alcohol, gambling or sex establishment 
licensing decision; 

o any matter relating to an individual or entity in respect of which that 
individual or entity has a right of recourse to a review or right of 
appeal conferred by or under any enactment 

 
(e) Appropriate steps 

 
8.6 Councils are required to take appropriate steps when responding to petitions 

received.  The response should be proportionate to the seriousness of the 
issue and the level of support contained in the petition.  The actions listed at 

Page 140



 
  

 

6.3 above must be among those considered but councils are encouraged to 
be innovative, including considering any courses of action open to them that 
are specific to the subject of the petition.  The Statutory Guidance includes a 
number of examples of appropriate steps that local authorities should 
consider in response to specific subjects, as set out at Appendix B attached. 

 
8.7 The authority must notify the petition organiser of the steps it intends to take 

and publish this notification on the authority’s website. 
 

(f) Petition Debates 
 
8.8 The Act requires that petitions which receive a specified level of support 

should be debated at a meeting of the Council.  Authorities must set out in 
their scheme the number of signatures needed to trigger a debate.  The 
petition organiser should be informed when the debate will be held (normally 
the next meeting) with sufficient notice to attend and offered the option of 
presenting their petition at the beginning of the debate, and councils should 
also consider what other contribution the petitioners might make to the 
discussion, e.g. answering questions put by councillors. 

 
8.9 The guidance states that a petition debate should conclude with a decision 

being taken by the Council. This could be to take the action the petition 
requests, not to take the action for reasons put forward in the debate, or to 
commission further investigation e.g. by a relevant committee.  Where the 
issue is the responsibility of the Council’s Executive, the Council should 
decide whether to make recommendations to inform that decision.  

 
8.10 The Local Authorities (Petitions) (England) Order 2010 stipulates that the 

maximum number at which the threshold for triggering a council debate may 
be set is 5% of the local population, but the Government expects that in most 
cases a much lower figure will be considered locally appropriate.  

 
(g) Requiring officer evidence to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 
8.11 The petition scheme must allow for petitions to trigger attendance by a senior 

officer at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to answer questions about the 
issue raised.   The scheme must specify how many signatures will be needed 
to require an officer to attend a public hearing.  The scheme must also specify 
the officers who may be called to account in this way.  The final decision on 
which officer (and/or member) should attend, and the questions to be asked, 
rest with the Overview and Scrutiny committee.   

 
8.12 The Council must inform the petition organiser when the Overview and 

Scrutiny meeting will take place with sufficient notice to enable them to attend. 
After the relevant person has appeared before the overview and scrutiny 
committee, the committee must make a report or recommendations to the 
authority and send a copy of that report or recommendations to the petition 
organiser. 

 
 

Page 141



 
  

 

(h) Petition Reviews 
 
8.13 The Act provides a review provision under which petitioners can appeal to the 

Overview and Scrutiny committee if they feel the Council’s response to their 
petition is not adequate.  The committee may decide to carry out a full review 
of the issues raised in the petition or, if it is very concerned – for instance if 
the committee thinks that the authority is seriously neglecting its responsibility 
to listen to local people – the committee can arrange for the authority’s 
response to the petition to be discussed at a meeting of the full Council.  The 
Council must inform the petition organiser of the results of the review and 
must publish the results on its website, unless the Council considers it would 
be inappropriate to do so in all the circumstances. 

 
9.0 E-PETITIONS  
 
9.1 The Act requires all authorities to provide an ‘e-petition’ facility for citizens to 

create a petition online to be made available to others for electronic signature.  
Mere acceptance of e-mailed petitions does not meet this requirement. 

 
9.2 The e-petition facility must be included in the Petition Scheme and 

substantially the same requirements apply to electronic petitions as to paper 
petitions.  Authorities must determine, for each e-petition received, whether 
the petition is appropriate for publishing on their facility; and will decide what 
equates to a signature on an e-petition.  Although only required to respond to 
e-petitions made through their own e-petition facility, an authority may choose 
also to respond to e-petitions submitted by other means and the petition 
scheme should indicate how these types of petitions will be dealt with.  

 
9.3 In order to allow time for preparation of the necessary systems, the 

Government has agreed that the provisions in relation to e-petitions will not 
come into effect until 15 December 2010.  The Council’s draft Petition 
Scheme therefore does not include provision for e-petitions at this stage. 

 
9.4 However, the Council’s existing committee management software 

(Modern.gov) includes provision for an e-petitions facility linked to the 
Council’s website and development work is underway to bring this into use as 
soon as possible. 

 
10. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
10.1 The administration of the Petition Scheme, and in a number of cases the 

Council’s response to the petitions submitted under the scheme, will give rise 
to additional costs from increased work for directorates, time at council and 
committee meetings and set up costs for e-petitions.    The Government has 
indicated that under the new burdens principles, it will meet the costs of the 
new burdens associated with the duty   

 
10.2 The Government expects that the national cost of responding to local petitions 

will be approximately £4.7 million per year, decreasing over time.   Local 
authorities will each receive a grant for 2010/11, although this needs to be 

Page 142



 
  

 

seen in the context of the authority’s share of the £1.1bn in year grant 
reductions for local government announced in May.  It is therefore highly likely 
that these changes will result in additional expenditure by the Council, 
although the extent of this will depend upon the number and nature of 
petitions received and will need to be contained within available budgets. This 
amount of grant will vary by local authority dependent on the local population.  
It is expected that funding for future years will be incorporated into the 
revenue support grant.   

 
10.3. In responding to petitions, it will be necessary for the Council to consider the 

financial implications of the matter in question. 
 
11. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 (LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
11.1 The report proposes the adoption of a petition scheme to comply with the 

requirements of the 2009 Act.  The report properly addresses the 
requirements of the Act, the Local Authorities (Petitions) (England) Order 
2010 and statutory guidance given by the Secretary of State in March 2010 
entitled “Listening to communities: Statutory guidance on the duty to respond 
to petitions”. 

 
11.2 The Act provides that the scheme must be adopted at a meeting “of the 

authority” and the statutory guidance emphasises that this should be at a 
meeting of full council.  This is consistent, in any event, which the provisions 
of the Council’s Constitution, which provide that only the full Council will 
adopt or change the Constitution. 

 
12. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
12.1 The Petition Scheme and subsequent introduction of the e-petitions facility 

aim to promote access to the decision-making process for all local residents.  
This is consistent with the objective of One Tower Hamlets expressed in the 
Community Plan, as it tends to promote equality of opportunity and to 
encourage contributions to local government from persons who live, work or 
study in Tower Hamlets. 

 
13. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
13.1 Not applicable.  
 
14. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
14.1 This paper identifies primarily legal risks which have been covered as part of 

the legal comments above. There are no other immediate risks in relation to 
the Scheme.    

 
15. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 Not applicable.  

Page 143



 
  

 

 16. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
16.1 The new Petitions Scheme will be one way in which people can inform the 

Council of their concerns with a robust procedure to be followed. 
 
17. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A – The Council’s existing petitions procedure 
Appendix B -  Examples of steps that Councils should consider in response  
                       to specific subjects raised in petitions 
Appendix C -  Draft Petition Scheme 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (as amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

None 
 
 

N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 144



 
  

 

APPENDIX A – THE COUNCIL’S EXISTING PETITIONS PROCEDURE 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

PROCEDURE FOR RECEIVING AND RESPONDING TO PETITIONS 
 

Petitions are an important way for local residents to inform the Council of their views 
or raise matters of concern.  Petitions may be received in a number of ways 
including by post to the Chief Executive or a department, by hand at Mulberry Place 
or a local office or via a Member’s Enquiry or surgery.     
 
This procedure is designed to ensure that petitions are tracked and responded to 
within the agreed timescales and should be followed in all cases.   
 
1. RECEIPT AND LOGGING OF PETITIONS 
 

• All petitions received by the Council, whether presented at a meeting or 
otherwise received from residents, Members or others, will be referred to the 
relevant Corporate Director for action.   

• If the officer receiving a petition is unsure of the procedure or which is the 
appropriate department, they should pass the petition to the Service Head, 
Democratic Services who will log and forward it to the relevant Corporate 
Director.   

• The Corporate Director should record the date of receipt of any petition received 
in his/her office.  

 

2. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

• On receipt of a petition, the Corporate Director should without delay send an 
acknowledgement to the lead contact or person co-ordinating the petition, or if 
this is not indicated, to the first named signatory.  

• If the petition was passed to the Council by a Member, the acknowledgement 
should be copied to that Member. 

• The acknowledgement should give the name of the Corporate Director 
responsible for responding to the issues raised, and should state that this 
response will be sent within 28 days.   

 

3. PETITIONS RELATING TO MORE THAN ONE DIRECTORATE 
 

• Where a petition relates to several services the Corporate Directors concerned 
should agree which of them will lead and co-ordinate the response.  Normally this 
will be the Corporate Director to whose services most of the petition relates.  If 
there is not agreement on this the lead director will be the one whose service is 
first named in the petition. 

• The identity of the lead Corporate Director should be included in the 
acknowledgement letter at 2 above. 

 

Page 145



 
  

 

4. RESPONSE TO PETITIONS 
 

• The Corporate Director should arrange for the relevant officer(s) to prepare a 
draft response to the issues raised in the petition including reference to any 
relevant Council policy, any action planned in relation to the matters raised and/or 
any other agency with relevant responsibilities.   

• The Corporate Director is responsible for ensuring that a written response is 
provided within 28 days of receipt of the petition. 

• The response should be sent to the lead contact/person co-ordinating the petition 
or, if this is not indicated, to the first named signatory.    

• If the petition was passed to the Council by a Member, the response should be 
copied to that Member. 

• If the petition was forwarded to the department by the Chief Executive or Service 
Head, Democratic Services they should receive a copy of the response.    

 

5. RECORD KEEPING 
 

• The Corporate Director should maintain a record of petitions received and replied 
to and any outstanding items referred to officers for a draft response.     

 

6. KEEPING MEMBERS INFORMED 
 

• Petitions and responses are not routinely reported to the Cabinet and Corporate 
Directors are responsible for responding to petitions received.   

• However, in relation to petitions affecting particular wards or Lead Member 
portfolios the Corporate Director may wish to consult the relevant Lead 
Members(s) and/or ward councillors about the issues raised. 

• Any relevant Lead Member(s), ward councillors and/or a Member who has 
presented a petition to the Council should be sent a copy of the written response 
to the petitioners. 

 
7.         PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS TO COUNCIL/OTHER MEETINGS 
 

• Subject to certain conditions, petitions of more than 30 signatures can be 
presented to a meeting of the full Council (on any matter for which the Council 
has responsibility or which affects the borough); or the Cabinet, Overview & 
Scrutiny or other committee (on a matter that is on the agenda for the meeting). 

• Such petitions will be sent to the Service Head, Democratic Services, who will 
notify the relevant Corporate Director of receipt and ask him/her to prepare a 
briefing for the Lead Member to respond orally to the petition at the meeting. 

• After the meeting the petition is forwarded to the Corporate Director in the normal 
way for a written response on any outstanding matters within 28 days.   

 
 
 

 

Page 146



 
  

 

8. PETITIONS ON PLANNING AND LICENSING ISSUES 
 

• Where a petition relates to planning or licensing and there is a current application 
the petition will be referred to the (Strategic) Development or Licensing 
Committee to be heard at the time of consideration of the application. 

• In relation to development control, subject to certain conditions the (Strategic) 
Development Committee will consider an application where the officer 
recommendation is opposed by more than 20 individual representations or a 
petition of at least 20 local residents.   The representations and petitions are 
summarised in the committee report and copies are available at the meeting.  

• The Development Procedure Rules at Part 4.8 of the Constitution set out the 
arrangements for public speaking at Development/Strategic Development 
Committee meetings. 

 
 
 

 

Page 147



 
  

 
Page 148



 
  

 

APPENDIX B  
 
EXAMPLES OF STEPS THAT COUNCILS SHOULD CONSIDER IN RESPONSE 

TO SPECIFIC SUBJECTS RAISED IN PETITIONS 
 

(Extract from DCLG Statutory Guidance on the duty to respond to petitions) 
 

(i) Alcohol related crime and disorder:  
 

If a local authority receives a petition about alcohol-related crime or disorder, 
Government expects them to fully consider with their partners the range of options 
available to them including considering the case for establishing a designated public 
place order or, as a last resort, establishing and imposing an alcohol disorder zone 
covering the relevant area. 
 

(ii) Anti-social behaviour (ASB):   
 
As the elected representatives of the local area, and often as social landlord and 
licensing authority, local councils have a significant role to play in tackling anti-social 
behaviour. Recently crime and disorder reduction partnerships, of which local 
authorities are a constituent member, have been challenged to set minimum service 
standards and publicise these to their local communities by March 2010. The police 
and many local authorities also have a target to increase public confidence that the 
police and council are working together to deal with crime and ASB issues that 
matter most locally. As such, when responding to petitions on ASB, local authorities 
are expected to consider, in consultation with local partners, all the options available 
to them including the wide range of powers and mechanisms they have to intervene 
as part of these roles. They should, for example, work with the neighbourhood 
policing team in the affected area to identify what action might be taken including 
what role CCTV might play, consider identifying a dedicated contact within the 
council to liaise with the community, Registered Social Landlords and other 
neighbourhood partners on issues of ASB in the area in question and, where 
appropriate, alert the crime and disorder reduction partnership and crime and 
disorder overview and scrutiny committee to the issues highlighted in the petition. 
 

(iii) Under-performing schools:   
 

Local authorities are expected to consider, in consultation with local partners, all the 
options available to them when working with schools to secure their improvement. 
For example, on behalf of the local authority, the school improvement partner will 
play a pivotal role, challenging and brokering support for poorly performing schools. 
Where a school is under performing the local authority should consider whether it is 
appropriate in the circumstances to issue a warning notice outlining expectations and 
a timeframe for the school to improve its performance standards. Other measures 
available to local authorities, where schools fail to comply with a warning notice or 
are in an Ofsted category of notice to improve (requiring significant improvement) or 
special measures include; appointing additional governors, establishing an interim 
executive board, removal of the school’s delegated budgets, requiring the school to 
enter into a formal contract or partnership or, only if the school is in special 
measures, closure. 

Page 149



 
  

 

(iv) Under-performing health services:  
 

Local authorities are expected to work with local health partners to consider the 
matter raised in the petition including, where appropriate, exploring what role the 
Local Involvement Network (LINk) might have in reviewing and feeding back on the 
issue. The health overview and scrutiny committee should also be alerted to the 
petition and where the matter is sufficiently or potentially serious, the issue should be 
referred to them to consider for review.  
 

Page 150



 
  

 

APPENDIX C 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

DRAFT PETITION SCHEME 
 
1. SUBMITTING A PETITION TO THE COUNCIL 
 

Tower Hamlets Council welcomes petitions and recognises that petitions are one 
way in which people can let us know their concerns.  All petitions sent or presented 
to the council will receive an acknowledgement from the council within 10 working 
days of receipt. This acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do with the 
petition. We will treat something as a petition if it is identified as being a petition, or if 
it seems to us that it is intended to be a petition. 
 
Paper petitions can be sent to: 
 
The Service Head, Democratic Services, 
1st Floor, 
Town Hall, 
Mulberry Place, 
E14 2BG 
 
Or can be scanned and e-mailed to petitions@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
 

All petitions will receive a response from the relevant Council Directorate as set out 
at section 4 below within 28 days of receipt.  This will usually be the quickest way of 
addressing the issue.  If you wish to present your petition to a meeting of elected 
councillors, please see section 5 below for details of how this may be done.   
   
The Council is currently developing a facility for residents to host or sign on-line 
petitions via our website.  This facility will be available by December 2010.   
 
2. GUIDELINES FOR SUBMITTING A PETITION  
 

Petitions submitted to the Council must include: 
 

• a clear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition.  This 
should state what action the petitioners wish the Council to take 

• the name, address and signature of each person supporting the petition 
• contact details, including an address, for the petition organiser. This is the 

person we will contact to explain how we will respond to the petition. The 
contact details of the petition organiser will not be placed on the website.  

• If the petition does not identify a petition organiser, we will contact the first 
listed signatory to the petition to agree who should act as the petition 
organiser. 

 
The Council will seek to verify the authenticity of each entry on a petition by 
reference to existing information such as (where appropriate) the current electoral 

Page 151



 
  

 

register or other relevant records.  Entries which cannot be verified may not be 
counted for the purposes of determining whether a petition has exceeded a threshold 
set out in this scheme.   
 
Petitions which are considered to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate 
will not be accepted.  
 
In the period immediately before an election or referendum, when certain legal 
restrictions apply, we may need to deal with your petition differently – if this is the 
case we will explain the reasons and discuss the revised timescale which will apply.  
 
If a petition does not follow the guidelines set out above, the Council may decide not 
to do anything further with it. In that case, we will write to you to explain the reasons. 
 

3. ACTION BY THE COUNCIL ON RECEIPT OF A PETITION 
 

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 10 working days of 
us receiving the petition.  This will let them know what we plan to do with the petition 
and when they can expect to hear from us again.   
 
If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm that we 
have taken the action requested and the petition will be closed.  
 
If the petition has enough signatures to trigger a Council debate, or a senior officer 
giving evidence (see section 5 below), the acknowledgment will confirm this and tell 
you when and where the meeting will take place (if known at that stage).  If the 
petition needs more investigation, we will tell you the steps we plan to take. 
 
If the petition applies to a planning or licensing application, is a statutory petition (for 
example requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a matter 
where there is already an existing right of appeal, such as council tax banding and 
non-domestic rates, other procedures apply. Further information on all these 
procedures and how you can express your views is available on the Council’s 
website [insert link] 
 
We will not take action on any petition which we consider to be vexatious, abusive or 
otherwise inappropriate.  If this is the case, we will explain the reasons for this in our 
acknowledgement of the petition. 
 
To ensure that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we 
receive, the details of all petitions submitted to the Council will be published on our 
website, except in cases where this would be inappropriate.  Whenever possible we 
will also publish all correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be 
removed).  
 
4. THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO YOUR PETITION 
 
The Council’s response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how 
many people have signed it, but may include one or more of the following: 

• taking the action requested in the petition; 

Page 152



 
  

 

• considering the petition at a Council meeting 
• holding an inquiry into the matter 
• undertaking research into the matter 
• holding a public meeting 
• holding a consultation 
• holding a meeting with petitioners 
• referring the petition for consideration by the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee (a cross-party committee of councillors which has the power to 
hold the Council’s decision makers to account.) 

• calling a referendum 
• writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the 

petition 
 
In addition to these steps, the Council will consider all the specific actions it can 
potentially take on the issues highlighted in a petition, including potential use of any 
of the Council’s statutory powers; and/or recommendations to, or action in 
conjunction with, our partner agencies or others.   
  

If your petition is about something over which the Council has no direct control (for 
example the local railway or hospital) we will consider making representations on 
behalf of the community to the relevant body. The council works with a large number 
of local partners [link to Tower Hamlets Partnership website] and where possible will 
liaise with these partners to respond to your petition. If we are not able to do this for 
any reason (for example if what the petition calls for conflicts with Council policy), 
then we will set out the reasons for this to you.  
 
You can find more information on the services for which the Council is responsible 
on our website [insert link]. 
 
If your petition is about something that a different authority is responsible for we will 
give consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. This might consist 
of simply forwarding the petition to the other authority, but could involve other steps. 
In any event we will notify you of the action we have taken. 
 
In all cases we will provide the written response within 28 days of receiving your 
petition.   
 

5. PRESENTATION OF A PETITION TO ELECTED COUNCILLORS 
 

Subject to your petition containing sufficient signatures as set out below, you may 
request to present the petition to a meeting of elected councillors.   There are a 
number of ways in which this can be done.   
 

(a)  Presentation to a meeting of the Council, Cabinet or relevant committee  
 

If your petition includes the names, addresses and signatures of at least 30 persons 
who live, work or study in the borough, it may be presented to an ordinary meeting of 
the Council or (if it relates to a matter that is on the agenda for the meeting) to the 
Council’s Cabinet or a Council Committee.  A full calendar of meeting dates can be 
found on the Council’s website [insert link].   

Page 153



 
  

 

 
If you would like to present your petition to one of these meetings, please contact the 
Service Head, Democratic Services on 020 7364 4204 well in advance of the 
meeting for further information.  The final deadline for receipt of petitions is noon, 
three clear working days before the meeting.  However, please note that a maximum 
of three petitions will normally be taken at any meeting and these slots are allocated 
in order of receipt, so early submission is advised. 
 
At the meeting, you will be invited to speak for up to three minutes in support of your 
petition and councillors may then ask you questions for a further three minutes 
before the relevant Lead Member or Committee Chair responds to the matter that 
you have raised. 
 

(b)  Debate at a Council Meeting 
 

If your petition includes the names, addresses and signatures of at least 2,000 
persons who live, work or study in the borough you may request that a debate be 
held about the petition at the full Council meeting.  The Council will endeavour to 
consider your petition at its next meeting, although on some occasions this may not 
be possible and consideration will then take place at the following meeting.   We will 
tell you the date of the meeting at which the debate will take place once this is 
confirmed.   
 
At the meeting, the petition organiser or another signatory to the petition will be given 
three minutes to present the petition.  The person who presents the petition must 
live, work or study within the borough.  The petition will then be debated by 
Councillors for a maximum of 15 minutes.  Following the debate, the Council will 
decide how to respond to the petition at this meeting. They may decide to take the 
action the petition requests, not to take the action requested for reasons put forward 
in the debate, or to commission further investigation into the matter, for example by a 
relevant committee.  
 
Where the issue is one on which the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) are required to 
make the final decision, the Council will decide whether to make recommendations 
to inform that decision.  As the petition organiser, you will receive written 
confirmation of this decision, which will also be published on our website. 
 

(c)  Officer evidence to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
As an alternative to a Council debate, your petition may ask for a senior Council 
officer to provide information in public about something for which the officer is 
responsible as part of their job – for example to explain progress on an issue, or the 
advice given to councillors to enable them to make a particular decision.  The senior 
officers who may be called to give evidence under this procedure include the Head 
of the Paid Service (Chief Executive) and any of the Council’s statutory or non-
statutory Chief Officers (Corporate Directors).   
 
If your petition includes the names, addresses and signatures of at least 1,000 
persons who live, work or study in the borough, the relevant senior officer will give 
evidence at a public meeting of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

Page 154



 
  

 

You should be aware that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may decide that it 
would be more appropriate for another officer to give evidence instead of any officer 
named in the petition – for instance if the named officer has changed jobs. The 
Committee may also decide to call the relevant Executive Councillor(s) to attend the 
meeting.  Committee members will ask the questions at this meeting, but you will be 
able to suggest questions to the Chair of the Committee by contacting the Service 
Head, Democratic Services up to three working days before the meeting.   
 
 
5. IF YOU ARE NOT SATISFIED WITH THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE 
 
If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition organiser 
has the right to request that the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny committee review 
the steps that the Council has taken in response to your petition.  
 
It is helpful to everyone, and can improve the prospects for a review if the petition 
organiser gives a short explanation of the reasons why the Council’s response is not 
considered to be adequate.  
 
The Committee will endeavour to consider your request at its next meeting, although 
on some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will take place at the 
following meeting. Should the Committee determine we have not dealt with your 
petition adequately, it may use any of its powers to deal with the matter. These 
powers include instigating an investigation, making recommendations to the 
Council’s Executive or arranging for the matter to be considered at a meeting of the 
full Council.  
 
Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed of the 
outcome within 5 working days. The results of the review will also be published on 
our website. 
 
 

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 157

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Ecology Centre - location map, directions and transport links
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	6.1 Idea Store Strategy  Action Plan Update - Idea Store Metro Watney Market and One Stop Shop (CAB 010/101)
	Idea Store Strategy Appx 1 Site Plan CAB 070710
	Idea Store Strategy Appx 2 Action Plan CAB 070710
	Idea Store Strategy Appx 3 Concept txt CAB 070710

	6.2 Council Housing Finance Reform Prospectus - Implications for Tower Hamlets and Proposed Response (CAB 011/101)
	7.1 Contracts Forward Plan (CAB 012/101)
	7.2 Children, Schools and Families Capital Programme  (CAB 013/101)
	10.1 Single Equality Framework 2010/11 (CAB 014/101)
	Single Equality Fwork Appx

	10.3 Petitions Scheme (CAB 016/101)
	14 EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

